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OUR CORE VALUES

Qur five values are key to our success They form a platform for our methods, approach to business and staff motivaton

More than mere words, we behieve our values are the essence of our hrand and mnfluence the way we work, day in, day out

TAKE PRIDE

We take pride in what we do, in who we are and what we stand for. We are
proud of our brand, our colleagues and our achievements.

>

BE PASSIONATE

Our passion to provide the best service for our clients and candidates drives us
to triumph over our competition.

>

NEVER GIVE UP

We welcome a challenge; we show strength of character and resilience in our
approach. We see difficulty as an opportunity to demonstrate ability.

>
WORK AS A TEAM

Working as one team makes us stronger, more efficient and adds value to the
business and our brand,

MAKE [T FUN

We recognise that fun is a key factor within our working environment;
we're sociable and enjoy celebrating our successes.

Fugatuoud Annual Ropart Ang Actownts 2013
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OUR PERFORMANCE
IN 2013

Although 2013 was a challenging year for the recrustment
industry and the global economy in general, PageGroup was
able to defiver a robust performance We were pleased with

the strong resuits from many of our businesses, including

the UK and the US, and saw some signs of recovery In
Continental Europe towards the end of the year Together, these
performances resulied In our key measure of gross profit

(net fee ncome) being just 2 5% lower than 2012, at £513 9m
2013 was also a year when we focused on operational
efficiencies, enabling us to return an operating profit before
exceptional items of £68 2m exceeding the prior year by 4 7%

Key performance data summary”

Growth rates

2013 2012 Reported rate Constant currency
Revenue £1,005 5m £989 9m +16% +12%
Gross profit {net fee income) £513 9m £526 9m -25% 27%
Admin expenses before exceptional items (£445 Tm} {2461 Tm) -3 5%
Operating profit before exceptional items. 68 2m £65 1m +4 7%
Profit befors tax £64 1m £57 Om +12 4%
Conversion {operating profit/gross profit) 133% 12 4%
Basic EPS before excepitonal tems 151p 13 6p +11 6%
Headcount 5,130 5,099 +0 6%

3 Overview
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PAGEGROUP

GROSS PROFIT AND HEADCOUNT
Gross Profit (Net Fee Income}
2013 2012

o N 35.0m
@ ™

03
YRl £125.1m

Q3 £126.5m
LN £126.5m

HEADCOUNT (YEAR END)

2013: 5,130 2012: 5,099

GROSS PROFIT PERMANENT TO TEMPORARY RATIO
Permanent Temporary

2013 76% 24%

2012 78% 22%

GROSS PROFIT BY DISCIPLINE
2013 2Mm2

OO0

I Ftnance & Accounting I Marketing, Sales and Retait
B Legal, Technology, HR, Secretarial and Healthcare
B Engineenng, Property & Construction, Procurement & Supply Chain

HIGHLIGHTS

« Operating profit before exceptional items up 4.7%

» Strong performances in UK, USA and Asia and
signs of recovery in Europe

« Australia continues to be a challenging market

= Strong balance sheet with £85m net cash

Forgelitap Ar oo Repart Ard Acceuts 203

£513.9m

Gross profit
(-2.5%}

£68.2m

Operating profit
before exceptional items
(+4.7%)

£64.1m

Profit before tax
(+12.4%)

15.1p

Basic EPS before exceptional items
(+11.0%)

5,130

Headcount
{(+0.6%)

10.5p

Dividend
{including proposed dividend)
{+5.0%)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

2013 has been a year of delivering benefits from the alterations
to the management structure we made in 2012, continuing our
investment in people and technclogy, bedding-in our Board and
governance changes, and iaying the foundations for sustamable
future growth around the world In each area PageGroup has made
good progress

Performance

The macro-ecenomic headwinds which had been holding us
back for much of the year started tc abate, especialty in the USA
and the UK Continental Europe’s economic deching slowed and
the emerging markets with some exceptions, have continued to
grow Within thai changing environment PageGroup deivered a
creditable performance with gross profit of £514 million, down

2 5% on 2012

in order to prepare the business for a more favourable global
economy PageGroup management further streamlined our support
functions We also started the rofl-out of our new operating system
and related applcations, which will improve both our consultants’
effectiveness and aur operational efficiency

Our focus on sustanable profitable growth s also reflected In
your Board's decision to step up investment across our large
high potential markets — China, South East Asia, Germany USA
and Latin Amenca We look ferward to the results fram those
investments in the years {¢ come

Dividend

Your Board 1s mindfut of the role the dimdend has to play in
celivering shareholder vatlue We are commutied to increasing the
dividend over the course of the economic cycle in ine with our
long-term growth rate That way we can mantan a sustanable
level of dividend paymeni durng downturns as well as dunng
more prosperous tmes Given our results and our cash position,
we Intend to increase the final dwidend o 7 25p which together
with the intenm dividend paid in October of 3 25p delivers an
increase of 5% on 2012

Overview

Robin Buchanan (Chairman)

The Board

The changes we made to your Board in 2012 have also bhorne
fruit tn the fast Annual Report | explained that we had appointed
a new Remuneration Committee Charman David Lowden, and
were about to appoint a new Audit Committee Chairman Simon
Boddie Boih have performed with distinction during 2013,
adding to the effectiveness of our Board and our governance

We have also put in place a new remunerat:on plan for Executive
Directors better aigning their Interests and objectives with those
of our shareholders

The appomntment of Kelvin Stagg as Acting Chief Financial
Officer smmediately following the resignation of Andrew Bracey
in October reflecis the focus we have given to succession
planning Kelvin had already been ideniified as the leading
internal succession candidate given his considerable
expenence of the busmess as Group Financial Gontroller

and Company Secretary for over seven years Development
and succession planning remains one of your Board’s most
important pricnties

PaneGroup ~nnuat Roport And agocuits 2010




in last year's Chaiman's Statement | mentioned that a hugher
propartion of wornen on our Board would not only bring
different skidls and perspectives, but also support our gender
diversity cbjectives across the Group So we are delighted
that Danuta Gray Jjoined our Board in December, adding
considerable international ine leadership and non-executive
expenence as well as a strong technology background
Together with Ruby McGregor-Smith, our Serior Independent
Dergctor women now make up 40% of our independent
non-executive directors and 29% of our Board Over BO%

of our Board members also have considerable international
business expenence This is cntical given the global nature
of PageGroup

Thera 1s much more on our Board and our governance,
including the results of our independent board effectiveness
raview, in our report on Corporate Governance

Strategic Report

Following my statement 1s the Strateg:c Report where we
dascnbe more fully PageGroup’s performance dunng 2013
atong with our bustness model, our strategy and the pecple
behind the business We also outhne the key performance
indicators we use to measure our business and the principal
nsks and uncertainties we face along with our approach to
corporate responsibility

C2q .0 cup Awnal R port Ard Acoruat, 2015

Looking Ahead

Our prionities for 2014 are clear We will continue 16 refine
and execute on our organic growth strategy We will enhance
the development of our worldwide leadership team We will
mantain and strengthen our perforrmance culture We wiit
continue both the roll-out of our improved operating systems
and the efficiency improvements of our support teams Your
Board will concentrate on supporting and challenging the
executive management {o ensure this happens

PageGroup continues to grow devefop and change | never
ceasa to be impressed by the can-do attitude of PageGroup
people as they grasp the challenges - and the opporiunities -
that the economy and this dynamic business provide

We are very grateful to them

Robin Buchanan \
Chamrman 2( 52

4 March 2014
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR GLOBAL PRESENCE AT A GLANCE

With over 76% of gross profit (net fee income) generated outside the UK, PageGroup 1s a truly international
business with operations Iin 34 countries We manage the business in 4 reqions

The Americas
£76m gross profit

Asia Pacific

£208m gross profit £124m gross profit £1 06m gross profit

1 50/0 of group
8 4 staff

24 o/oof group 2 1 % of group
1,319 staff 1,11 1 statf

See page 25 See page 27 See page 29 See page 31

40%of group
1 ,886 staff
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UNITED KINGDOM
Aberdeen London
Brmingham  Madstone
Bnghton Manchester
Bnstol Miton Keynes
Cambndge MNewcasile
Carantf Nottingham
Chiswick Oxford
Coventry Reading
Edinburgh Shatheid
Glasgow Slough
Guddiord Southampton
Leads St Aibans
Lewcester Weybridge
Liverpoot
Bordeaux
Cergy Pontoise
Lille
Lyon
Marseris
Massy
Monacoe
Nantes

Maudly sur Seine

RUSSIA

QATAR

Dobha

UAE
. Dubai
wiiily Abu Dham
SQUTH AFRICA
Johrannesburg
Cape Town
MICHAEL PAGE AFRICA

Operates out af Pans France

| SWITZERLAND
BELGIUM | SWEDEN Geneva
Antwerp Gothenburg Lausanne
Brussals Steckhoim Zurich
| LUXEMBOURG
} l , Luxemboury
IRELAND 4 L THE NETHERLANDS
Dubhn - Tes Amstecdam
m 4 ;L”" :"‘ - Broda
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FRANCE ————e | Hamburg
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oteans | | PORTUBAL  sarceons Mian |
Pans Lisban Bilbao Padova
Rennes | | Parto Mairic Aome L
fouen ! Sevibe Torm POLAND
® Tnulm.tsr‘oI i Valencia Warsaw
Versalles |
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INDIA j
Naw Dettn
Mumbay

MALAYSIA

Kuala Lumpur

SINGAPORE

Jureng

F oq~Oroup Anend Rirpart Arg Acer. 1 2010

CHINA & HONG KONG
Beying

Guangzhou

Heng Kang

Kowloan

Pudong

Shanghat

Shenzhen

Surhou

Taiper

AUSTRALIA | “ss™
Bnsbane f+y
Chatswood
Melbourne
Parramatta
Perth
Sydney
Whaeelers Hill
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NEW ZEALAND

Auckland
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

POWERFUL PLATFORM

s
-\3-.;!}

lagaia
- b T

Experienced
management

Quality of
consultants

Deep
relationships

~

Netwoark:
scale &
breadth

Brand
& market
leadership

Financial
scale

OUR VALUES

Strategic Report

* (Candidate & Client)

Tactical
approach
to different
markets

Differentiated
brand
offerings

PageExecutive
MichaelPage
PagePersonnel

-

Diversity in
geography and
discipiine

Take pride

RECRUITMENT
MODIEL

"
CLIENTS

» Sector expertise and advice

» Appropriate candidate
shorilist

» Professional
high-quality service

CONSULTANTS

* Team-based structure
and compensation

* Access to jobs across the
entire Page network

s Consistent process

CANDIDATES

* Protessional
high quality service

¢ Market understanding
and client profiling

+ Careers advice

Be passionate

PateStoup Annugl Report and Aceaunt 2010



HOW WE GENERATE VALUE

We achieve our objectives by utihsing our assets, executing placement mix according to the job types i the markets

our strategic prionties and operating our business responsibly in which we operate Qur commitment to be a responsible
through effective governance and adherence to our core values business underpins everything we do with strong attention to
effective governance throughout The PageGroup difference s a

We have developed a balanced business with geographic
“make H happen” cufture Qur core values reflect this

diversity discipline diversity and a permanent and temporary

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

v
2
Pl
m
]
o
Eel
m
-
=]
=
I

Leads to:
« Repeat business

* Greater exclusivity Organic Long-term
= Future candidate growth investment

Leads to; | Scalable
= Rapid promotion & flexible
« Career opportunities capacity

» Reward and
recognition

Cash
generation

Talent & skifl Consistency

f shareholder
. development 0
Leads to: P returns

« Career-long
relationship

» Peer recommendation
e Fyture client
Strong

balance
sheet

_ Agile &
T o responsive

RECRUITRMENT
VIODEL

Never give up Work as a team Make it fun

PageGroup Arousl Aepart Arg Account 2013 Strategic Report 10




OUR BUSINESS

We are one of the world’s best known and most respected specialist
recruitment consultancies. We deliver recruitment services to clients
through a network of 153 offices across 34 countries.

OUR OBJECTIVE

To deliver above market returns to our shareholders by:

>
Being the leading
specialist recruitment
consultancy in
each of our chosen
markets

OUR SERVIGE

Over the last 38 years PageGroup has built a reputation far
excellence by placing skifled candidates into speciahst job roles
We build strong refabonshups with empicyers, enabling us to fully
understand the needs of therr iIndwidual businesses and, through
our large candidate database and the implementation of ngorous
candidate assessments, provide a best-in-class recruitment service
in terrns of speed of search and choice of candidates

We provide recrutment services for permanent contract and
temporary staff at clerical professional, gualfied professional

and executive level Our revenue (fee income) from permanent
placements 1s based typically on a percentage of the candidate’s
remuneration package and I1s manly derived from contingent fee
based assignments, but also includes some retained assignments
There ts no associated cost of sales with our permanent placements
other than the cost of adverhising so the majonty of the revenue
drops down to the gross margen (net fee income) line tn our

financeat statemants Revenue from temporary contract and intenm

Strategic Report

Delivering
profitable

growth across
the business

placements represents amounts biiled to clients for the services
of temporary, contract or intenm staff and, therefore, includes the
salanes paid to those staff plus a margin The saianes are inciuded
in cost of sales

Gross profit growth 1s the key indicator which we monitor as gross
profit represents total fee income for permanent placements after
advertising ¢costs and the margin on temporary placements We call
the ratio of operating profit to gross profit our “conversion rate™
This 1s also a key measure in our busINgss

With skill shortages around the world, we believe that there remains
a significant need for specialist recruitment services and we are
optimistic about our ability to grow our business in the Jong-term

Patelroup anmue! Report And mecount 2093




OUR BRANDS

PageGroup 1s organised into three brands cperating at different
levels of the recruitment market

Michael Page 1s the original PageGroup brand and s normally
established as the first business in each country we enter,
operating at the qualfied professional and management

level Page Personnet offers specialist recruitment services to
orgamsations requinng technical and administrative support,

Page Executive provides a range of search and selection
services for organisations looking for leadership talent at
senior management and board level

More details are provided on pages 13 and 14

professional clencal and jumor management level staff

PageGroup

EXECUTIVE .
SEARCH PageExecutive
QUALIFIED .
PROFESSIONAL Michael Page
CLERICAL
PROFESSIONAL PagePersonnel
GENERALIST
STAFFING
Michzel Page MichaelPage JrhicTes
S gt Personne] PaerPersamnel o
w Page: Micharl Page Par PagrPersonnel oot vocutnn PagePersonnel o
M‘m:;;l-‘ _hhr_lln Mithatlm [ Attt MichalPoy  Pagr ;= mchael
PageExecutive Whﬂnw Michzel Page iy, il raliy by Metwelbgy m
Efi—"”m_—ﬂ PageExecutive Dopex Mirchar] '
PageExeeutive actat Womatics  rahmasc m]ﬁk:hﬂt!“ Page
Poge Personinet Micharl Page N Fa PogeExecutove R I
m PagrPersonnel uiios & Logai Pagr Personnel o Page .rstmm.-
MichaelPage PagPersonnel ™= Mcmelbge ppre—e =
. MichaciPage  PagePersonne] Mehxibe .
Conpuprorin § Erirceghe  Pgted F——
T Mhad PagePersonnel  Micneimg  DageExecutrve
mﬂm Teenctgl Prer e
Do Poronned e e il P
PageExecutive PageExecutive M
Michael Page Pag Pesonn chac] Page
Turiema & Howtnleria Mict lm
‘e
FogrPersonne e
Michor)Poge Page Persannel Paﬁ —Cllﬁ\n't'
P b Michael Page
Powrrenact [T
MictaciPagx
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Strategic Report

ecutive search business of PageGroup,
ers a range of search, selection and management:§
organisations to attract and retain their leadership taléAt
on which we focus typically sit at the sub-board and boardk
Page Executive has a global presence, operating across Afi
Asia Pacific, Europe, North and Latin Amenca

Our approach

We have a flexible approach to talent attraction based on

chent requirements We offer global reach combined with local A
expertise Our diverse shorllists are based on a thorough search of
the market Results are delivered guickly and accurately

How we reach our audience

Page Executive has a developed network of senior contacts
across our operating temtones and markets This enables us to
approach and attract the top talent in the market for organisatiol
wishing to make a leadership hire We also run managed selec
campaigns which can include high profile or niche advertising;

Opportunities for growth

,Page Executive aims to diversify by market sector a

0ss our international network

FaaaGroup Arr ug! Report And Accoan?s 2013




Michael Page s the onginal PageGroup brand and 1s normally established as the
first business n each new country that we enter Michael Page 1s compnsed of
15 broad disciplines, each providing a service {6 a specialist area of the market

Michael Page

Page Personnel offers specialist recruitment services to organisations
requinng permanent employees or temporary or contract staff at the
technical and administrative support, professional clencal and junior
management levels Page Personnel operates in 21 countnes across
Asa Pacific, Europe, North and Latin Amenca

Our approach

Employers and candidates in a high actinty, high volume market require
a responsive recrutment partner — a service that Page Personnel s proud
to provide Speed and accuracy define our proposition, we react quickly
to ensure that organisations have access to the skills they require

Page Personnel operates in the permanent, contract and temperary

recruitment fields

How we reach our audience

Page Personne! supports employers needing to make hinng decisions
quickly by mantarmng and actively growing a pool of high quality candidates

ready for their next opportunity
Opportunities for growth

Page Personnel 1s one of the fastest growing PageGroup businesses,
dversifying by market and geography across our international network

FzneGroup Annaat Rpurt Ard Accow 2013

Operating at the qualified professional and management level, Michael Page
recruits on a permanent, temporary, contract or intenm basis Michael Page
operates in 34 countnes worldwide, across Afnca, Asia Pactfic, Europe, North
and Latin Amenca

Our approach

We focus on developing a thorough understanding of our clients’ businesses,
from technical and soft skill requirermnents to future growth plans We are then

able to partner effectively to manage their recruitment requirements to support

expansion, diversification or change programmes

How we reach our audience

Michael Page utilises a vanety of methods to source candidates from our
industry-leading databases through social media, networking and managed
advertising campaigns

Opportunities for growth

Michael Page aims to grow by organic expansion by establishing new specialist

disciplines in existing markets, by increasing operations geographically, and
by mowving into new market sectors in the geographic regions in which we
currently operate

PagePersonnel

Strategic Report
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OUR BUSINESS

OUR MARKETS

While the global economy remains challenging
we are optimistic about the long-term future of
the recruitment market.

During 2013 the difficult market conditions stemming from the
2008 global financial cnsis continued to have an impact and many
economies across the world remained weak, but with significant
regional vanations This 1s particularly refevant to our busmness
since the provision of recruitment services 1s impacted strongty by
confidence n the wider economy

Business confidence 1s a major factor in determining the number
of new job roles created and candidates’ levels of confidence are
a key determmant of the number of candidates seeking new roles
When the economy s strong the confidence of both businesses
and candidates leads to a high recruitment churn rate, which

1s positive for the recruitment industry Conversely when

macro-economic factors are weak and businesses and candidates
have low confidence in the market, the market for recruitment
services will contract The key driver of growth in the recrustment
market 15 churn rather than the creation of new jobs

Our markets are not just defined by the countnes within which
we operate, but aiso the industry sectors We are impacted
significantty by the changes in fortunes of different sectors as
well as different countnes

Peaks and troughs in different sectars have a huge impact on our
business For example, demand from China {ed to a huge boom in
the mining and naturat resources sector in both Austral:a and Brazil
n 2010-2012 and our businesses in these counines grew rapdly
as we fulfiled the crucial role of finding staff to satisfy the needs

of this sector However, the mining and natural resources sector
slowed in the second half of 2012 and our revenue was impacted
strongly This has continued during 2013

PERMANENT/TEMPORARY MIX

Our strategy s to achreve the same ratio of permanent to
temporary recrutment as exists within the werkforce of each of
our geographic markets We usa all three brands to maximise this
balance at all salary tevels

Gross Profit Permanent/Temporary Mix

100

80

60

%

40

20

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Strategic Report

The ratio of permanent to temporary recruitmeant tends (o be an
indicator of where we are In the economic cycle The proportion

of gross profit ansing from permanent placements generally

varies between 70% and 80% depending on where we are in the
economic cycle In 2013 76% of our gross prefit was denved from
permanent placements and 24% from temporary placements

The graph to the left shows the ratio over the last seven years

In several of our core strategic markets working 11 a temporary
role, or as a contractor or intenm employee, 1s not currently
normal practice This 1s the case, for example 1n Greater China,
Singapore, Malaysta and Latin Amenca The rattio of permanent
te temporary placements in the future wili therefore, De in part
determined by our success In diversifying into these markets

The ratio is also impacted by the salary tevel at which we recruit
Qur Page Personnel brand typically recruits a tigher proportion of
temporary staff compared to our other brands

B % Permanent Il %Temporary

PaaeGEroap Annssl R=pocl And Accoumts 201




DIVERSIFICATION OF DISCIPLINES

in crder to provide an added-value specialist recrustment and Logestics rather than our traditional core business area of
service 10 our clients, we orgamise our staff into specialist Finance The graph below demonstrates how the disciphine miex
teams, typically with consultants who were previously warking has changed over the last five years We can assume that this
within those specialist areas before rowving into recrtment mix will continue to davelop in the future

We operate under four broad categones which breakdown

nto 15 sub-disciphngs as shown in the key below Given these trends, we expect in the future to be more

dependent on the techmical disciplines such as Engineenng,

Below this level we specialise turther to ensure our speciahist Technology and Marketing than we are today We believe “
recruitment services meet our clients’ requirements the more specialist we are, the greater leverage we will have ?,;
For example, tax and treasury services within Finance, to counter internal or cutsourced resource teams who will @
and digital marketing within Marketing advertise and/or use secial media for more mamstream or =

commodit roles S
Each of the disciplines in which we operate respond differently ¥ type %

to changes in market conditions and, therefore, diversification
of disciphne 1s key to reducing our nsk in weak markets In Gross profit by discipline 2013
addition, different disciphines tend to dominate in different
geocgraphic regions Therefore, as we expand geographically,
new revenue opporturities arse from new disciplines

In the past, PageGroup has used #s expeanence and track
record to pnontise which disciphnes it [aunches and grows
Historically thus has meant that we launched offices in new
countries by focusing on the recruitment of Finance staff
Howaever, today, we take a more proactive business approach,
basing our decision on the size of the market competitive
landscape fee rate potential, etc In Southern Greater China
for example, we are priortising Engineening, Supply Chain

Gross Profit by Discipline
100 —

80

60

%
40

20

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

B Finance and Accounting [l Sales and Marketng [l Engineenng and Supply Chain B Legal, Technology, HR and other

Finance Sales Engineenng Legal
Financial Sernices Retail Ol and Gas Technology
Marketing Property and Construction Assistant/Secretanal
Procurement/Supply Chain/ Logistics Human Resources
Healthcare/Life Sciences

Hotel and Catering
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Although 2013 was a challenging year for the recrutment industry
and the global economy in general, PageGroup was able to deliver
a robust performance, with our key rmeasure of gross profit (net fee
incormne) just 2 5% lower than 2012 at £514m However, as a result
of our focus on operatonal efficiencies, we delivered an operating
profit before exceptional items of £68 2m, exceeding the prior year
by 4 7%

We achieved good performances in our significant UK and US
markets, and also in Spam, the UAE, Mexico and Japan There
were also some signs of recovery in Continental Europe towards
the end of the year In contrast Australia remained a difficult
market, with the continued downturn in the resources sector, and
our largest bustness in Latin America Brazil, felt the impact of
more challanging condtions The refocusing of the business m the
USA has been highly successful We now have a fast growing and
profitable business in this region which has considerable potental
for PageGroup Overall, year-on-year gross profit growth was
expenienced in 20 of the 34 countres in which we operata

A strategic objective In 2013 was to imitiate a stronger focus on

the consistency and efficiency of our operational support teams
Operaticnal support headcount has been reduced by 155 while
tee earner headcount has increased by 186 anet overall Increase
in headcount of 31 At the same time, we continue to work on
ways to deliver the optimal infrastructure and technology to enable
cur people to best serve the needs of chents and candidates alike

The savings made n operational support had a positive impact on
our cost base of approximately £10m in 2013 and hence on our
performance In total, approximately £20m of recurnng costs were
removed from the business, with the full benefit to be felt n 2014
These savings will help mitigate cost base growth elsawhere

such as salary increases representing £14m at approximatety

3% per head, nvestments n additional fee earner headcount,

and in the supporting infrastructure, ncluding the first full year of

Strategic Report

Steve ingham (Chief Executive Officer}

amortisation of the Gateway IT project mtangible asset of around
£8 5m (2013 £54m)

Dunng 2013, we also continued 1o invest in our large, high potential
markets of China, South East Asia, Germany Latn Amenca and
the USA wlentified in our jong-term growth strategy We see these
markets as sizeable long-term opportunihes ta achieve or in most
cases improve, our significant market share and consolidaie our
position as the established market leader We are also rrundfut
that these markets will develop according to local conditions and
market character and along diffenng timeframes Qur financiat
comrmitiment 1o these markets 1s couptled with the investment in
transferring highly expenenced PageGroup managers to lead the
efforts N country which also ensures that the unique PageGroup
culture and best practice 1s adopted from the outset Thisis a
signiicant advantage for us, and 1s fundamental {o our consistent
organic growth strategy, both across the economic cycle and as
we look to grow in new markets
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Current trading and Outlook

Tha sirength and timing of any recovery in world econemic
markets 1s uncertan, our visibiity refatively short and

we remain exposed 0 some volatle economies This s
demonstrated by the recent adverse movements in foreign
currencies that are impacting our overseas results when
translated into Sterbng (impact on 2014 operating profit of
approxirmately £4m at current exchange rates) However

we have continued to invest :n additional fee earner headeount
in selected markets since the start of the year We believe

our clear and consistent growth strategy, cur geographic

and discipline diversity and our strong balance sheet with

£85 million of net cash at year end, ensures that we remain in
a strong position to respond to any improvements 1N market 4 March 2014

Increase of 5% In the tota! dividend to 10 5p
2014 1 an announcement on 15 Apnl 2014

by the Board on 4 March 2014

Steve ingham,
Chief Executive Office

WE BELIEVE THAT OUR GOAL OF GROWTH OVER THE
NEXT FEW YEARS IS ACHIEVABLE

We have the management depth and experience

We have a proven track record of scaling the business

We have world-renowned and fully integrated brands

We have highly trained and motivated consultants

We have the financial resources

We have the ability to improve the quality and cost
effectiveness of the operational support functions

We are at a promising point in the econamic cycle
with markets starting to show signs of improvement

PagaCroup Annmal Repsort And Account. 2013

conditions in 2014 This 15 2lso reflectad in our proposed

We will next update the market on our first quarter trading for

This Strateqic Report set out on pageg 7 to 49 was approved
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We measure our progress against our strategic objectives using the following key performance ndicators

Gross profit growth

How measured Gross profit represents revenue less cos? of sales and
conststs of the total placement fees of permanent candidates, the margin s
earned on the placement of temporary candidates and the margin on
advertising income, 1e it represents net fee income The measure used 1s
the tncrease or decrease (n gross profit as a percentage of the pnor year
gross profit

Why it's important. The growth of gross profit relative to the previous year
is an (ndicator of the growth of the net fees from the business as a whole |t
demonstrates whether we are in line with our strategy to grow the business
How we performed in 2013 With continued ecenormic weakness in

many of our markets, gross profit decreased by 2 5% 10 2013 However,
tha Group remains profitabie in all established markets and there were signs -a0k 2009
of improverment towards the end of the year

Relevant strategic objective Organic growth

2010 5041

Percentage of gross profit generated outside the UK o

How measured Total gross prohit from regions cutside the UK expressed as
a parcentage of total gross profit

a0

Why it's important: To measure the success of our strategy to diversify into
new markets which are less competitive/less developed than the UK market

How we performed in 2013 76% of our gross profit was generated outside ©
the UK compared 1o 77% in 2012 We have continued our strategy of
geographic diversification but the propertion of business generated outside
the UK has falien back shghtly due to a good performance in the UK in 2013
and shightly weaker performances in EMEA and Asia Pacific relative to the
nnor year © 2009 2010 20,1 z012 2013
Relevant strategic objective Diversification

[ RO
M s Ouenacte UK

20

Gross profit outside finance and accountancy

How measured Total gross profit from disciptines outside of finance
and accounting expressed as a percentage of totat gross profit

Why it's mportant We look at the propartion of gross profit from the different
disciplines 1o measure the success of our strategy of diversification Into more
disciplines 10 reduce our exposuire 10 any one sector A key indicator Is the
percentage outside of our ongmal core disciphine of finance and accountancy

How we performed in 2013 59% of our gross profit was generated from
disciplines outside the core areas of finance and accounting This compares
to 58% 1n 2012 as we continue ta follow our diversification strategy

Relevant strateg:c objective Dwersification

BB 3 F onnc ancd
. countng

M % Dutseds Fnnca
And Booountg

2009 019 201 2012 20.3

Ratio of gross profits generated from permanent
and temporary placements

How measured Gross profit from each type of placement expressed as a
percentage of totat gross profit

Why it’s important. This ratio helps us to understand where we are n the
economic cycle since the tempaorary market tends to be more resiient when
the economy 15 weak

3

3

A » Torooran
[ RN
How we performed in 2013 In 2013, 76% of our grass profit was generated
from permanent placements and 24% from temporary This compares to
78% permanent and 22% temporary in 2012

Relevant strategic objective Diversification

3

2009 2010 2011 20 2 2043
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Gross profit per fee earner

How measured Gross profit for the year divided by the average
number of fee generating operating staff in the year

Why it's important. This 1s a key indicator of productivity

How we performed in 2013 Gross profit per fee samer was £139 2k
0 2013 comparad to £140 4kin 2012 There has been a marginal
decrease Iin productivity compared to 2012 relating to continued
competitive pressura on fees and mvestment in fee earning heads
duning the year who are not yet at fuli productivity

Relevant strategic objective Organic growth, Recruit and develop the
best people

200

150

W £'000 gross proft per foaa saenee

=

2003 216 2611 012 2013

Conversion before exceptional items

How measured Operating profit before interest and taxation (EBIT)
before exceptional items as a percentage of gross profit

Why it's immportant Thes dernonstrates the Group's effectiveness at
controlling the costs and expenses associated with its normal business
operations It witl be impacted by the leval of productivity and the level
of investment for future growth

How we performed in 2013 Operating profit as a percentage of gross
profit Increased to 13 3% in 2013, up from 12 4% n the prior year
Improving efficiency 1s a strategic priority for the Group and dunng
2013 there has been a focus on streamiining support areas and cutting
costs Operational support heads were reduced by 155 dunng the year
However there has been corresponding increase in fee earning heads
and the benefits are not expected to feed through untit 2014 when the
new heads are fully productive

Relevant strategic objective Build for the long-term

B ERIT as 91 of Grozs Pre't

=

208 o1 i 2012 3

Basic earnings per share before exceptional tems

How measured Profit for the year attributable to the Group's equity
shareholders, divided by the weighted average number of shares in
issue dunng the year

Why 1t's important This measures the overall profitability of the Group

How we performed i 2013 Earnings per share in 2013 was 15 1p
an 11 0% improvemeni on the EPS 1n 2012 of 13 6 pence

Relevant strategic objective Build for the long-term, Organic growth

20

& Earnings per thave {pence)

="

2008 2010 0% 22 2013

Days sales outstanding {DSQ)
How measured Calculated by companng how many days’ billings it
takes to cover the outstanding debtor balance at the year end

Why it's iImportant. Thts measures the length of tme taken for us

to receive payment from our clients and indicates how well we are
managing the Group's major asset

How we performed in 2013 DSO was 47 days at the end of 2013 in
line with the pnor year (2012 47 days)

Relevant strategic objective Build for the long-term

55

45

40

M Days sales cutfiand na (no of cays)

=

2008 2010 2041 2012 2033

Net cash

How measured Cash and shori-term deposits less bank overdrafts
and loans

Why 1t's important. The level of net cash is a key measure of our
success in managing our working capital and determines our ability
to reinvest in the business and to retum cash to shareholders

How we performed in 2013 Net cash increased dunng the year (o
£854m (2012 £61 4)

Relevant strategic objective Butld for the long-term

PagsGroup Annuai Aapart Avd Accow t 2013
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OUR PERFORMANCE IN 2013

Market condibons in 2013 made for another challenging year, but the Group delivered an increase over 2012 in operating profit (before
and after exceptional items}, despite gross profit (net fee income) being down 2 5% We were encouraged by our performance in 04,
which saw our first posiive growth in constant currency since Q1 of 2012, and by the improvement in the year-on-year quartery gross
profit growth rate in each of the last three quarters Year-on-year gross profit growth was experienced in 20 countnes and we finished the
year with a strong balance sheet and £85m of net cash

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 was £1,005 5m, exceeding our revenua in 2012 of £989 8m by 1 6% OQur revenue from
permanent placements decreased by 4 5% 1o £403 tm (2012 £422 0m), while revenue from temposary recruitment was up by 6 1%

at £602 5m (2012 £567 9m} The differences in these performances are in line with what we would normally expect at this pont m the
cycle, as temporary recruitment tends to pick up earlier in the recovery but will be overtaken by the subseguent much faster recovery in
permanent recruitment

Gross Profit (net fee income)
Gross profit for the year fell by 2 5% to £513 9m (2012 £526 9m)

Growth rates
Perm/Temp gross profit 2013 (£'m) 2012{€'m) Reported rate Constant cumency
Permanent 382.2 409 7 -4 3% -4 3%
Temporary 1217 1172 +3 8% +2 7%
Totat Gross Profit 5139 5269 -2 5% 27%

Ratio (Permy/Temp) 76 24 7822

Gross profit from permanent placements decreased by 4 3% and represented 76 3% of Group gross profit (2012 77 8%) while grass
profit from temporary placements increased by 3 8% representing 23 7% (2012 22 2%) of Group gross profit

Group gross margin decreased to 51 19 (2012 53 2%) reflecting the 1 5% growth in the proportion of temporary busmess and a small
reduction in the gross margin achieved on temporary placerments to 20 2% (2012 20 6%}, where strong pricing in rapsdiy growing
markets has been offset by competitive pressures elsewhere

Gross Profit by discipline
Growth rates
Proportion 2013 {£'m) 2012 (£'m} Reported rate Constant cunrency

Finance & Accounting 41% M7 2206 -4 0% -4 4%
Legal, Technology HR, Secretanal and other 20% 1052 106 4 -11% -15%
Engineering, Property & Construction

Procurerment & Supply Chain 209% 1010 1028 -1 8% -16%
Marketing, Sales & Retal 19% 960 a7 1 -1 1% -14%
Total 100% 5139 5269 -25% -27%

Diversshication by discipline 1S a core element of cur strategy Our oldest discipline, Finance and Accounting, now represents just

41% of Group gross profit, white 59% 1s generated from other areas, significantly reducing our exposure to any particular market sector
and reducing our overall nsk Our diversification mto Engineenng, Procurernent & Supply Cham and Property & Construction has been
particuiarly successful and this category now represents nearly 20% of our gress profit Financial Services once approximately 14%

of Group gross profit now only represents approximately 7% of Group and 4% of UK gross proft, but has remained stable at this level
for the past six quarters

Gross Profit by region
Growth rates
Proportion 2013 (E'm) 2012 {£’'m) Reported rate Constant currency

EMEA 40% 2078 2184 -4 896 -82%
UK 24% 124 1 1214 +2 2% +22%
Asta Pacific -~ Australta and New Zealand 397 517 -23 1% -190%

Asia 66 1 832 +4 6% +6 9%

Total 21% 1058 1149 -7 9% -4 7%
Amencas 5% 76.2 722 +5 6% +B7%
Group Total 100% 5139 5269 -25% 27%

21 Strategic Report Paeliaup Anruil Report And Accaunts 2013




Our strategy of diversification by region has reduced our
exposure to changes in market conditions The rate of growth
1s impacted by the strengths of the economies and the
matunity/competitiveness of the recruitment markets in each
region We have continued to invest in the large, high potential
markets of the US, Germany, Latin Amenca, Greater China and
Scuth East Asia and have seen some of the benefits of this
investment with year-on-year growth of 8 7% 1n the Amencas
and 6 9% in Asia We delivered year-on-year gross profit
growth in 20 countnes and record breaking performances n
China, Japan, Turkey Russta, UAE, Malaysia, Mexico

and Chile

Administration costs and conversion of
gross profit to operating profit

Dunng the year we remamed focused on the conversion of
gross profit {o operating profit through improved cperational
efficiency Dunng 2013 we undertook an exercise to
standardise and streamiine many of our operational suppert
functions, which drove sigreficant cost savings, a reduction of
approximately £10m in operational support costs i 2013 and
run-rate savings of approximately £20m by the end of the year
With around 756% of our cost base relating to employee costs
& decrease of 155 operational support staff duning 2013 drove
sigrificant savings Most of this decrease was 1n our European
operatians, which with relatively tugh employment and social
charges meant that associated one-off costs offset some of the
savings achieved in 2013 The full benefit of this exercise will
be seenin 2014

The conversion of gross profit to operating profit s also
impacied by our iInvestment strategy In 2013 we continued to
pursue our strategy of investing in cur high potential markets
as well as investing In our existing markets to drive ther long-
term potential Overall we increased our fee-earner headcount

Group quarterly Headcount and Gross Profit
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by 186 dunng the year Naturally it takes some time before
these new fee-earners reach full productivity and this together
with the other start-up costs incurred as investments are
made to open or expand new offices, adversely impacted

the conversion rate

Administration expeanses in the year included share based
charges of £6 8m including social secunty, (2012 £13 2m})

In respect of the Group's deferred annual bonus scheme,
long-term incentive pian and share option schemes

The reduction in the charge compared to 2012 was pnimanly
due to some performance elements not being met, causing
charges for these ptans made in previous years 1o be credited
n 2013

The net position taking into account savings made from

our operational support efficiency iIndiatives, the cost of
Investments in fee-earners and our operatng platform and
share costs was an overall net increasa of 31 heads, but

a decrease of £16 Om i oyr administration costs (before
exceptional items) a 3 5% reduction on 2012 Our conversion
rate of gross profit to operating profit increased to 13 3%
dunng the year (2012 12 49%)
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In normat circumstances the operational gearing of the
business model leads us 1o expect that a decline in gross profit
will lead to a larger proportionate decrease in operating profit
However 10 2013 although there was a 2 5% decrease in
gross profit, operating profit before excephonal items increased
by 4 79, as a result of the streamlining of our operational
support functions
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OUR PERFORMANCE IN 2013

Exceptional Items
French Profit Share

In October 2013, Page Personne! France (PPF) received notice
from the Competent Authonities of the UK and France of their
decision regarding a transfer pncing case that had ansen as a
result of a French tax audst 1n March 2008 The decision, which
was unexpected, increased the profit generated by PPF which,

as per the mandatory profit share or “participation aux resuitats
de 'entreprisa” that s particular to France, drove a requirement to
pay increased employee profit share, both to employees of PPF
and also to the temporary workers placed by that company

As aresult the Group has taken in 2013, an exceptiona) operating
profit charge of £2 5m interest expense on late payment of
corporation tax and profit share of £0 6m and an addiional tax
charge on the exceptional item of £0 7m relating to pricr penods
A further £0 6m retating to 2013 1s included within operating profits
from undertying actmties together with a tax credit of £0 1m,
which have not been treated as exceptional iterns A proportion

of these charges were determined by the tax ruling, with the
remainder for other years based on assumptions

Restructunng charge

in 2012 there was an exceptional restructuring charge of £7 8m
relating to the removal of a layer of management in Continental
Europe and the Amencas

Amortisation of intangible assets

In May, we commenced use of cur new operating system and
related applications in Boston USA, and accordingly, began the
amortisation of these mtangible assets over a ive year penod
The 2013 charge for these intangible assets was £5 4m, reflecting
the eight months of amortisation in 2013

Taxation

Tax on profit was £21 5m (2012 £20 8m) This represented an
effective tax rate of 33 5% after exceptional itemns (2012 36 5%)
Betore exceptional items the Group's effective tax rate was 30 9%
(2012 36 0%) The rate s hgher than the effective UK Corporation
Tax rate for the year of 23 25% due tc disallowable items of
expenditure and profits being generated in countnas where
corporation tax rates are higher than in the UK The effective tax
rate 1s lower than in 2012 due to the benefit of additional net future
and current deductions for share based reward plans n the UK and
overseas terntones of approximatety 4 1%, partially offset by taxes
on the current year exceptional stem of approximately 1 1%

Share Options and Share repurchases

At the beginning of 2013, the Group had 22 Bm share options
outstanding, of which 3 5m had vested but had not been
exercised Durng the year options were granted over 4 6m shares
under the Group’s Share Option Plans options were exercised
over 4 5m shares, generating £14 4m in cash, and options

lapsed over 1 Im shares At the end of 2013, options remained
outstanding over 21 Bm shares, of which 7 9m had vested but had
not been exercised Dunng 2013, the Group s Employee Benefit
Trust did not purchase any shares to satisfy employee share plan
awards (2012 £1Bm) and no shares were repurghased by the
Company and cancelled dunng the year (2012 nif)

Strategic Report

Earnings per share and dividends

In 2013, basic earmings per share before excephonal items
increased by 11 0% to 15 ip (2012 13 6p) reflecting our focus
on improving efficiency, and a lower effective tax rate Diluted
earnings per share, before exceptional tems which takes

Into account the ditlution effect of share plans, was 14 9p

{2012 13 5p) After exceptonal tems basrc earnings per share
was 13 Bp, an increase of 16 0% on 11 9p 1n 2012 and diluted
earmings per share was 13 7p (2012 11 7p)

The Group's strategy 15 to pay dividends to shareholders at a
level that the Board beligvas 1s sustainable through economic
cycles, while maintaining a strong batance sheet to support the
required investment in the growth and development of the Group
In ine with the ncrease in operating profits, the improved gross
profit growth rates expenenced as the year progressed and the
improved outtook In a number of the Group’s markets, a final
dividend of 7 25p (2012 6 75p) per ordinary share 1s proposed,
which, together with the interm dividend of 3 25p (2012 3 25p}
per ordinary share, increases the total dividend for the year by

5 0% over 2012 to 10 5p per ordinary share The proposed final
dividend, which amounts to £22 2m, will be paid on 23 June 2014
to shareholders on the register as at 23 May 2014, subject to
shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting

Cash Fiow and Balance Sheet

Cash flow in tha year was strong with £24 Om of net cash being
generated to bring the closing net cash balance to £85 4m at

31 December 2013 The Group has a £50m invoice financing
arrangement and a £10m committed overdrafi faciity in place to
ease cash flow across its operations and ensure access to funds
should they be required, but nesther of these were In use at the
year end

The diagram beiow shows the main drivers of our cash flow dunng
the year
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The movements in the Group s cash flow in 2013 reflected
improvements in many of the Group's markets as the

year progressed The increase of 1 69 n the Group's revenue
drove a £10 3m increase In working capital This comprised
an increase of £8 5m in receivables compared to a decrease
of £7 5m n 2012, as well as a decraase in payables of £1 8m,
compared to last year's decrease of 5 Im

Capital expendsture was £3 6m lower in 2013 at £13 Im
{2012 £16 9m} Our caprtal expenditure 1s driven pnimarily by
headcount in terms of expenditure on office accommodation
and infrastructure, and by the development and mamnienance
of our IT systems The lower level of capital expenditure
reflects the reduced spending on scftware development

Dividend payments were in line with the pnor year at £30 8m
(2012 230 6m) However, there were sizeable differences

In cashfiow as a result of the purchase and 1ssue of shares
related to share optons In 2013, £14 4m was received by the
Group from the exercise of options compared 10 only £7 Bm
recewved in 2012 In addition 1n 2013, no cash was used to
purchase shares for the Employee Benefdt Trust to satisfy future
employee share awards, whereas 1n 2012, £18 Om was used
for this purpose

The most significant iterm in cur balance sheet 1s trade
recevables which amounted {0 £146 7m at 31 December 2013
(2012 £141 7m) Days sales in debtors at 31 December 2013
was 47 days (2012 47 days)

Treasury Management and Currency Risk

It 1s the Cirectors’ intention to continue to finance the actoities
and development of the Group from retained earnings and

to operate the Group's business while maintaining a strong
batance sheet position

Cash surpluses are invested i short-term deposits, with any
working capital requirements being prowided from Group cash
resources Group facilities, or by local overdraft facdities The
Group has a multi-currency notional cash pool between the
Eurozone subsidianes and the UK-based Group Treasury
subsidiary which factitates interest and balance compensation
of cash and bank overdrafts

Foreign Exchange Transiation nisk

In 2013 the Group operated in 34 countres around the world
and carried out transactions recorded in twenty five local
currencies In line with nommal accounting policies, the Group's
Income Statement and Cash Flow Staterment are reported in
Pounds Stering using the average exchange rate for each
month to translate the focal currency into Sterling and the
balance sheet is translated at the closing rate of exchange at
the balance sheet date The Group is therefore exposed to
foreign currancy translation differences in accounting for its
overseas operations Qur policy 1s not to hedge this exposure

Foreign Exchange Transacbon risk

As a service company, most of the Group's transactions are
within the respective temtones in which the local businesses
operate and therefore there are few cross-border transactions
between Group companies This means that the Group does
not have a material exposure {o transachonat currency nisk nor
a matenat exposure to foreign denominated maonetary assets
and habiktes

Royalties are charged for the use of the Group’s trademarks
and management fees are charged for Group and regional
functions that provide services to other Group subsidiary
comparnies Foreign exchange gamns and losses are

Fagslroep Annas Report Ara Acceu -1, 2013

recognised 1 accordance with IFRS on the settlement of
these transactions where the cash received, when converted
into Stering, differs from the amounts previously recorded in
the Income Statement These exchange gains and lesses are
included within operating profit

In certain casas where the Group gives or receives short-
term loans to and from other Group companies with different
reporitng cutrencies It may use foreign exchange swap
denvative financial instruments o manage the currency and
Interest rate exposure that anses on these loans Itis the
Group's policy not to seek to designate these denvatives

as hedges

The table below shows the relative movements of the
Group’s matn trading currencies against Stering dunng 2013
when compared to those prevalent dunng 2012 Negaiive
percentages indicate that Sterling has weakened against the
fareign currency dunng tha penod

Movement in

the average Movement in
exchange rate the year end
used for Income  exchange rate

Statement used for Balance

translation Sheet translation

between 2012 between 2012
Currency and 2013 and 2013
Euro -4% -3%
Swiss Franc -2% 1%
Brazdéian Real 10% 17%
US Dallar -1% 2%
Austraiian Dollar T% 18%
Hong Kang Doltar 1% 2%
Singapare Dollar 1% 5%
Chinese Renmentor -4% 1%
Japanese Yen 20% 24%

A table showing the impact of a 10% strengthening of Sterling

against the man curencies to which the Group 1s exposed on

both the Group's equity at the balance sheet date and on profit
before tax for the year 1s shown on page 121
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CONTINENTAL EUROPE,
MIDDLE EAST & AFRICA

2013 Regional Review

EMEA Is our largest region, representing 40% of the Group's
gross profit for the year (2012 41%) Revenue i the year was
£407m, which was 1% higher than 2012 {constant currency
-2 9%) However gross profit at £208m was 4 9% jower than
2012 {constant currency -8 2%)

Market conditions remained challenging across the region,
part:cudarly in our targest markets of France and Germany which
1s a predominantly permanent recruitment business France and

Germany make up 50% of aur EMEA region and both countries While our businesses n EMEA expenenced a decling of 8 2%
saw gross profit decrease in the year However, while these two 1n gross profit at constant currency over the year, there were
markets remain challenging they improved as the year progressed encouraging signs of improvernent as the year progressed, with
and our optirmisim has increased with regard {o therr outiook In the decline in the fourth quarner only 1 3% At the end of the year,
France we operate under all three of our brands, Page Executive France and Germany looked close to returning to positive grawth
Michael Page and Page Personnel Page Personnel alone would In additton, strong performances were seen In many counines,
be France's market leader in professional racruitment with over most notably in the UAE {+15%) Turkey (+4695) and Spamn {+9%)
250 consultants and a focus on salanes below 45,000 Euro 1t as well as in Portugal, Sweden, Poland Ireland, Russia and Qatar

pomanly a temporary recruitment business, but aiso undertakes
permanent recrutment In the fourth quarter this business grew
9 1%, with permanent recrutment up 1 2% and termporary
recrutment up 15 2%

Our headcount in the region declined dunng the year by 154
heads This was largely a result of our strategy to seek out
efficiencies and conststency across the regions with 130 of the
decraase related to operationa! support roles representing a 21%

Germany s seen as a strategic high potential growih market for the decrease in operational support heads Fee-earngr headcount
Group As discussed in the strategy secton we remain, therefore, declined by 24 duning the year, but was up 47 in the fourth quarter
commuitted to continuing our investment in Germany to grow the reflecting our growing optimism (in the region
business despite continued challenging trading conditions
Growth rates
2013 2012 Reported rate Constant currency

Revenue £407 Om £403 2m +0 9% -2 9%

Gross Profit {nst fee income) €207 8m £218 4m -4 9% -82%

Operating profit before exceptional tems £25 9m £22 1m +17 5%

Conversion (operating profit/gross profi} 12.5% 101%

Year end staff headcount 1,886 2,040 -7 5%

Percentage of Group gross profit 40 4% 41 4%
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EMEA

GROSS PROFIT AND HEADCOUNT

Gross Profit {Net Fee Income)
2013 2012

o1 o1
VBl £55.1m Q2
03 03
04 04

HEADCOUNT (YEAR END)

2013:1,886

GROSS PROFIT PERMANENT TO TEMPORARY RATIO
Permanent Temporary

2013 72% 28%

2042 75% 25%

GROSS PROFIT BY DISCIPLINE
2013 2012

I Finance & Accounting B Marketing, Sales and Retall
B Legal, Technology, HR, Secretaral and Healtheare
W Engmeenng, Property & Construction, Procurement & Supply Chain

HIGHLIGHTS

+ EMEA gross profit declined by 4.9% at reported
rates and 8.2% in constant currency

* However, growing optimism in the outlook for
the region

* Operational support heads decreased by 21%

* 9 countries experienced gross profit growth

FanaGioup Anoul Rapart Ang Accourt 2043

£207.8m

Gross profit

£25.9m

Qperating profit
before exceptionat items

40%

of PageGroup gross profit
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Headcount
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Offices

14

Disciplines
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UK

2013 Regional Review

The UK 1s the most established and largest business in the Group,
but following our strategy of geographic dwersification now
represents just 24% of Group gross profits. Growth returned to the
UK 1n the second quarter of 2013 and full year revenue increased
by 09% on 2012 to £299m Full year gross profit grew by 2 2% to
£124m, with gross profit growth rates increasing throughout 2013

The UK business 1s highly diverse, recriiting for many industnes
and professions and acress a broad salary spectrum Although
markets remained chalienging in 2013, we continued to capitalise
on our disctpline diversification and depth of management
expenence Strong performances were seen in ow Logistics,
Procurement & Supply Chain and Property & Construction
businesses Our newer disciplines such as Digital Marketing and
Design atso performed very well year-on-year Public sector, which
compnses just over 13% of the UK business, grew 25% year-
on-year while growth n the private sector remained flat The UK
region’s dependence on financial services has fallen considerably
in recent years and now represents a stable 49 of UK gross profit,
compared to its peak of approximately 11% in 2007

Qur Page Personnel brand representing 19% of the UK business,
grew by 21% in the fourth quarter of the year, with permanent
recruitment up 27% and femporary recruitment up 13% Page
Personnel focuses on reles with a salary below £40 000 and,

therefore, in ing with the job markset at this level, recruits a higher
proportion of temporary roles Tymically, as markets recover
lower-level job recruitment tends to improve fust, which was
reflected in the growth rate for permanent recruitment being
tugher than in tempaorary

We continue to focus on cur conversion rate Operating profit
befare exceptional items increased by 16 6% to £18 4m and
conversion of gross profit to operating profit increased to 14 8%
In the year from 13% 1n 2012

Headcount increased by B2 during 2013, the majonty of which
were fee earners, reflecting stronger market conditions and,
with confidence slowly improving, we believe that we are well
posiioned to take advaniage should the economy continue s
recovery In 2014

2013 2012 Growth rate
Revenue £208 6m 2295 Gm +0 9%
Gross Profit {net fee income) £124.1m £121 4m +22%
Cperating profit before exceplional tems £18 4m £15 8m +16 6%
Conversion {operating profit/gross profit) 14 8% 13 0%
Year end staff headcount 1,319 1,237 +6 6%
Percentage of Group gross profit 24 1% 23 0%

Strategic Report
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UK

GROSS PROFIT AND HEADCOUNT

Gross Profit (Net Fee income)
2013 20142

ot al
a2 0z
Q3 il £29.5m

5m

WL £31. AUl £30.2m

HEADCOUNT (YEAR END)

2013:1,319 2012: 1,237

GROSS PROFIT PERMANENT TO TEMPORARY RATIO

Permanent Tempaorary
2013 71% - 29%

2012 70% 30%

GROSS PROFIT BY DISCIPLINE
2013 2012

OO0

B Finance & Accounting Il Marksting, Sales and Retai
B Legal, Technology, HR, Secretanal 2nd Healtheare
Il Engineenng, Property & Construction, Procurement & Supply Chain

HIGHLIGHTS

* UK market showing signs of recovery

* Gross Profit grew 2.2% in 2013 with the growth
rate improving each quarter

* Page Personnel (19% of UK) gross profit up 14%

* Michael Page/Page Executive {81% of UK) gross
profit in line with 2012

* Procurement and Supply Chain, Digital Marketing,
Property and Construction all performed strongly

PansGroLp Anna J Rap. st And Accourts 2013

£124.1m

Gross profit

£18.4m

Operating profit
before excepticnal items
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of PageGroup gross profit
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1,319

Headcount

28

Offices

13

Disciplines
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ASIA PACIFIC

2013 Regional Review

Trading i our Asia Pacific region continued to be impacted by the
difficult trading condstions in Austral:a The region contabuted 21%
of Group gross profitin 2013 {2012 22%) Revenue decreased
15% to £189 4m gross profit decreased by 7 9% and operating
profit decreased by 33 6%

In constant currency gross profit for the region decreased by 4 7%,
with combined gross profit for Australia and New Zealand down
18% on the previous year as a result of the continued siow-down
in the mining and natural resources sector in Australia and its effect
on the wider economy Consequently, having represented 44% of
the region’s gross profit in 2012, this felf to 36% 10 2013 in 201
and 2012, we achieved an exceptional performance from our
Australan business, largely driven by the expansion of the mining
and natural resources sector that drove the Australian economy,
despite the effects of the global financial cnsis expenenced in most
major economies around the world However, as the resources
sector slowed impacting the wider economy, our Australian
business found trading conditions difficudt dunng 2013 and gross
profit dechined by 20% in constant currency to approximately
£38m Market condittons in Australia remain difficult but stable

In contrast, our Asia businesses continued to grow year-or—year
delivering a record gross proft performance in 2013 with growth
of 7% on the prior year Asta now represents 62% of the region’s
gross profit compared to 55% 1N 2012 and only 39% in 2008
Greater China grew by 1% 1n temms of gross profit year-on-year,
India by 23%, Malaysia by 80% and Japan grew by 25%

and fimshed the year with a recerd guarterly perfermanca in
quarter four

Headcount across the region as a whale increased by 75 (7 %),
with Australasia headcount down by 8% and Asia up by 18%
We expect that headcount will continue to increase in Asia in
2014 n ine with our strategy of investing in our strategic high-
potential growth markets which include Greater China and
South East Asia

Growth rates

2013 2012 Reported rate  Constani currency
Revenue €188 4m £192 2m -15% +34%
Gross Profit (net fee income) £105.8m £114 9m -7 9% -47%
QOperating profit befor: exceptional items £19.2m £29 0 -336%
Conversion {operaiing profit/gross prohit) 182% 252%
Year end staff headcount 1,111 1,036 +7 2%
Parcentage of Group gross profit 20 6% 218%

29 Strategic Report
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ASIA PACIFIC

GROSS PROFIT AND HEADCOUNT
Gross Profit (Net Fee Income)
2013 2012

a a1

Q2 0 3l £30.6m

03 03
04 04

HEADCOUNT (YEAR END)

2013: 1,11 2012:1,036

GROSS PROFIT PERMANENT TO TEMPORARY RATIO

Permanent Temporary

85% 5%

85% . 15%

GROSS PROFIT BY DISCIPLINE
2013 2012

OO0

H Finance & Accounting Ml Marketmg Sales and Retal
[l Legal, Technology, HR, Secretanal and Healthcare

2013
2012

8 Engineenng, Property & Construction, Procurement & Supply Chain

HIGHLIGHTS

* Asia delivered record gross profit

+ Headcount in Greater China up over 19% in 2013

* Australia still experiencing difficult
trading conditions and adverse foreign
exchange movements

FagalT.p Anol-l Aep.rt Ard Accrart, 2013

£105.8m

Gross profit

£19.2m

Operating profit
hefore exceptional items

21 %

of PageGroup gross profit

1,111

Headcount

23

Offices

13

Disciplines
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THE AMERICAS

2013 Regional Review

The Amencas region represented 15% of the Group s gross profit
during 2013 (2012 14%) Revenue increased by 12 1% to £111m
(2012 £98m) and gross profit Increased by § 6% to £76m (2012
£72m) 1n constant currency, gross profit grew by 8 7%

Cperating profit ncreased significantly 1o £4 6m from a loss of
£1 7m in 2012, with the conversion rate sncreasing to 6 1% from
-23% in 2012

in North Amenca, the USA performed particularly well with gross
proft growing 31% to £25 8m Market sentiment continued to
imprave m the USA and this along with the management changes
N 2012 and subseguent nvestments made m 2013 to strengthen

the teams across the region has draven Improvements in gross 37% of our Latin Amencan region performing extremely well, with
profit and the conversion rate The LISA business now operates Mexico increasing gross profit by 22% to £8 2rn, Chite increasing
from nine offices hawving opened an office n Los Angeles dunng its gross profit by 20% o £5 0m and our newer bUsINEss N

the year Colombia grawing gross profit in excess of 100%, all three

recorded record gross profit years
In Latin Amenca, our largest business, Brazil, feft the impact of 9 P y

tougher economic conditions and censequently gross profit fell Overall headcount in the Amencas region increased by 28
by 8% However, overall gross profit in Latin Amenca increased Headcount in the USA was up by 20% and 1s now approaching
by 1% due to our other Latin Amencan countres, representing 250 and we have over 500 heads in Latin America
Growth rates
2013 2012 Reported rate  Constant cuirency
Revenue £110 5m £98 6m +12 1% +15 1%
Grass profit {net fea iIncome) £76.2m £72 2m +5 6% +B87%
Operating profit before exceptional items £4.6m -£17m +374%
Conversion {operating profit/gross profit) 6.1% -23%
Year end staff headcount 814 785 36%
Percentage of Group gross profit 148% 137%
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THE AMERICAS

GROSS PROFIT AND HEADCOUNT £ 7 6 2 m
Gross Profit (Net Fee Income) ]

2013 2012 Gross profit

VI £18.4m A £18.7/m
Iy £20.6m UZal £18.7m
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WKEN  £20.2m Q3 £17.8m
m o IR £4 6m
3
Operating profit
HEADCOUNT (YEAR END) before exceptional items

2013: 814 2012: 786

GROSS PROFIT PERMANENT TO TEMPORARY RATIO

Permanent Temporary

0
2013 B6% 14%
2042 89% 1% of PageGroup gross profit

GROSS PROFIT BY DISCIPLINE

2013 2012
Headcount

OO

B Finance & Accounting B Marketing, Sa'es and Retall
I Legal, Technology, HR, Secretanal and Healthcare

31

B Engitneening, Property & Construction, Procurement & Supply Chain

HIGHLIGHTS

* Strong regional performance led by the USA

* Gross profit in USA up 31%, with a new office in
Los Angeles

13

* Tough economic conditions in Brazil, but a L
Disciplines

record year for Mexico, Colombia and Chile
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OUR STRATEGY

OUR STRATEGY IS CLEAR AND CONSISTENT

| >

| ORGANIC GROWTH

QOur strategy is to grow organically, achieved
by drawing upon the skills and experiences
of proven PageGroup management, ensuring
we have the best and most experienced,
home-grown talent in each key role.

Qur team-based structure and profit share
business model is highly scalable. The

small size of our specialist teams means we
can increase headcount rapidly to achieve
growth when market conditions are good.
Conversely, when market conditions tighten,
these entrepreneurial, profit sharing teams
reduce in size through natural attrition.
Consequently, our cost base contracts
during the lean times.

Qur strategy for organic growth has

served the business well over the thirty-
eight years since its inception and we
believe it will continue to do so. We have
grown from a small, single discipline
management recruitment company operating
in one country to a large multidiscipline,
multinational business, operating in 34
countries represented by three key brands.

Current strategic pnorities are highlighted on page 35

33 Strategic Report

DIVERSIFICATION BY REGION
AND DISCIPLINE

Qur strategy is to expand and diversify the
Group by industry sectors, professional
disciplines, geography and level of focus,
be it Page Executive, Michael Page or
Page Personnel, with the objective of

being the leading specialist recruitment
consultancy in each of our chosen markets.

As recruitment is a cyclical business,
impacted significantly by the strength of
economies, diversification is an important
element of our strategy in order to reduce
our dependency on individual businesses
or markets and 10 increase the resilience of
the Group.

This strategy is pursued entirely through the
organic growth of existing and new teams,
offices, disciplines and countries, maintaining
a consistent team and meritocratic culture as
we grow.

Pa65 oup annua! Heport And Accounts 2013




BUILD FOR THE LONG-TERM

When we invest in a new business, be

it a new country, a new office or a new
discipline, we do se for the long-term.
Downturns in the general economy of

a country or in specific industries will
inevitably have a knock-on effect on the
recruitment market. However, it has been
our practice in the past, and remains our
intention, to maintain our presence in our
chosen markets through these downturns,
while closely controlling our cost base.

In this way, we are able to retain our highly
capable management teams in whom

we have invested and, normally, we find
that we gain market share during downturns
which positions our business for market-
leading rates of growth when the
economy improves.

Pursuing this approach means that we
carry spare capacity during the downturn,
which has a negative effect on profitability
in the short-term. A strong balance sheet is,
therefore, essential to support the business
through these times.

RECRUIT THE BEST PEOPLE,
DEVELOP THEIR TALENT AND
PROMOTE FROM WITHIN

We recognise that it is our people who are
at the heart of everything we do, particularly
as an organically grown business. Investing
in them is, therefore, a vital element of

our strategy. Our strategy is to find the
highest calibre staff from a wide range of
backgrounds and then do our very best

to retain them through a team-based
structure, a profit share business model
and continuous career development, often
internationally. Qur strong track record of
internal career moves and promotion from
within means that people who join us know
that one day they can be our future senior
managers and main Board directors. Steve
Ingham, our Chief Executive Officer, joined
PageGroup 27 years ago at recruitment
consultant level. Similarly, all of the
operational members of our Executive
Committee started their PageGroup careers
at consultant level and have a total of

125 years of PageGroup experience
across the five individuais.

1H043Y J19ALYHLS

The key performance indicators used to measure our progress aganst our strategy can be found on pages 19 and 20
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OUR STRATEGY

OUR PLAN FOR GROWTH

Qur Goal

Qur strategic goat 15 to move back to and then exceed the peak
gross profit performance achieved in each region in 2008 pnor

o the impact of the global financial cnsis of iate 2008 The
achievermnent of this goal will be driven largely by consultant
headcount and a return to higher levels of consultant productivity
A focus on the improvement of overall operational efficiency wilk
be used to increase conversion rates and profit before tax

Current Strategic Priorities

* increase the scale and diversification of PageGroup by
growing organically existing and new teams offices,
disciplines and countnes {see pages 8 16 and 33)

+ Scale the business with a team and mentocratic culture whiist
delivening a consistent and high quaity client and candidate
experience (see pages 33 34 40 and 41)

* [nvest pnncipally i identified large, high potential markets —
Greater China, Germany, Latin Amenca, South East Asia and
the USA (see page 37)

* Manage our fes earner headcount in other markets o refiact
market conditions {see page 34)

* Focus on operational support consistency and efficiency
including the rollout of our new operating system (see page 39}

+ Focus on succession planning and international career paths to
encourage retention and development of key staff (see pages
34 and 41)

Strategic Report

Positioned for Growth ‘

Constant investment has transformed the shape of our business
and will continue to transform it in the future

We have identified Greater China Germany, Latin Amenca, South
East Asia and the USA as large, high potential markets in which we
intend to focus our nvesiment i the next few years In the main
these are less developed recruitment markets whera cornpetition
1s hmited Many of cur new markets are emerging economies and
are growing more guickly than established markets Naturally our
strongest opportunty to grow quickly 1s in markets which have the
potential to develop and where competdion 1s weak

In 2000 58% of our fee earners were based in the UK and
Austraha the most developed and competitive recruitment
markets, and only 12% in the least developed and ieast
competitive markets However, as shown in the diagram opposite,
at the end of December 2013 haif of our fee earners were based
i these high potential markets Ve are now well positioned

for growth

Puaalroup Arnaer! Report And Accounts 2313



THE GROUP HAS TRANSFORMED OVER
THE PAST THIRTEEN YEARS, WITH 50%
OF OUR FEE EARNERS NOW POSITIONED
IN THE LEAST COMPETITIVE MARKETS
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2013

Fee earners: 3,810

11 °/o B Rest of EMEA*

8| A
50% 15% >@
[
wl ’909 ® Latin Amenca
10%
2000 ; Canada,
i b Germany, italy,
Fee earners: 1,657 e C L New Zealand,

Spain

B France, Holland
and USA

19% & 731

31% a 1170 B Australia and UK
]

PROFORTION OF RECRUITMENT ’
THAT IS OUTSOURCED

! KEY [l <30% [l 30-70% I >70% {3 Fee Earners ]f

* Ausina, Belgium, Ireland, Luxembourg, Morocco Poland, Portugal Qatar Russia, South Afnca,
Sweden Swiizerland, Turkey UAE
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OUR STRATEGY

SPOTLIGHT ON LARGE, HIGH POTENTIAL MARKETS

The cntena are as follows

Histoncally, when economec growlh has slowed we have reduced
consultant headcount and not reinvested uabl the market
recovered However, In the five markets wentfied as large, high
potenttal markets ~ Greater China Germany, Latn Amenca, South
East Asia and USA - we will now take a more proactive approach
with increased and sustained investment through economic
cycles This will reguie setting targets for consultant remuneration
appropnate for the market conditions

The markets entfied are substantial, ligh potential markets

for recruitment In the main, thay are under-developed, less
competitive recrutment markets where PageGroup has already
met the critena it uses {0 assess business potential and, therefore,
we can have canfidence that we can now successfully scale up
Cur SUCCess

Criteria:
Factors:

Criteria:
Factors:

Criteria:
Factors:

Year End headcount and discipline track record in Greater China, Germany,

Latin Amenca, South East Asia and USA

KEY [l Countries
\ M Couniry Disciplines .
Il Drectors
Il Headcount

T

o O

Strategic Report

2009

Strength of management
Ability to hire, train, retain, promote locals

Ability to adapt PageGroup culture to local culture
Ability to rolt out disciplines and open offices

Convarsion rates

High fee rates/salaries
High gross profit per fee earner

Size and prospects of economy

Competitor fandscape
Client/candidate receptiveness
Employee/ampioyer legislation

Track record

PageGroup growth rates
Progress on gross profitVoperating profit

2013
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GREATER CHINA

Approximate headcount. 450
Offices’ 10

In Greater Chung we have had considerable success in recent
years, principally as a result of our investment in management
and by transferring proven managers from cther established
PageGroup offices As the market leader in Greater China by
offices headcount, gross profit and trading profit, we are

well positioned

Cur track record of growing headcount, trasming, retaining,
promotng locals opening offices strong conversion rates,
developing mternational and Chinese clients, leads us to be
optmistic about future prospects in this terntory Numerous
opportunities exist to expand existing offices and open new
ones, launch and roll out disciplines and, therefore, grow both
headcount and gross profit

GERMANY

Approximate headcount: 250
Offices 7

To date, our main focus in Germany has been on permanent
recruitment and we are widely regarded as the market leader
n this area However, In weaker market conditions, Germany's
strong employment legisiation encourages clients to avoid
hinng permanent employees and to ‘switch’ to furing
temporary staff

Cur opportunity 15 to grow further our permanent recruitment
business and to create a robust temporary business (n 2013
we strengthened the management team with the transfer

in of twe Senior Directors, both of whormn have tempaorary
recruitment expenence and, combined, hava over 30 years
of PageGroup experience

Germany's economy, based on GBP s approximately

40% farger than the UK economy, 1s more de-centrahsed and
has z far less developed recruiiment market compared to the
UK and other major European economies These factors make
it a very attrachive opportunity for PageGroup

SOUTH-EAST ASIA

Approximate headcount 200
Offices: 2

Of the five markets we have identified as high potentiat
strategic markets, South East Asia 1s PageGroup’s feast
developed market Currently our presence consists of a
market-leading position 1n Singapore and a new but rapidly
growing business in Malaysia

Outside of Singapore, South East Asia's recruitment market 1s
under-developed We have proven that the region 15 capable
of high margins We arg currently in the process cof establishing
the necessary icences for an Indonesian operation — we

have an Indonestan team' with over 20 years of PageGroup
experience operating from Kuata Lumpur Our depth of
management expenence Is very strong and s overweight for
the size of the operations we have today

PageGroup Arnual B Lort Ang Accou t 2013

Approximate headcount: 250
Offices 9

Despite difficult trading conditions and poor performances
dunng 2008-2012 we have renewed confidence in the
USA market and our USA business Our gross profit growth
rate year-on-year was 31% 0 2013 in 2012 we made key
management changes and over the last year we have
realigned our US business, transforming it back into a
typical PageGroup business and cullure Several more Kay
managers have transferred into the US business and we
expact thera 10 be a steady flow of additlonal internationat
transfers to the USA which 1s an attractve market for many
of our current employees

The USA recruitment market 1s very competitive, though less
50 than the UK and Australia It ts dnven mostly by cortingent
fees, but with higher salanes and fee rates than we see 1n the
UK In addition, the typical cut-off between what 1s contingent
and what 1s seen as the start of the head-hunter market Is set
at a higher fevel, the contingency market can reach as high

as $250k As the world's largest economy, the USA offers
PageGroup numerous opportunities for growth

LATIN AMERICA

Approximate headcount: 550
Offices 20

In Latin America, we are clear market leaders Our largest
presence is in Brazil and we also have offices across Mexico,
Chile, Argentina and Colombia We plan to continue 1o invest
in the region and build on our clear market leadership

Latn America is a reglon where the recrutment of middle
management or professionally qualified staff is targely done
‘In-house and the recrutmeént industry 15 very smmature

The combined GDP of the five countries in which we opesate
would rank fourth in the world below Japan and above
Germany The immatunty of these markets represents

a huge opportunity

Strength of management has been congistently high and
15 improwving further as management matures Given the
challenges expenenced in the recruitment markst in Spain
and Portugal over the last few years, we have taken the
opportunity to successfully transfer a number of Spanish
and Portuguese speaking staff to Latin Amenca

The PageGroup LatAm culture s strong, encouragmng the
retention of staft and we have proved we can roll out profitable
new offices and disciplines across the region Currently this
market 1s almost entirely driven by permanent recruitment

but we have successfully rolled out Page Personnelin
preparation for when temporary recruitment becomes more
culturally acceptable

Approxirnate headcount 15 based on February 2014 data

Strategic Report
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OUR STRATEGY

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT STRATEGY

The core operational support strategy 1s to have a consistent,
market-leading operational suppart on a highly cost-effective
basis We are targeting te improve the delivery of suppen services
across the business while reducing costs as much as possible
The actions being taken in each of the core areas are as follows

Finance and Administration Strategy

In order to improve efficiency we are reviewing the curent
provision of these services and therr delivery mechanisms

For example, the use of the shared service centre mode! will be
used across a greater proportion of the Group

Investor Relations

We have appointed a Director of Investor Relations o focus on
communicaton with our shareholders

tnformation Technology Strategy

Wa have recently made significant changes «n the delivery of IT to
the PageGroup business A new Chief Information Officer has been
hired and substantial changes have been made to the senior IT
team In terms of delivery, we are moving away from an approach
of bulding owning and maintaining core 1T infrastructure and
applications, and are generally moving to a detivery that 1s based
on a web applcations model where the key applications and

data are third-party hosted on a global sndustnial framework in

the Cloud

In May, we plloted the new version of our operating systemn and
related applications in our Beston office and these are planned 1o
be rolled out further in 2014 Work on modifications to the system
that were noted in the piiot is developing 1n line with expeciations
and the roll-out plan The total system covers a wide range of our
operating achwsties, being broadly

+ CRM (Customer Relabonship Management system) —
recruitment process management

* Search - global search capability over all databases and
social streams

+ Reporing and analytics — covenng operational and financial
data Group-wide

+ CV parsing — autematic coding and loading of Cvs

* Job postng - managing and tracking jobs and applications

* Finance systems and nterfaces - full integration into finance
systems for biling, temporary workers' imesheets and payroll

* S3ingle global website - responsive to any device

The systems are being delivered on the fatest versions of the host
appiications and have been developed to be agile, so that we can
always take advantage of the latest verstons without significant
upgrade costs or tmefines They are also uttising Cloud based
saolutions, with the related improvements in scalabiiity, cost

and fiexibility

Elements of our IT strategy have commenced rol-out elsewhere
in the Group, for example, the next generation website has been
launched in Asia Pacific

Strategic Report

Human Resources

During the year we appomnted a Group Human Resources Director
and are taking a co-ordinated global approach to recruitment,
retenticn train:ng and development, promotion, international
transfers, succession management and remuneration

Procurement and property strategy

We have appornted a Global Procurement Director with the aim of
moving to common procurement processes across the busingss in
order to improve operational efficlency and reduce costs

Marketing

In the Michae! Page name we have a strong established brand
in our major markets We still face challenges in achieving better
awareness for Michael Page in our newer markets and acress

all markets for our other core brands, Page Executive and Page
Personnel In 2012, wa re-branded 1o PageGroup, with clanty on
brand hierarchy and consistenicy in brand deployment

With the rise of digital media, the way customers become aware
of and interact with brands In the recruitment space has changed
significantly and will continue to change We have established
aignificant presence m the digital space but we recognise the
need to remain consistent in approach and agile In marketing our
services It order to continue to be the recruitment brand of choice
in the business sectors in which we operate

We have appomted a Group Marketing Drrector who now has
global control of the marketing functron and will ensure the key
focus I1s towards activity that drives added value to the brand
We will continue to empowaer the business with sales support
actaly that 1s responsive to local and cultural factors but this
tactical activity can be delivered using technology based on a
simple centralised approach Future strategy will be through a
marketing function with fewer people but more expertise

in essent:al marketing skills with a bias towards online and
social channels

We will use our internat expertise, supplemented with externa
adwvice in both marketing and technology, to momitor and evaluate
emerging trends particularly in the digital space Our aim will

be to build on our hard won brand reputation by maxmusing the
apphcation of new technology

We have appointed a Director
of Investor Relations to focus

on communication with
our sharehoiders.
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THE PEOPLE BEHIND
THE PLAN

Our Employees

We never forget that the people who work at PageGroup will
always be our most valuable assets Itis these individuals who
drive the Company forward and take it in the right direction
We therefore, value their ideas and contnbution, encourage
them to maximise thesr potential and invest heawily in fearning
and development This means that every member of staff has
a fair opportunity 10 axcel and to develop a full and rewarding
career, potentially nsing to Executive Director level

Our Clients

We have always treated our clients as our partners and
recognise that we have a responsibility to represent them in the
best possible way We spend time getting to know our clients
so that we understand their businesses In order to present the
widest possible pood of talent to our chents, we ensure diversity
In our candidate shortlists by conducting searches which reach
mincrity groups

Cur Candidates

Gandidates can be assured that they will always be assessed
purely on therr skill-set and presented to clients without bias
to ensure compettion for jobs 15 en a level playing field

We value cur candidates and enjoy keeping in touch with
them - yesterday's candidate 15 frequently tomorrow’s client

PeqeGaoud Ancugl Arpart And Accounty 2013
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Our Investors

We communtcate regularly with our investors, keeping them
well nformed of cur activities Feedback from investors has
helped shape our clear business strategy More infermation en
how we communicate with our Investors s shown on page 60
in the Corporate Governance section

Our Community

Throughout the world we seek tc work closely with locat
commuartes looking to give something back to the societres
n which we operate Further detais can be found in the
Corpoerate Responsibility section on page 43
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THE PEOPLE BEHIND THE PLAN

OUR EMPLOYEES

Hiring the best

Soercing and retaining the teghest calibre employees from a

wide range of backgrounds s key 10 our strategy The service we
provice to all pur customers 1s only as good as the people who
represent our brand Our strategy to grow organically by promoting
from within presents enormous opportunities for employees who
range from new graduates o exparenced professionals from other
disciplines - normally from the disciplines we recrust for 115 also
extremely important 1o us to recognise that when we recruit we

are hinng our senior management of the future We aspire to help
people maxumise their potential

Learning and Development

it 1s wisible both inside and out that at PageGroup we are
passionate about develeping our people We support our
employees to develop in their roles, and build a solid foundation
for thesr future career with us through a diverse range of education
and expenence opportunities This includes encouraging
international assignments within PageGroup  From therr first day
with us, our people continuously undertake development and
succession planning programmes including induction trainmg
quarterly appraisals coaching, and people management training
using 360 degree feedback Our focus on the prowsion of a
specialised service has led us to establish dedicated Learming

& Development teams across the Group who customise our
programmes to ensure training 1S appropnate for different cultures
and working environments across the world

Retaining the most talented people

with a sold strategy of organic growth and using existing expertise
as a platform for growing into new markets, we have a strong
commitment to mternal prormation, international career moves and
employee empowerment which has continually helped us retan
our very best people At the highest level, we want people who
are immersed thoroughly in our company cuiture and understand
the intricacies of our business Retaning our best people 1s
fundamental to our long-term success and continuity Due to

this philosophy of nurtunag our own talent, succession planning
15 an inherent part of the business process It 1s cne of the key
responsibiities of all tevels of management to have a clear plan of
development for their direct reporis and for themselves

Strategic Report

Employee engagement

At the heant of our company 15 the camaradene of team work,
s0 much so that “team work™ 15 also one of gur company values
We are a very sociable company with regular team actiwities in
and out of the office including quarterly team bullding events
and prermium international tnps to reward our tigh perforrming
consultants and managers Qur way of rewarding consultants
through bonuses s different o the rest of the incdustry

At PageGroup we reward teams with profit share which 1s

then allocated to the individuals based on therr total contnbution
to the team

We run several intiatives worldwide to monitor employee
engagernent For example, in the UK, we participate, in the
Suncay Times ‘Best 100 Companes to Work For' survey and have
been recogrused for the last nine consecutive years as

one of the top 100 companies to work for i the UK In 2013 we
were also recognised in Cram's Best places to work in New York
City', and in Apertura Magazine's *‘Best employers’ in Argentina

We were delighted to be recognised in the Recruitment
International Awards 2013 as the best recruitment company to
work for in the £100m+ category

In 2013, we alsc undertook an employee engagement and diversity
survey which was exiernally managed to allow employees an
ocpporunity to provide candid feedback in the knowledge that their
views and opirons were confidential and anonymons
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DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

OpenPage

Inclusion for all

Pursuing an agenda of diversity and imclusion in the workplace
15 mot only ethically nght but, given its importance to the
hberation of the full potential of the labour market it is also
cntical to our strategy as a leading global recrutment company
PageGroup 15 an equal opportunities employer and a strong
advocate in the industry encouraging other businesses to give
every individual the same opportunities for employment and
promotion based on their ability, qualifications and suitabiity
for tha posiion

Inclusion in recruitment and employmert is about recognising
and appreciating that every indmwidual is different It 1s about
ensunng that everyone, whether they are a candidate seeking
work through PageGroup or one of our own employees, 1S
vaiued and respected Regardiess of ndividual charactenshes,
suitability for recruitment traiming or promotion 1s always based
on professional mernt

At PageGroup, we are commutted to promoting inclusion

and continually developing our understanding and approach
to upholding an inclusive working environment We are
determuned to lead the way on inclusion within the recruntment
inclustry and we work closely with our ¢hents 1o support therr
diversity strategies {rom consultation through to debvery

To further our insight into inclusion issues we work

with a number of external organisatians such as Race for
Oppertunity the Business Disability Forum and the Employers
Network for Equality and inclusion Our sentor staff are actively
nvolved with these and many other erganisations through
work-streams and Jjoint inibatives, ensuring we are constantly
fearning from their expenence and using our own resources to
share best practice and «deas

Gender diversity
At 31 December 2013

Number of people on Board of Directors _ 7T1%
Number of senior managers excluding Directors
Total number of employees in PageGroup m

At 31 December 2012

Number of psople on Board of Directors - 86%
Total number of employees in PageGroup m

Number of senior managers excluding Directors

Women@Page

Since 2012 we have operated the Women@Pags inihative

to help us achieve better gender diversity across all levels of
our global business We aim to create an inclusive working
environment by developing the pipeline of femaie talent

and retaining that talent The first tangible step for
Women@Page was a Global Mentonng Programme fo support
talented women at management level Mentors include sernor
managers within the Group who undergo extarnal training to
batter equip them to provide key guidance 1o therr menteas
In particular, mentors challenge therr mentees to think
differently consider therr options and honestly analyse their
strengths and weaknesses This programme was nitially
ntroduced in the UK and France in 2012 and has now

been rolled out acress ten countnes We have also set clear
materrty gusdelines for all managers to better suppon staft
dunng their matermity penod including dunng their return

to work

In addition to the global imthatives run by Women@Page,
there are also a large number of iniatives being driven
locally For example, in South Afnca, Michael Page has
continued its learning scheme for women, the Michael Page
South Afnca Learnarship Programime, ¢ show its commitment
to skills development and female empowerment in South
Afnca In 2013 the 12 month programme offered five
women from disadvantaged backgrounds the opportunity
to gain professional hands-on experience across Michael
Page disciplines and to attend a fully funded course in
Business Administration

Female % Total
Y 7 )
[ e[ 5] sio]

Male %o

Male %Yo Female % Total

'y
o
=

Further dwversity statistics and information regasding our approach to diversity and corporate social responsibility can be found in our
2013 Corporate Responsibiity Report which can be found on our wehsite at www page com/investors

Fonelroup Annual H-~port Ard Accosd 2012
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CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

OUR CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY VISION

To engage, encourage and equip all
our people to make a positive impact
on the clients and communities with
which we work.

Ethicat, responsible practices and total commitment to mirimising
our impact on the environment are the key motivators behind our
corporate responsibility strategy

Communtties and Charities

As a company we pride ourselves an our integnty and we take
our corporate responsibility very senously Throughout the world,
we seek to work closely with local communities, looking to give
something back to the societies in which we operate To achieve
this, we encourage our siaff to be pro-active In seeking projects
within theirr own communities Projects nclude consuliants going
Into schools and giving CV and interview advice volunteers
helping out on community and environmental projects and raising
funds for charitable causes For exarnple i the UK we have
committed to a two year partnerstup with Alzheimer's Research
UK Association and am to raise £200,000 over the two year
penod to provide two three year PhD scholarships for work on
key research projects related to the prevention or cure of this
debilitating disease To this end dunng the year, cur employees
have participated enthusiastically in a variety of fund raising events
including, tnathlons, cake sales pub guizzes, and the Yorkshire
Three Peaks Chaflenge In addition our CEQ and 100 employees
paricipated in the Great Wall of China marathon in Besing in 2013

Strategic Report

This hard work and dechcation to give back saw our 5,130
employees globally raise around £123,000 in 2013, and the
Group donated a further £134,000 so making a total close to
£257,000 donated to chantable causes dunng the year

Human rnghts

Our pohey with regard to human rghts s included in our Group
Code of Conduct which 1s communicated to all new employees

as part of the induction process We reguire that all staff reat
colleagues, candidates, clients and business partners with equality,
farrness and respect, regardless of their gender, race, colour,
sthnic or national ongins rantal status, family ctrcumstances

age disability sexual onentation, pofitical or rehgious belief We
upheld the nght of our employees and candidates to work in a safe
environment, free from discnimunation, bullyng and harassment

We are supportrve of upholding human nghts principles and take
nto account internationally accepted human nghts standards

We will not engage m or support the use of forced labour and do
not tolerate the use of child labour

Further information on our approach to corporate responsibility
can be found in our Corporate Responsibihty Report at

www page com/investors
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Environmental matters

We fully recognise our responsibilities in relation to the
environment and our carbon footpnit As an office-based
business our mamn environmental impact comes from the
generation of carbon ermissions through the consumption of
gas and electncity in order to heat, cool and light our offices
and from business travel by road, rail or ar, as well as
office-based waste such as paper and toners

Qur Board 1s commuitted to improving the way in which our
actmities affect the enviranment by

+ Mintmising the extent of the environmenial impacts of
operations within the Group's sphere of influence

Stnving to munimise any emissicns of effluents m our
properties that may cause environmental damage

* Conserving enengy through minimising consumption and
waste and maximising efficiency

Promoting efficient procurement, which will both miniruse
waste and allow matenals to ba recycled where appropnate

Employing sound waste management practices and
encouraging re-use and recycling

Putting tn place procedures and supporting information
that enables compliance with the law, requlation and code
of practice relating to enwvironmental 1Issuas

Adoptng a systematic energy use data collection procedure
and audit across all sites with annual monstonng

Daploying an environmental monitonng system across
PageGroup operations which will ensure systematic robust,
effective environmental data collection

Greenhouse gas emissions

We commissioned Trucost, a specialist company working

in the area of enviranmental nsk to analyse energy use and
buseness travel data collected by PageGroup in order to
provide an overview of the carhon performance and
efficiency of our global operations Trucost identifies GHG
emissions 1o air in ine with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol an

Total Emigsions COZ2e i 2013 from global cperations

Natural Gas

Business travel

international corparate accounting and reporting framework Electricity
developed by the World Resources Institute and the World Retngerants
Bustress Council for Sustainable Development
The overall, global GHG footpnnt of PageGroup's operations
in 2013 was calcutated to be 12,472 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent {CO2e) 39% of emissions resuited from electncity
use, 32% from the group’s vehicle fleet, 12% from the use
of refngerants, 12% from business travel by raill and arr and Vvehicle Flest
5% from the wse of natural gas for operations
As we have only recorded similar GHG data i respect of
the UK in previous years, we are not able to provide a globat
comparatwe for 2012 |n future years a comparative will
be shown
-,
Greenhouse Gas Protocol 2013 Tonnes Co2e 7 °f :::_;t::
Fuel use for operations 626 5%
1
Scope 1 direct emissions from sources Vehicle Fleet 3.039 3094
which a company owns
Total scope 1 direct emissions 4,565 37%
Other direct emissions not included in scope 1
by the Kyoto Protocol Refngerants 1,559 12%
Electncity 4 842
Scope 2 indirect emissions
th
re-generation of purchased electrcity Distnet heating !
Total scope 2 indirect emissions 4,843 39%
Rail Travel 181
Scope 3 other iIndirect emissions including Ar travel 1 324
business travel
Total scope 3 other indirect emussions 1,505 12%

Total GHG emissions

Total tonnes CO2Ze per employee (5,130 employees)

P.naGroup Annazl R-part And Accout, 2013
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

As with any business, we face nisks and uncertainties every day
The careful management of risk is, therefore 1mportant to the
achievernent of our strategic objectives and to sustainable growth
for the Group

An annual review of nsks 15 a well established process within
the Group Histoncally this has been undertaken at Group level
In conjunction with operational management, supported by the
compietion of internal control checklists by senior management
from each country to identify any key nsks locally In 2013 the
Board commissioned a review of nsk and controls supporied by
staif frorn Deloitte LLP with specialist expenance inthis area

The purpose of this review was
* to dentfy and quarmtify the key nsks for PageGroup
* o confirm key controls and mitigating factors

» to estabhish a plan for roling out and embedding the process at
region/country level

« to further develop the reporting and governance framework

The review included interviews with key stakeholders, including
Board members and servor managers from the Group functional
areas The key nsks and contrals were then summansed in a
Group Risk Profile for review by the Executive Commuittee and then
subsequently by the Audit Commuttee and the Board of Directors

This approach 1s being rolled out acress the regional Businesses,
supported by the Internal Audii function

Strategic Report
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OUR APPROACH TO MANAGING RISK

BOARD

Ultimate accountiability for ensuring that risk
is managed effectively

Risk is considered in all strategic
decision-making

Review the Group Risk Profile annually and
challenge constructivety.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Reviews the Group Risk Profile annually and
validates its contents befors it is submitted to
the Boeard. Moniters the ongoing status and
progress of mitigating actions.

GROUP RISK CO-ORDINATOR

This role is undertaken by the Group Internal
Audit Director who consolidates the risks
identified by opetating companies and
managers of each group function inte a risk
register. with key Group risks and mitigating
actions reported o the Audit Committes
annuglly in the form of a Group Risk Profile.
Internat Audit’s rofe is to review the risk
process and provide assurance,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

On behalf of the Board, the Audit
Committee has oversight of the risk
management process, reviews annually
the Group Risk Profite and ensures the
adequacy and elffectiveness of the
Group Risk Process.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
OF GROUP FUNGTIONS

Finance, Marketing. Procurement, IT and HR identify
and assess key risks and mitigating actions and pass to
Group Risk Co-ordinator annually.

Fanalaroup Avnud Report Ard Accry ¢ 2013
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Senior management in the regions identify anc

assess key risks and mitigating actions locally and
pass to Group Risk Co-ordinator annually.

Strategic Report
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PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

GROUP RISK PROFILE

Risk Actions to mitigate nsk
Our people We have a strong focus on succession planning at all levels of the business with
rticyl -perfi F

The Group’s strategy of organic growth, particular focus on the development of high-performing indmduals entified as
future leaders

with nearly all serwor operational possions

being filled from within, relies on s We continue to have a strategy of filling senior operational positions from within,

ability to recruit, develop and retain tugh which 1s 2 key part of our retention strategy Our employees cbserve high performers

performing indmduals The failure to heing rewarded with promotion and know that PageGroup provides sustainable

attract and retain employees with the career opportunities

nght skill-set, particularly the ressgnation
of key indmduals, may adverssly affect
the Group's operating performance and
financial results PageGroup targets its recruitment process to attract and employ high quality people

Key high performing indmaduals are identified and have progression plans, recogrnising
their specific needs at different stages of ther development

We have a strong sense of pnde 1n everything we do, with a strong sense of teamwork
core to PageGroup culture This dnves deterrmination to succeed, both individually
and as a team, increasing the motivation of our staff and making therr careers more
rewarding

We have a well estabhished apprassal process where perscnal development as well as
progress aganst sales targets 1s discussed

We make significant investments in employee training and development across the
organisation, including the opporturity for international career developrment Trawmng
15 algned at the consultant level, set at a high standard and 1s both broad based and
individually focused to support leaders as they develop through PageGroup

We are commutied 1o a compebitive pay and benefits structure and use benchmarking
to ensure we ramain competitive We operate a performance-led culture with bonus
representing a proportion of pay This bonus struciure 15 based on team profitability,
which has been shown to encourage the retention of high-performing incividuals even
In econamic downturns

We make awards of share options inked to the Group’s financiat performance to
key semor employees which provide a iong-term retention incentive and align their
motivations with those of our sharshotders

PageGroup employment contracts contain protection in the event of an employee
leaving, which, at a senior level, usually contan notice penods and provisions relating
to confidentiality and non-solcitation

Shift in business model We actively monitor developments in the recruitment industry and have a pro-active

The emergence of new technology social medha strategy

platforms including, for example, the The use of social media, newspapers, the Internst and other forms of mecha involve
growing use of social media, may lead addiional and mghly skitled internal resources for chents and so it may prove less costly
to Increased competition and pressure for PageGroup to provide the service

on margins which may adversely affect
the Group's resuits if it 1S unable to
respond effectively

We have access {0 an extensive, quaified candidate database through hughly tramned
and often speciaised consultants

We partner with the targe prowiders, such as Linkedin and Facebook, to ensure that
we use this form of media {o enhance our value 1o clients All consultants are trained in
utihising the benefits of social media
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Risk

Actions to mitigate nsk

Macro economic exposure —~ risk
of downturn

Recruitment activity 1s dnven largely by
ecenomic cycles and the fevels of business
confidence Businesses are less Iikely {0
need new hires and employees are less
likely to move jobis when they do not have
confidence in the market so leading to
reduced recruttment activity

A substantia! proportion of the Group's
profit anses from fees that are contingent
upen the successful placement of a
candidate in a posiion i the chent cancels
the assignment at any stage 0 the process,
the Group receves no remuneration

Damage to reputation or
PageGroup Brands

Our brands are matenal assets of the Group
and mamtaining thetr reputation is key to
continued success Any event that could
cause reputational damage s a nisk to
PageGroup such as a falure to comply with
legrislation, or other regulatory requirements,
or confrdental data being lost or stolen

Technology

The Group 1s reliant on a number of

IT systerns to provide its services 0
chents and candidates The current {T
infrastructure 1s complex and age:ng,
increasing the nsk of ssgmhicant systems
falure A senous system disruption, Joss
of data or secunty breach could have a
rmatertal impact on our operations and on
the Group's financial resufts

IT Transformation and Change

The new suite of operating sofiware
and related applications was piloted In
the Boston office from May 2013 and1s
ptanned to be rofled out further duning
2014 There s a nsk of disruption to

the business should the software fail to
furiction adequately or if staff are not
properly trained |If the system fated #
could affect our ability to provide a high-
quakty recruitment service to our clients
and could affect our operational and
financial performance

FoqeCro.p Anusl A part And At 1 201

We have dwersified our business by expansion geographucally, by increasing the
number of disciplines in which we spacialise, and by establishing three brands to
address the different levels of the recruitment market, the clencal professional sector;
the qualfied professional market and the executive search sector
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We also continue to balance our business between permanent and temporary
staff in ine with the ratio of permarient 1o temporary in gach of the markets in
which we operate The temporary Dusiness tends to be more resilient in times of
economic downturn

The relatively low fixed cost base allows the Group to scale up and down
according to the economic environment, with circa 75%6 of the Group's cost base
being employment related costs, so mitigating the impact of the downturn on
Group profitabiiity

We have a process to «dentify nisks, allocate owners and monitor actions with the
Internal Audit Function providing assurance over key nsks Our corporate governance
framework mncludes a review of intarnal controls We have comprehensive policies for
key areas including Social Metha Data Protection and information Secunty

We actively momitor media to dentfy where there are unusually tigh references to the
PageGroup/Michael Page name We have a clear escalation/reparting path so that any
potential Incidents can be managed effectively We are supported by FT1 Consulting
who prowide on-going advice on the protection and management of cur brand

Other mitigating actions are ncluded under legal compliance and data managenent

Qur technology strategy 1s a regular focus at Board meetings and at meetings of the
Executive Committee to ensure that it supports the strategic objectives of the Group
A programme of work has commenced to update the IT infrastructura and deliver a
new operating system and related apphicatons

The Group has a Disaster Recovery Plan which includes the storing of back-up
data off-sita and the ability to quickly establish disaster recovery sites should there
be a cntical systems faslure The performance of external technology supphers s
continualty monritored to ensure business crittcal services are mamntanad

This project is reviewed regularly by both the Board and Executive Comimuttee to
ensure that it 1s on target The rofl-out will be done In stages 5o that there 1s hmited
interruption to the business Any issues that anse during the pilot in Boston will

be resolved at that location before it is implemented elsewhere in North Amenca
and than on to other global offices The plan includes a significant tnvestment in
staff training

The nsks to the delivery of a mgh-quality service and the consequent impacts upon
our business perfarmance are mitigated by the greater part of the recruitment service
not being system dependent, for example, candidate interviews, telephone activty
chent meetings, etc
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PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

GROUP RISK PROFILE (CONTINUED) |

Risk

Data Management

Confidential, sensitive and personal data
15 held across the Group Falure to handle
this data property could exposa the Group
to financial penalbies and reputational nsk

Lega! Compliance and contracts

The Group cperates in a large number

of legal junsdictions that have varying
legal and comphance regutations Any

nast compliance with chent contract
requirements and legislative or regulatory
requirements could have an adverse effect
on the Group's finanaial results

Foreign Exchange - translation nsk

73% of the Group’s operating profit 15
denved from operations outside the

UK so matertal changes in the strength

of stering against the main functional
currencies could have an adverse effect on
the Group's reported sterling profits in the
financial statements The main functionat
currencies 10 addition to sterting, ara the
Euro Australian Dotlar, US Dollar, Chinese
Renminiy and Brazitian Real

Strategic Report

Achons to mitigate nsk .

We have adopted a comprehensive IT secunty strategy and have management
pohcies and control documertts which nclude metnes on performance and nsk '
These are reviewead regularly

We have a global secunty team and established IT governance to ensure dsfined
controls are operating as expected

IT nsk management 15 alse in place, which reports directly to the Chief Information
Officer This teamn ensures the effectiveness of the Group’s secunty solwtion and
controls mormitors and addresses any ¢yber sacunty threats, in partnership with our
external secunty partner

Secunty vulnerability 1s assessed and the remediation of identified nsks and alerts
1s tracked Regular secunty assurance checks take place across alt regions and
penetration testing 1s undertaken To date this bas not Wdentified any matenal issues

We have comprehensiva data protection policies in place and procedures for the
handiing and stonng of confident:al, sensitive and personal data

The Group's Legal departrent, the Company Secretary, and local legal and
comphance teams are adwvised by leading external advisors as required, in regard
to changes i legislation that affect the Group's business, including employment
legistation and corpeorate governance

Cur consultanis and operatonal support staff receve induction traring and regular
update training reganding the Group’s policies and procedures and comphance with
relevant legisiation and regulations, for example, around discrirmination legisiation and
pre-employment checks

The Group holds all normal bustiness insurance cover including empioyers' liabiity,
public 1ability and professional indemnity insurance

Contracts include clauses to ensure PageGroup's nghts are protected

Our strategy of continued geographical diversification reduces our exposure to
translation nsk The Group does not actively attempt to hedge the exposure from
translation nsk as thts ts a reporting rnisk only and net an operational nsk

The Group does not have matenal transactional cumrency exposures nor 1s there a
matertal exposure to foregn denominated monetary assets and habihties

Note 21 to the financial statements includes a sensitvity analysis showing the effect
of a 109% strengthening of steriing agamst othar key currencies
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CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION
TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Robin Buchanan (Chairman)

Dear Shareholder,

At PageGroup we are committed to tigh standards of corporate governance Good governance underping
sustainable perdormance We welcome warmly the movement to increased opanness transparency and clanty
brought by the new reporting requirernents

There are three elements of our governance that are particularly important The Board debates and decides on
strategy, holding the Executive team accouniable for its execution We ensure that we have and will have the
most talented leadership, both within the Executive team and on the Board We always ask “What s the nght
thing ta do?” so that everyone involved with PageGraup can continue to be proud of us My job 1s to make sure
these three things happen

The Board of Diractors has overall responsibifity for the running of the business and therefore must be equipped
with the characler, skills and expenence required to direct a global recrutment consultancy with farge ambitions
QOver the ast two years we have built a strong, well balanced Board which operates in a frusting and honest
environment Duning 2013 this team made good progress and the Board 1s well positioned for the coming year

We were delighted to appoint Danuta Gray as a Non-Executive Director on 0 December 2013 Danuta's
considerable international expenence, both in ing leadershup roles and non-executive directorships, will be
very valuable Mer background in technology as well as in sales and marketing 15 also particulary useful With
Danuta’s appomntment, we have added another talented woman to your Board Given the gender mix of our
clients, candidates and staff 1t s a strategic as well as a governance mperative to improve the chversity of the
Board We will continue to seek to add to your Board people who have the character, skills and experience the
business requires

The recruitment industry 1s more exposed o giobal economic troubles than many other sectors As a result,
the Group has operated in a difficult environment for the last few years A high qualty Board applying strong
corporate governance Inctuding ngorous risk management, has been particularly useful dunig this trme
Going forward your Board, within this strong governance framewaork, will continue to challenge and support
management as they implerment our strategies for growth

Further details of how PageGroup 15 governed and how the Board 1s run are laid out in the pages that follow

Robin Buchanan 3
Chairman {

4 March 2014
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OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our business s led by our Board of Directors (the “Board™) Brographucal details of the Directors as at 4 March 2014 are as follows

Robin Buchanan - Chairman

Skills and Expenence Pror to joining the Board of Michael Page Robin served as Dean and President
of London Business School and as the Senior Partner of Ban & Company in the United Kingdom Past
Board appointments include Bain & Company In¢, Shire plc and biberty International pic Robin qualfied
as a Chartered Accountant with a predecessor irm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Other current appointments

Non-Executive Director, Schroders plc ¢ Non-Executive Director, Lyondell Basell Industnes NV
Member of Remuneration Committee, Coller Capital Lid » Sentor Adwisor to Bamn & Company
Member of the International Advisory Couneit of Recipeo

Date of Appointmeni Director August 2011 Charman December 2011

Board Committees Nomination Committee (Chairman)

Steve Ingham - Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director

Skifls and Experience Steve joined Michael Page in 1987 as a consultant with Michael Page Marketing
and Sales He was responsible for setting up the London Marketing and Sales businesses and was
promoted to Operating Director iy 1990 He was appointed Managing Director of Michael Page
Marketing and Sales in 1994 Subsequently Steve took additional responsibihty for Michael Page's Retad,
Technotogy, Human Rasources and Engineenng businesses He was promoted to the Board as Executive
Director of UK Operations in February 2001 and subsequently to Managing Director of UK Operations in
May 2005 Steve was appointed Chief Executive Officer in Apni 2006

Other current appomntments
Non-Executive Director, Debenhams plc = Member of the Corporate Partrership Board, Great Ormond
Street Hospital

Date of Appointmens Disector February 2001 Chief Executive Officer Apnl 2006 | Board Committees None

Ruby McGregor-Smith CBE - Senior Independent Director

Skills and Expenence Ruby 1s the Chief Executive of Mitie Group ple  She qualhied as a Chartered
Accountant with BDO Stoy Hayward In December 2002 Ruby joined MITIE Group PLC as Group Finance
Director and was appointed Chief Operating Officer in September 2005 before being appointed CEO in
March 2007

Cther current appomtments
Chief Executive Officer MITIE Group PLC = Member of Board of Trustees Business in the Community
Chairperson of the Wornen ¢ Business Council

Date of Appointment May 2007 | Beard Commutteas Audit, Remuneration, Nomination

Simon Boddie - Independent Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenience Simon Is a Chartered Accountant and has been Group Finance Director of
Electrocomponents ple since Sepiember 2005 Simon joined Electrocomponents plc from Diageo
where he held a vanety of senior finance posttions over a 13 year career latterly as Finance Director
of Key Markets

Other current appointments
Group Finance Director Electrocomponents plc

Date of Appointment September 2012 | Board Committees Audd (Charman), Remuneration, Nomination
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Danuta Gray - Independent Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenence Danuta was Chawrman of Telefdmca O2 in freland untt Decernber 2012, hawing
pravicusly been its Chief Executive from 2001 to 2010 Prior to that, Danuta was a Senior Vice President
for BT Europe n Germany and dunng her career gained expenence in sales, marketing, customer
sernice and technology and in leading and changing large businesses She previously served for seven
years on the board of Insh Life and Permanent plc and was a director of Business in the Community
Ireland and Aer Lingus pic

COther current appointrents
Non-Executive Director, Old Mutual plc « Non-Executive Direclor, Paddy Power pic

Date of Appointment December 2013 | Board Committees  Audit, Remuneration, Nomination

Dawid Lowden - Independent Non-Executive Director

Skills and Expenence Dawid was a member of the Board of TNS plc, the marketing services business,
from 1998 to 2009, becoming Chief Executive Officer in 2006 Before jorning TNS plc Dawid heid senior
finance positions in Asprey pic, A C Ntelsen Corporation and Federal Express Gorporation

Other current appointments

Senior independent Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, Berensden plc
Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee Wilkiam Hill pic = Chairman,
Rice 2 Limited

Date of Appaintment August 2012 | Board Comymittees Remuneration (Chairman) Audst, Nomination

Tim Miller — Independent Non-Executtive Director

Skills and Expenence Tim was appointed a Director of Standard Chartered Bank in December 2004
In July 2013 he was appointed Vice-Chairman Governance as well as continuing to be Chairman of
Standard Chartered Bank Korea

Other current appointments

Director, Standard Chartered Bank * Charman of the Environment Committee, Standard Chartered
Bank « Charman, Standard Chartered Korea » Chairman of Governors, School of Onental & African
Studies and Member of the School Advisory Board ¢ Spectal Professor of Strategy, Nottingham
University Business School

Date of Appointment August 2005 | Board Committees Audit, Remuneration, Nomination

Kelvin Stagg -~
Acting Chief Financial Officer

Appointed 14 October 2013
See page 53 for biography

Elaine Marriner
Company Secretary

Appointed 10 December 2013
Prior to this appointment
Elaine was Company
Secretary and General
Counset of HMV Group pic

Corporate Governance
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee 1s a committee of the Board and is known within PageGroup as the ‘Executive Board'

Steve Ingham
Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director

See bicgraphy on page 51
Patrick Hollard

Executive Board Director, Latin America, Southern & Western
USA

Patrick joined Michaet Page in France in 1996, having worked
previously for KPMG Peat Marwick Prior to that he had been
Vice-President of AISEC International, the student led organisation
from 1991 to 1882 Apponted Director in 1998 he moved to Sao
Pauio to launch Michael Page Brazil, and then launched offices in
Mexico in 2006, Argentina in 2008 Chile :n 2010 and Colombia in
20117 Apponted Regional Managing Directer in 2007, he 1s now
responsibie for PageGroup's operations in Latin America, and
Southern and Western USA

Gary James
Executive Board Director, Asia Pacific

Gary joined Michael Page Finance in London in 1884 He was
appointed Director of Michael Page UK Sales & Marketing

1n 1994 and Managing Director of Michael Page UK Marketing

1n 1897 In 2002 he transferred to the USA on his appomtment
as Managing Director of our business in North Amenca He was
appointed Managing Director of the Asia Pacific region in August
2006, based nitially in Austraha and more recently in Singapore

Fabrice Lacombe
Executive Board Directar, France, Central & Eastern Europe

Fabrice joined Michael Page Finance m 1894 as a consultant

n Pans In 1996, he launched Michael Page Engineering and
became a Director In 1998 In 1999, he was appointed Executive
Director and then, in 2001, Managing Director of Michael Page
France He launched Michael Page Afnca m 2005 and in 2007 took
responsibiliy for Page Personnel France He became Regional
Managmg Director for France and Afnca in 2010 He 1s now
responsible for PageGroup operations in France and Central and
Eastern Europe

Olivier Lemaitre
Executive Board Director, Continental Europe & Afnca

Olvier ined Michael Page Finance in Pans in 1887, having
worked previously as a Controfler for Renault in Poland In 1999,
he moved to Sao Paulo to launch Michael Page Brazil before
returming o Europe in November 2002 to lead our Michael Page
Frankfurt ofice He was appointed Managing Cirector of Michagi
Page Germany in 2004 In 2007 he was appainted Regional
Managing Eirector in charge of Austna, Belgium, Germany,
Holland Luxembourg and Switzerland He i1s now responsible
for PageGroup's operations in Continental Europe and North and
West Afnca

Corporate Governance

Mark Lockton-Goddard
Chief Informaton Officer

Mark joined PageGroup from PncewaterhouseCoopers where

he was a Dwector In the Business and Technology Transformation
Consuiting business for three years Prior to that he worked for
other “Big 4™ accounting and consulting firms for over {ifteen years
In that time he assisted a range of FTSE 250 businesses across
muthiple market sactors, including recruitment and professional
services, to reduce complexity and dnve cperattonal performance
through the better use of technology

Kelvin Stagg
Acting Chief Financial Otficer

Ketvin joined PageGroup 1in July 2006 as Group Finance Controller
and Company Secretary Prior to joining PageGroup, Kelvin spent
six years at Alied Domecq and three years at Urslever in a vanety
of finance functions He has significant international expenence
and has high levels of compliance, change management large
teams and systems expenence, across almost every finance
disciphne He 1s a Chartered Management Accountant Kelvin was
appointed Acting CFQ in QOctober 2013 and he held the title of
Company Secretary up untif December 2013

Oliver Watson

Executive Board Director, UK, Middle East, South Afnca,
Eastern USA & Canada

Qliver joined Michael Page in 1995 as a consultant in Londen

He was appointed Birector of Michael Page UK Sales i 1997

and then Managing Director n 2002 in 2006 he was appointed
Regional Managing Director far Michael Page UK Sales, Marketing
and Retail in 2007, he faunched Michael Page Middle East and
has since developed our office network across the region In 2008,
he became Regional Managing Director for Michae! Page UK
Finance, Marketing and Sales, Middle East Scotland and freland
He 15 now responsible for PageGroup operations In the UK, Middle
East, South Africa, Eastern USA and Canacia

Kelvin Stagg (Acting Chief Financial Officer)
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OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

THE BOARD

The Board's rale is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the Group within a framework of prudent and effective controls
which enable risk {0 be assessed and managed. It has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its dacision.

More details on pages 55 to 60.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (CEO)

Key responsibility is to develop
and daliver the Group’s strategy
within the policies and values
established by the Board.

Details on page 56.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee is
chaired by the CEO and includes
the GFO. The Committee is
responsible for overseeing
operations in our regions and for
overseeing business operational
functions Group-wide.

Details on page 55.

7

CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER (CFO)

Responsible for managing the
financiat risks, reporting and
planning of the Group,

Details on page 56.

TR vl

2

COMPANY SECRETARY

Responsible for ensuring the Board
comply with all legal. regulatory and
gavernance requirements.

Details on page 56.

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

Durmng the year ended 31 December 2013 and to the date of this document, the Company has complied with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Govemance Code 2012 {the “Code™) The Code is publicty available on the FRC website (www frc org uk) In the following "Corporate Govemance”
section, together with the "Dwectors Remuneration Report”™ on page 67 and the “Directors’ Report” on page 87, we descnbe how we have appled the

man principles of the Cede

PageGioup Annuat Raport Ang Acgounts 2013

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Responsibte for ensuring that the
Company has the executive and
non-executive Board leadership
it reguires.

Details on page 61.

AUDIT GOMMITTEE

Responsible for the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements
and performance, ensuring the
necessary internal controls and risk
management systems are in place
and effective.

Details on page 63.

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Respansible for the review.
recommandation and implementation
of the Group's remuneration strategy,
its framework and cost

Details on page 67.

Corporate Governance
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HOW OUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK OPERATES

LEADERSHIP

The Board and its operation
The Board of Michael Page International pic i1s the body
responsible for the overall conduct of the Group’s business and
has the powers and duties set out in relevant laws of England
and Wales and n its Articles of Association
The Board's role is to provide entrepreneunal leadership of the
Group within a framework of prudent and effective controls which
enable nsk to be assessed and managed It has a formal schedule
of matters reserved for its decision which includes
« Group strategy and corporate objectives
» determining the nature and exient of the significant nsks the
Board 1s willing io take 1n achieving the strategic objectives of
the Company
» maor changes to the nature, scope or scale of the bustness of
the Group
* corporate governance matters
s approval of Nemination Committee recommendations
on the appoimtment and removal of Directors and
succession planning
« changes to the Group's capital structure and approval of
any business plan pror to a new entity being established i
a new terntory
* financ:al reporting, audit and tax matters
* matenal contracts and transactons not in the ordinary course
of business
+ materal capital expenditure projects
+ approval of the annual budget
s obtaining major finance
+ communications with stakehoiders and complying wath
regulatory requirements
The Board mests regularly throughout the year usually nine times
ayear

Composition of the Board

The Baoard currently compnses the Chairman, the Chief Executive
Officer and five Nen-Executive directors The biographies of each
of these Directors can be found on pages 51 to 52 Six of these
Direciors served throughout the year under review Andrew
Bracey resigned as Chief Financial Officer on 11 October 2033
Danuta Gray was appointed a Non-Executive Director on

10 December 2013

Executive and Non-Executive Directors are equal membars of the
Board and have collective responsibility for Board decisions The
Non-Executive Directors bnng a wealth of skills and expenence to
the Board and its standing commuttees Their role in particular s to

= chalienge constructively managements' preposals on strategy

« challenge constructively the performance of management in
meeting agreed goals and objectives

* bnng a strong, independent and external perspective to
Beard discussions

» asgess nsk and the integnty of the financial statements and
sysiem of internai controls

* determine the Group’s policy for executive remuneration,
in partcular the specific remuneration package for the
Executive Directors and the fees for the Chairman

Corporate Governance

Board Commuttiees

The Board has a Nomination Comrmuttee, an Audit Committee

and a Remuneration Committee The Chairman of the Board I1s
Charrman of the Nomwnatron Committee All ather Committee
members are ndependent Non-Executrve Directors Each of the
Audit and Remuneration Committees compnse solely independent
Non-Executive Directors Reports from these three Commitiees
can be found on pages 61 to 86 The Company Secretary acts

as secretary to each of the Committees Minutes of Commitiee
meetings are crrculated to all Committee members and to all
members of the Board unless it would be inappropriate to do so

The terms of reference for the Nomination Commitiee Audit
Commttee and Remuneration Committee were reviewed and
updated by the Board i February 2014 and these can be found
on the Group's website - www page com/investors

The Executive Committee

The Executive Commuttee (known within PageGroup as the
‘Executive Board’) has been established by the Board, is chared
by the Ctief Executive Officer and includes the Acting Chief
Financial Officer and other senior executives, biographies of
whorm can be found on page 53 The Executive Committee usually
meets four times a year and 1S responsible for assisting the Chiet
Executive Officer in the performance of his duties including the
development and implementation of strategy, operational plans
policies, procedures and budgets These actvities are performed
at a regionat level by Regional Boards for each of the UK, EMEA,
Asia Pacific and the Amencas Each Regional Board usually meeis
at least four times a year

Chairman and Chief Executive

To ensure that no ong individual has unfettered powers of
deciston there is a clear diviston of responsiblities between the
role of the Chairman Robin Buchanan, and the role of the Chief
Executive Officer Steve Ingham The roles are set out in wniting
and have been approved by the Board Ther different roles and
responsibilities are set out on the opposite page

Steve Ingham (Chief Executive Officer)
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KEY ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

The Chairman - Robin Buchanan Senior Independent Director -
Ruby McGregor-Smith

* leadership and development of the Board

= setting the agenda for the Board, mcluding strategy, s acting as a sounding board for the Chairman
leadershup, performance, financial strength, nsk « serving as an miermediary for other Directors
and governance * providing a pont of contaci for those shareholders who
+ effectiveness of Board operations wish 10 raise Issues with the Board other than through the
* charring the Board and the Nomination Committee normal channels of the Charman or Chief Executive Officer
* setting the style and tone of Board discussions, including * leading the annual apprassal of the Chairman’s performance
promoting openness and debate by the Nen-Executive Directors

« ensunng that alf Directors recewve accurate, timely and .
clear information Acting Chief Financial Officer - Kelvin Stagg
» acting as a strategic partner and adwvisor to the CEQ

The Chief Executive Officer - Steve Ingham » responsible for accurate and tmely financral information,

« developing vision and strategy for the Board's review including forecasting and modelling
and approval » stakeholder engagement, including shareholders, analysts,
* implementing Board approved strategic objectives creditors, employees and management
and pohcies = capital structure strategy 2o
- " Z2c
* day-to-day management of PageGroup's operations + leadership of the fmance and support functons g ;.5'
*  mantaning a good working refatonship with the Charman ER
and the Board Company Secretary — Elaine Marriner SH
¢ charng the Executive Committee to execute the delivery * responsible for providing legal ang governance support to
of the annual operating plans the Board and to mdividual directors
* leading the programme of communication * ensunng the Board complies with all legal regulatory and
with sharehoiders governance regquirements

+ assisting the Chairman in ensunng that all Directors have
timely access to accurate and clear information

* assisting the Chairman by organising induction and
training programmes

Biographical detasls of the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Semor independent Director can be found on page 51 and on the
Group’s website at www page com/iInvestors

BOARD FOCUS IN 2013

STRATEGY SUCCESSION
DEVELOPMENT PLANNING

RISK EVALUATION > CEO AND CFO > PRESENTATIONS TO

AND MANAGEMENT UPDATE THE BOARD FROM
MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE BOARD

> > >
REVIEW OF APPROVAL OF DIVIDEND

QUARTERLY FORECASTS QUARTERLY TRADING RECOMMENDATIONS
AND BUDGET UPDATES/INTERIM/RULL
YEAR ANNOUNCEMENTS

>

> >
IT UPDATE OPERATIONAL REVIEW OF
AND REVIEW SUPPORT STRUCTURE CENTRAL RESOURCES
AND COSTS REVIEW
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HOW OUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK OPERATES

EFFECTIVENESS

The Board annually reviews #s composition {6 ensure there 1s
an appropnate balance between Executive and Non-Executive
Dwectors and an appropnate mix of skills, expenence and
knowledge to enable the Directors to effectively discharge therr
respective dutes and responsibiiities

Tenure of Non-Executive Directors

The Code suggests that length of tenure 15 one factor 10 consicer
when determining the independence of Non-Executive Directors
The table befow shows the tenure and independence of the Board
Charman and each of our Nen-Executeve Directors The Board
considers all Non-Executive directors to be independent

Years

from

first Consid-
Date first elect- ered to be
elected by 1onto ndepend-

share- 204 ent by the
Director holders AGM Board
Robin Buchanan Charman May2012 2 Note 1
Ruby McGregor-
Smuth SID May 2007 7 Yes
Simon Boddie NED June 2013 1 Yes
Davict Lowden NED June 2013 19 Yes
Tim Miller NED May 2006 8 Yes

Standing

for electicn
Danuta Gray NED Jung 2014 n/a Yes

Note 1 Rebin Buchanan was consicered to be independent on his
appointment as Chainman

Board appointments and diversity

The Nomination Committee leads the process for Board
appointments A descniption of the Nomination Comrittee
and its work can be found on page 61

Commitment

To enable Executve Directors to gain external Board exposure

as part of therr personal devetopment, whilst at the same time
ensuring that sufficient tme and focus 1s spent on the Company’s
business, the Board has established a policy permutting Executive
Directors 10 hold external non-executive directorships, subject io
Board approval The Executive Directors are allowed to retain

any fees from ther Non-Executive Director roles Details of these
fees are shown in the Direciors Annual Remuneration Report

on page 86

The externat commitments of the Non-Executive Directors are
disclosed together with therr trographies, on pages 51 and 52
Their key cormmitments are reviewed each year ic ensure they
are able to give sufficient time to their PageGroup responsibilities

Corporate Governance

Board Attendance m 2013
Attendance at meetings of the Board 1s summansed below
Percentage

of meetings
Director A B attended

Robin Buchanan Charman 10 10 100%

Steve Ingham CEQ 10 0 100%
Andrew Bracey” CFC g 8 B9%
Ruby McGregor-

Smuth SiD 10 9 30%
Simon Boddie NED 10 10 100%
David Lowden NED 10 9 90%
Tim Milier NED 10 8 80%
Danuta Gray ** NED 1 i 100%

A = Maximum number of meetings the Director could have attended
B = Number of meetings the Drector actually attended

Andrew Bracey resigned as CFO on 11 Qctober 2033 and he did not
attend the Board meeting on the day prior to his resignation

** Danuta Gray was appomnted on 10 December 2013

The other instances of non-attendance arose wherg the Director had a
contlict with another business meeting

Directors unable to attend a Board meeting are provided with full sets of
briefing papers and can discuss any matters with the Charman andror

Chief Executive Officer

Company Secretary

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who 1s responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures and applicable rules and regulations are observed
There 1s an agreed procedure for Directors to obtain independent
professional advice, If necessary, at the Gompany’s expense

Induction and trairung programme

The Chairman 1s responsitile for the inducton of new directors
and 15 assisted by the Company Secretary On appointment to

the Board, each Director discusses with the Chairman and the
Company Secretary the extent of training required A tailored
induction programme to cover their individual requirements 1s then
compiied Elerments of the programme typically consist of meeting
senor management, site visits, attending tnternal conferences and
consuitant shadowing to understand the day-to-day activities of

a recratment consuftant In addition, infarmation 1s provided on
the Company's services, Group structure, Board arrangements,
financial information, majer cormpetitors and major risks

The content of the mduction programme s reviewed annualiy to
ensure it remains relevani and approprate
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To maintain ther effectiveniess it 15 essential for all Directors to
be kept up to date with the business, corporate governance,
legal and reguiatory matters as they develop This:s achieved
through the following

« presentations on different aspects of the Company’s
business fram members of the Executive Commuttes
or other members of semor management

+ tha Non-Executive Direciors mest senior operational
management at the annual global senior management
canference

+ tnancial plans, including budgets and forecasts are
regulary discussed at Board meetings

* feedback from investor road shows 1s provided to the
Directors via reports from the Company's brokers

+ Drectors are provided with written bnefings and mestings to
keep them up to date on legal, regulatory and governance
matters by the Company Secretary, the Company's Auditors
and other external advisers where appropnate

The Chairman reguiarly raviews and agrees with each Director
therr fraining needs In particular the Chairman discusses
development and training reguirerments with individual
Directors as part of therr annual performance evaluation

Performance evaluation

In line with the Code, the Board undertakes a formal and
rnigorous annual evaluation of its own performance, that of

its Committees and its individual Directors The Charrman
holds meetings with the Directors to appraise ther individual
performance and the Senior independent Director meets with
the Non-Executive Directors without the Chairman present,
to appraise the performance of the Chairman

In 2013 the evaluation was underiaken by an external
facitator As reported in the 2012 Annual Report, this external
evaluation had originally been planned for 2012 but was
delayed untl 2013 due to the extensive changes to the Board
made dunng 2012 A thorough performance evaluation was
undertaken aver the penod Apnl to June 2013 by Ffion Hague
of Independent Board Evaluation, a specialist in such reviews
Mrs Hague has no other connection with the Company The
review was conducted through Board and Commitiee mesting
observations and interviews with each of the Directors and key
non-Board contributors

The findings of this externa! evaluaticn process were
presented n repart format and then discussed with the
relevant parties Board performance was discussed with the
whole Board Feedback regarding Board Committees was
presented to the Chairman of the Board and to the relevant
Committee Chairmen Individual Board member reports were
presented to the Chairman of the Board who subsegquently
had one-to-one discussions with each of the Directors

A report on the Chairman of the Board was presented to

the Semor Independent Directior who then consulted with
the other Non-Executive Directors before giving feedback to
the Chairman

The man message from this evaluation process was that

the PageGroup Board was bedding down well after very
considerable change in the previous 18 months — a new
Chairman, iwo of the three Executive Directors and two
Non-Executive Directors departing, the appointment of a new
Chsef Financial Officer and twa new Non-Executive Directors

The feedback from the Board members ang sentor executives
within the Company was distinctly positive

PagaCroup Anngai Rapart Ang Account. 2013

The rman areas for improvement cited were the need for further
developmant of the strategy greater attention to development
and succassion plans for the most senior executives, additional
time to be spent on nsk management, and the beefing up of
the company secretanal support function

As a result of these recommendations the Board agreed ta
* devslop further its approach to strategic planning

* ncrease 11s focus on development and succession planning,
especially for our most semor positions

+ develop further its approach to nsk management
* appoint a dedicated Cornpany Secretary

Good progress has already been made in all of these areas
the Board held a well recetved Strategy Day with an in-depth
review of the economucs of our bustness model, we have
appointed a Group Human Resources Director with the
specific remit of ensunng that we further upgrade the
development and succession plans of aur most smpotant
executives areview of the Group’s nsk management process
was ungertaken as reported on page 45 10 the Strategic Report
saction and 1s being developed further in 2014 and the Board
has appointed Elaine Marnner as a dedicated, expenenced
Company Secretary

31wH0dH0)

o
2
=
m
X
=
=
=
o
m

Succession Planning

Executive successson planning discussions were held in the
summer focusing especially on succession candidates for
the Chiet Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer This
was particularty useful given the then Chief Financial Cfficer’s
departure in October atlowing the Board to appoint Ketviny
Stagg, Acting Chief Financial Gificer

Succession and developrment planning s a cntical part of the
Chief Executive Officer’s performance objectives for annual
bonus and long-term remuneration

Re-election of Directors

Danuta Gray, who was appointed a Director since the last
Annual General Meeting {AGM} will stand for election at the
forthcoming AGM Al ather Directors shall, in accordance
with the Code, submit themselves for annual re-election at
the AGM

Following the annual performance evaluation, the Board
considers that each Chrector continues to be effective
and has demonstrated commitment to their role The
Board, therefore, strongly supports ther re-elect:on at the
forthcoming AGM

Conflicts of nterest

The Company has implemented robust procedures, in ine

with the Comparues Act 2006 requinng Directors to seek
appropriate authonsation from the Board prior to entenng into
any outside business interests which have, or could have, a
direct or indirect inferest that conflicts or may conflict, with the
Group's interests The Normination Commitiee I1s responsible
for reviewing any potential conflicts of interest It makes
recommendations to the Board as to whether such a conflict
should be authonsed and the terms and conditons on which
any such authonsation should be given by the Board Only
Directors without an interest in the matter being considered
will be involved in the decision and each Director must act in

a way they consider, in good faith, will promote the success of
the Group All Directors are aware of their continuing obhigation
to report any new inierests, or changes in existing interests
that rmght amount to a possible conflict of interest in order
that these may be considered by the Board and appropnate
authonsations given

Corporate Governance 58




39

HOW OUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK OPERATES

ACCOUNTABILITY

Responsibiities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparatron
of the Annual Report The Siatement of Directors’ Responsibilities
1s shown 1n the Directars’ Report on page 90 A statement by the
Auditor concerning their reporting responsibilities s shown in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 92 A statement regarding
going concern is included i the Directors’ Report on page 89

Strategy

A detaled explanation of the basis on which the Company
generates value over tha longer term and the strategy for delivenng
the objectives of the Company s included in the Strategic Report
on pages 7 to 49

Risk Management and Internal Control
internal control

The Board has overall respansibility for the Group's systemn of
internal control The procedures established by the Board provide
an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managsng
significant nisks and implementing the Turnbell Guidance “Internal
Control Revised Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code™
The system of internal control inciudes financial and operaticnal
cantrois which are designed to meet the Group's particular

needs They aim o safeguard Group assets, ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and that the financial
Information used within the business and for publication 1s rehable
Any system of internal conirol can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance aganst matenal misstatement or loss

In practice the Board delegates the implementation of the Board's
policy on nigk and control to executive management and this 1s
maorstored by an independent Internal Audit Funchon which raports
back to the Board through the Audit Commuttee

Corporate Governance

Key elements of our system of intarnal control are as foliows

+ Group organtsation

The Board of Directors meets at least nine times a year,

focusing both on strategic 1ssues and operational and financial
performance There is also a defined policy on matters reserved
stnctly for the Board The Regional Managing Director of each of
our four regions s accountable for estabhshing and monitonng
internat controls within therr respective divisions

+ Annual Business Plan

The Board reviews the Group strategy and approves an annual
Group budgst Performance 1s then monitored by the Board
through the review of monthly reports showing compansons of
resuits against budget quarterly forecasts and the prior year,
with explanations provided for significant vanances

= Pohcies and Procedures

Policies and procedures are doecumented over both financsal
controls and non-quantifiable areas such as the Group’s
Whistleblowing policy and Code of Conduct and Ethics

* Risk Management

The Board has estabished a framework for identifying and
manageng nsk, both at a stratege and operational level

An overview of this framework and a summary of the principal
nsks dentified, together with mitigating actions, can be found
in the Strategic Report on pages 45 to 49

+ Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Functicn examines business
processes throughout the Group on a nisk basis and reports
to the Audit Commutiee

» Confirmations from Executive Management

The Managing Director and Finance Birector of our operations
in each country formally certify annually whether the business
has adhered to the systermn of internal control during the period
including compliance with Group poiicies The statement also
requires the reporting of any significant control issues that have
emerged including suspacted or reported {raud, so that areas
of Group concern can be identified and investigated as required
These confirmations and supporting Ceontrols Self Assessrment
Questionnaires are reviewed by the Intemal Aucht Function and
a summary of findings 1s provided to the Audit Committee

for review

Review of Effectiveness of Internal Controls

The Board with the agsistance of the Audit Committee have
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group s system of internal
controls including financial, operational and compliance

controls, and nsk management in accordance with the Code

for the penod from 1 January 2013 to the date of this Annual
Report No significant falings or weaknesses were identified

A confirmation of any necessary actions 1s, therefore, not provided
However, had there been any such fallings or weaknesses the
Board confirms that necessary actions would have been taken to
remedy them
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Board contact with shareholders

Communications with shareholders are given a hugh pnonty
The majonty of contact between the Board and sharehelders
is through the Chuef Executive Officer and the Acting Chief
Financial Officer who make themselves availlable, where
possible, to meet with shareholders and analysts at their
request These mesetings frequently take place in the UK but
also n other countnes when the Chief Executive Officer and
the Acting Chief Financial Officer are wisiting on business

The Group has a website with an investor section

{www page com/investors) that contains Company
announcements and other shareholder information Quarterly
trading updates are presented live by conference call with
shde presentations and hive telephone question and answer
sessions These conference calls are recorded and made
avallable on our website Live presentations of preliminary
annual and intenm results announcements are made to
analysts and sharsholders and these can also be found on
our website

The Chief Executive Cfficer and the Acting Chief Financial
Officer also undertake two major investor “road shows” each
year i the Spring and Autumn, in which numerous one-to-one
meetings are held with shareholders The outcome of these
meetings and the views of shareholders are then relayed back
te the Board by the Company’s corporate brokers The Group's
corporate brokers also report monthly to the Board on broking
activity during the rmonth and any 1ssues that may have been
raised with them

When requested by shareholders, individuat matters can be
discussed with the Chairman or, i appropriate the Senior
Independent Director In addition, the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee 1s available to discuss remuneration
matters with sharehoiders

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

All shareholders are entitled to attend the AGM it provides an
ideal opportunity for investors, inciuding private investors, to
raise any questions with the Board and the Charmen of the
Standing Committees as well as an opportunity to vote on
the formal resolutions  Shareholders are free to ask questions
of the Board formally dunng the meeting and also informalty
following the end of the formal business

Panalire. o Arrazi Report Arg Accey 2014

The notice of the AGM 1s on page 127 Voting on all resclutions
at the next AGM will be by way of a poll The results of
sharehoider voting are published on the Company's website
and announced wia the Regulatory News Service afier the
close of the AGM

Annual Report and Accounts

The Annual Report and Accounts 1s designed to present

a fair, balanced and understandable view of the Groups
position and prospects and, therefore, rs an important part
of our communication with shareholders We welcome the
introducton this year of the Strategic Report as a separate
section of the Annual Report and Accounis It includes a
description of the Group's cbjectives, strategy and business
modet, the mam trends and factors affecting the Company,
a descrption of the key nsks facing the business, the key
performance indicators an analysis of the development and
performance of the business, and disclasuras around the
enwvironment, employees, social 1Issugs and diversity

The Annuat Report and Accounts 1s sent to all shareholders
on our Register and s also available on our website

An intenm report s also produced at the end of the half
year and this 15 avarlable for download from our website
(www page com/investors)

Corporate Governance
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REPORT

Nomination Committee Chairman’s Overview

Dunng the year the Commuttee has focused on sirengthening,
broadening and balancing the range of skills, experence and
diversity on the Board and its Commuttees We were delighted
to secure the appointment of Danuta Gray as a Non-Executive
Director on 10 December 2013

The Board follows formal and transparent proceduraes when
appointing Directors with appointments being made on ment
agains! objective cnfena All shortlisted candidates are
interviewed by the Charrman and the Chigf Executive Officer
with the final shortist of candidates being interviewed by the
Nomination Committee members Thereafter a recommendation
of appointment 1s made to the Board

Diversity at Board level 1s as important as diversity at every other
level in the business It 1s our policy to seek diversity In order to
create a talented high-pesforming Board with a sutable mix of
expenence and capability

Corporate Governance

Who 1s on our Nommation Committee?

Percentage
of
meetings
Birector From A B attended
Robin Buchanan
([Commuittee
Chairman) 10 Aug 2011 7 7 100%
Simon Boddie 24 Sept2012 7 6 86%
Danuta Gray 10 Dec 2013 1 1 100%
Dawid Lowden 22 Aug 2012 7 6 86%
Ruby McGregor-
Smith 23 May 2007 7 7 100%
Tirm Muler i5 Aug 2005 7 6 86%

A = Maxmum number of meetings the Director coutd have attended
B = Number of meetngs the Director actually attended

The instances of non-attendance arose where the Drector had a confiict
with another business meeting
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What 1s the purpose of the Commuttee?

The Namination Committee Is responsible for ensuning that
the Company has the executive and non-executive Board
leadership 1t requires, both now and in the future

What are its key responsibilities?
= tp assess and nominate members to the Board

+ to mamntan the nght msx of character, skills and experience
on the Board and its committees

+ {0 make recommendatons to the Board on succession and
development plans for members of both the Board and
senior management

= to approve job descriptions and wntten terms of
appointment for Directors

* toreview the independence of Non-Executive Directors
taking into account ther other directorships

Who attends meetings?

Only the members of the Commuttee are entitied to attend the
meetings Other individuals such as the Chief Executive Officer,
the Group Human Resources Director and external advisers
may be invited to attend for afl or part of any meeting as and
when appropriate and necessary

P naGroup Anpual Aep.art Ang Acccuat 2019

What were the main activities of the
Committee during the year?

The man activities of the Committee dunng the year were
focused on succession planning throughout the business
ncluding the appontment of an addional Non-Executive
Director The Company was assisted i 1ts search for a new
Non-Executive Dicector by an independent exectitive search
company The Zygos Partnership which has no connechion
with the Company other than the prowision of this service

A detalled role profile was agreed by the Committee and
candidates were identified and selected on ment aganst
objective cntena and with due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including gender A shortlist of
candidates was interviewed by the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officar and members of the Nomination
Commuttee As descnbed in the Chairman’s Statement, this
resulted in a recommendation to the Board of the appointment
of Danuta Gray Danuta joined the Board as a Non-Executive
Director on 10 December 2013

The Board was also delighted to appoint Elaine Marnner as
Company Secretary on the same date

What i1s the plan for 2014?

The Committee will continue to review the size of the Board
and its mix of skills and expernience

Robin Buchanan iE E
Chairman S

4 March 2014
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT

Simon Boddie (Commuttee Chairman)

Audit Commuttee Chawrman’s Overview Who 1s on cur Audit Committee?

The main role of the Audst Committee 1s to support the Board

in ensuning the integnty of the financial staterments All financial :fa"’a“'age
information published by the Group 15 subject 10 the approval of meetings
the Audhit Cormmittes Thae activities of the Committee through the Director From A B8 attended
year are therefore, largely deterrined by the corporate timetable Simon Boddie

for the announcement of quarterty intenm and annual results {Committee

:uﬁ;cfge; r:: ;:l;l' its responsibilittes the Committee met ten times Charrman) 24 Sept 2012 10 10 100%
This Audit Committee Report summarnses the responsibilites of Danuta Gray 10 Dec 2013 1 1 100%

the Committee and how it has discharged {hose responsibiities

Sonng 2013 9 P David Lowden 22Aug2012 10 98 90%

This ts the first year of the new regulations which require the Ruby McGregor-

Board 10 consider whether the Annual Report and Accounts, Smith 23 May 2007 0 9 90%
taken as a whole are fair, balanced and understandable and the Tim Miller 15 Aug 2005 10 10 100%
Board has updated the Terms of Reference of the Committes to

add to its responsibilities the task of considening this guestion i A = Maximumn number of meetings the Director could have attended
detail and advising the Board accordingly We welcome this new

approach o ensunng that our shareholders are well informed B = Number of meetings the Drector actually attended

and welcome your feedback with regard to our Annual Report The instances of non-attendance arose where the Director had a conflict
and Accounts with another busmness meeting

What i1s the purpose of the Committee? The Committee members have broad expenence and knowledge

of financial reporting Therr relevant gqualifications and expenence
The Audit Committee 1 the guardian of the integnty of the are shown in ther iegraphies on pages 51 and 52 The Charrman
Company’s financial statements and external reporting of of the Audit Committee Simon Boddie, is a Chartered Accountant
peformance The Audt Gommittee also has the responsibility and s currently the Chief Financial Officer of Electrocomponents
for ensunng that the necessary internal controls and nsk ple The Board also considers David Lowden and Ruby McGregor-
management systems are in place and effective Smith to have recert and relevant financial expenence
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What are its key responsibiities?

s toadwvise the Board on whether the Commuttee beleves
the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, 1s farr,
balanced and understandable and prowsdes the information
necessary for sharehotders to assess the Company’s
performance business model and strategy

* tomoniior the integnty of the financial statements including
the annual and half-yearty reports, intenm management
statements and any other formal announcement elating to
financial performance, reviewing and reporting to the Board
on sigruficant financial reporting 1ssues and judgements
which they contain, having regard to matters communicated
to it by the Company's external advisers

* torepon to shareholders in the Annual Report and
Accounts the pnmary areas of judgement considered by the
Committee and how these were addressed

+ tokeep under review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's internal financeal controls mternal control and
risk management systems

+ tareview the Company s overall nsk tolerance and monitor
the nsk prohle against this tolerance, with the Board
approving the nisk tolerance hmts for the Group

+ tomonitor and review annually the external auditor's
independence and objectivity and the effactiveness of the
audit process

* todevelop and implement policy on the engagement of
the external auditor to supply non-audit services, taking
nto account relevant guidance regarding the provision of
non-audit services by the external audnt firm

+ to make recommendations to the Board, for it to put to
sharehoiders for their approval in general meeting, in
relation to the appointment, reappointment or removal of
the external auditor and to approve their remuneration and
terms of engagemsnt

+ toreport to the Board on the appropriateness of our
accounting policies and practices

* toreview the scope, resources, results and effectiveness
of the activity of the Group internal Audit Function

+ toreview the adequacy and secunty of the Company’s
arrangements for its employees and contractors to raise
concerns in confidence about any possible wrongdomg n
financral reporting and other matters

* toreview the Company s procedures for detecting fraud

+ to eport to the Board on how 1t has discharged
its responsibiliies

Who attends meetings?

Only the members of the Commiitee are entitled to attend
the meetings, but the Chairman of the Board Chief Executive
Officer Chief Financial Officer the Company Secretary,

the Head of Internal Audit and the external audit partner

are regularly invited to attend meetings to make proposals as
appropriate and necessary The Commuittee can invite others
to attend as appropnate

The Audit Committee met with the external auditor dunng
the year without the presence of management in order to
provide the opportumty for confidenteal discussion The
Head of internal Audit and the external auditor have direct
access to the Charman of the Audit Committee throughoui
the year
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What were the main activities of the
Committee during the year?

During the year under review the Committee has fulfiled

its responsibilites in each of the key areas tughlighted
above in order to assist the Board in carrying out its averall
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting requirements,
nsk management and the assessment of internal controls

The main actvities of the Commuttee dunng 2013 were

* reviewing quarterly, intenm and annual resuits
for publication

* reviewing the annual audit plan and reviewing the results
of the audit

» reviewing the Annual Report and Accounts to ensure, taken
as a whole, it s farr balanced and understandable and
reporting the primary areas of judgement

» further developmg the Group’s nsk process and the matrix
of key nisks

* raviewing the mdependence and effectiveness of the
external auchtor and considenng their reappontment

» reviewing the scope and work plan of the Group Internal
Audit Function and reviewing its findings
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s reviewing the Group’s Whistieblowing policy and procedures

» recommending to the Board revised Terms of Reference for
the Commuttee

Fusther informabion on these activities 1s given below

Financial Reporting

With regard to its role in ensuring that the Annual Report

and Accounts complies with relevant statutory and Listing
reguirernents, the Committee has, amongst other things,
reviewed the appropnateness of accounting policies and
controls the financial and narrative disclosures and the areas
where significant judgement has been apglied

The significant issues considered by the Aucit Commitiee,
nctuding the pnmary areas of judgement, i relation to the
2013 financial statements were

+ The appropriateness of the accounting for the new
operating system intangible asset

The operating system and related appiications were

piloted in the Boston office from May 2013 and are

planned to be rolled out further dunng 2014 Work on
modifications to the system 1s developing in line with
expectations and the roli-out plan The Commities reviewed
the status of the project with management and also
considered the intangible assets for any mndications

of imparment The Committee agreed with management’s
conclusion that there were no indications of imparment
Another key area of jJudgement was the estimation of thesr
useful economic lives and thus the appropnate amortisation
penods The Commuiitee agreed that the assets should be
amortised on a straight-line basis over five years starting
from the date the operating system and related applications
were first piloted in Boston

« [Direct and indirect taxes and related accounting 1ssues

The Commuttee discussed with management the fatest
position on all significant open tax matters and the
reconciliation of the effective tax rate We also reviewed
with management the appropnateness of the tax provision,
particularty in relation to profit shanng in France and the
related tax and interest elements that have been recognised
as exceptionahitems and are explained tn note 5o the
financial statements

Corporate Governance &
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

What were the mamn activities of the Commuittee
during the year? {continued)

* Revenue recognition for permanent and temporary
placements

The man areas of jJudgement in our revenue recognition
are the provisions for revenue earned but not yet invoiced
and for non-completion of contractual placements

The Commiitee regularly reviews these areas with
management and remans satished that Group accounting
policies with regard to revenue recognition have been
adhered to and that the year end provision for bad debt

1S appropnate

s Annual Report and Accounts {ARA)

Tne Commuttee was required to use its jJudgement to determine
whether the ARA ss fair, balanced and understandable and
provigdes the shareholder with the information required o assess
the Company’s performance business model and sirategy

The Commmittee based its judgement on its discussions with
management regarding the procedure followed in compiling the
ARA and through the members of the Committea reviewing the
ARA, 1n the ight of therr collective expenence and knowledge of
the business The Committee Judged that the ARA, taken as a
whote 15 fair, balanced and understandable

External Auditor's Independence

The Aucit Committee cantinually monitors the objectivity and
independence of the external auditor Ernst & Young LLP

were appainted as auditer of the Company 1n 2011 follewing a
tender process Prior to that Deloitte LLP had been the auditor
since the Company's histing In 2001 The Company 1s nundful
that the Code and best practice now require the external audit
cantract to be put out to tender at least every ten years In
additton 0 accordance with professional standards Ernst &
Young LLP operate a policy of rotating the Audit Partner at
least every five years

The otyectivity and independence of the external auditor ts
safeguarded by

= obtaining assurances from the external auditor that
adequate policies and procedures exist within its firm to
ensure the firm and its staff are independent of the Group
by reason of family, finance employment, mvestment and
business relationships (other than in the normal course
of business)

= enforcing a policy of reviewing all cases where it 1s proposed
that a former employee of the external auditor be employed by
the Group in a senior management position

= monitonng the external auditor’'s compliance with apphcable UK
ethical guidance on the rotation of audit partners

+ enforcing a policy concerming the provision of non-audit
services by the auditor which governs the types of work

1 from which the external auditor 13 excluded

w for which the external auditor can be engaged without
referral to the Audit Committee

w for which a case-by-case detision 1S required

Corporate Governance

The Audit Committee has recommended and the Board has
determined that it 1s not acceptable for the external auditor to
underiake any of the following non-audit services

« eglection design or implementation of key financial systems

* mantaming or preparing the accounting books and
records or the preparation of financial accounts or other
key financial data

* provision of cutsourced financial systems

« provision of cutsourced operational management functions
= recruitment of sensor finance or other executives

* secondment of senior finance or other senior execuiives

+ provision of internal audit services

+ valuation services or fairness opinions

« any services specifically prohibited to be provided by a listed
company's external auditor under UK regutations

The fellowing cntena also need to be met before the external
auditor 15 contracted to provide any non-audit services

+ the firm has the necessary skills and expernence to underake
the work

* there are no potential conficts that may anse as a resuit of
carrying out the actiwity

+ the external audit firm 15 subject to the Company’s normal
tendenng processes

+ n addition to the normal authonsation proceduras ang prior
to nclusion in a tender, approval has o be given by the
Chief Financial Officer and, if the fee exceeds a certan level
the Audii Committee

Fees paid to Ernst & Young LLP during 2013 in respect of non-
audit services are shown in the Financial Statements on page 106

External Auditor's Evaluation

To assess the effectiveness of the external audhtor, the Audit
Comrmittee reviewed

* the arrangements for ensunng the external auditor's
indepandence and obfectivity

« the robustness of the external auditor's plan and its
identification of key nsks

« the fulfdment of the agreed external audit plan and any
variations from the plan

= the robustness and perceptiveness of the external auditor in
handling key accounting and audit judgements

» the content of reports provided to the Audit Committee by the
external auditor including reporting on internal control

+ feedback from management

The review of the robustness of the external auditor's plan s
wital given that the effectiveness of the external audit process I1s
dependent an appropnate audit nsk identification At the start of
the aucht cycle the Company received a detaited audit plan from
Ernst & Young LLP identifying therr assessment of the key nsks
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Due to the judgements necessarnly required n these areas, for
2013 these risks were

= Revenue recogniticn for permanent and ternporary
placements with particular focus on penod end cut off and
approprate accounting treatment in accordance with IFRS
and Group accounting policies

« Agcounting for the new operating system ana related
applications intangible assets, with particular focus on
appropriate cost capitalisation and carrying value

The Commitiee reviewed with Ernst & Young LLP the
methodology used to test the assumptions and estimates
madie by managerment in each of these areas

To provide additronal opportunity for open dialogue and
feedback from the Cornrmtiee and the external auditor
meelings are held between the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the external audior dunng the year without
management being present Matters typically discussed
may include, amongst other tems the auditor's assessment
of business nsks and related rmanagement activity, external
auditor independence and confirmation that there has been
ne restnetion In scope placed on them by management, the
transparency and openness of interactions with management,
records made avaliable and how they have exercised thesr
professional scepticism

External Auditor’s Reappointment

Following a fuil evaiuation of the external auditor at the end
of the 2013 audit the Committee reccmmended to the Board
the reappeointment of £rnst & Young LLP as auditor of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM

Risk Management and internal Control

During the year, :n accordance with its Terms of Reference,
the Audit Commuttee with the assistance of the internai

Audit Function, reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s Internal financial controls and the Group’s nsk
management and internal control systems The dentfication
of major business nsks was carned out at Group level

In connction with operational management The Audt
Committee reviewed and further developed the Group’s nsk
assessment procedure the nsks identified and the steps taken
to monitor and mitigate nsk to ensure that appropnate action is
being taken

The nsk process together with the key nsks identified and
mitigaling actions are desenbed n the Strategic Report on
pages 45 to 49

Internal Audit Activities

Dunng the year, the Auds Committee monitored and reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal Audit Function in accordance
with the Code

The Group's Internal Audit Function comprises a Group Internat
Audit Director and a team of internal auditors  Although the
Group Internat Audit Director reports to the Chief Financial
Officer on a day-to-dlay basis, he has direct access to the
Audit Committee in order to ensure that there 15 opportunity
for frank and cpen dialogue The scope of the internal audit
work for the year 1s agreed with the Audit Committee and
reports are presented to both the Executive Board and the
Audit Committee Businesses are visited on a risk-based and
rotational basis to assess the effectiveness of controls

I miigating specific nsks in addition, nsks are reguiarny
reviewed and changes are made to the nisk profile where
necessary No significant weaknesses were identified dunng
the year
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Public Interest Discfosure Pelicy (Whistieblowing)

The Audit Commuttee has reviewed arrangements by which
the Company's staff may, in confidence raise concerns about
passible improprieties In matters of financial reporting or other
matters Arrangements are in place for the proporttonate and
independent investigation of such matters and for appropnate
follow-up action There have been no matters raised durtng
the year

Audit Committee Effectiveness Evaluation

Dunng the year a review of the effectiveness of the Audit
Committee In discharging its responsibilities was facilitated by
an external facilitator Details of the evaluation process can be
found on page 60

Review of Annual Report

PageGroup managerment introduced a new process for the
review of the 2013 Annual Report and Accounts {ARA) \n order
to ensuse that the ARA ts ‘fai, balanced and understandable’
This process includec a thorough understanding of the
revised regulatory requirements, a process to determine the
accuracy, consistency and clanty of the data and language,
and detaled review by all appropriate partes including
external advisers A checklist outining all the elements of

the process was completed to document the process and to
provide assurance 1o the Audit Commitiee that the appropnate
procedures had been undertaken
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company s 2013
ARA and has advised the Board that, in its opinzon, the ARA,
taken as a whaole 1s fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary tc assess the Company’s
performance business model and strategy

What s the plan for 2014?

in 2014 the Committee will continue to priontise oversight

of fi rici regulatory?uﬁmems and alss to further
deyelop the' sk process the _business

o AR
Simon Boddie .~ ———
Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

4 March 2014
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DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION REPORT

ANNUAL STATEMENT

{ am delghted to present the Directors' Remuneration Repont
n accordance with the new regulations on the disclosure and
approval of directors’ remuneration Accordingly, this report
includes the following

« the Remuneraticn Policy Report (pages 69 to 74) which will be
subject to a binding shareholder resolution at the forthcoming
AGM and every three years thereafter

+ the Dwrectors’ Annual Remuneration Report (pages 75 to 86)
which descnibes how our Remuneration Policy was implementad
1N 2013 and how we intend to apply the policy in 2014 and will
be subject to an advisory vote at the forthcorming AGM

Dunng the early part of 2013 we finalised our review of the
remuneration structure which had served us well over the previous
decade but which we felt needed to be rebalanced to encourage
longer term deciston making Our proposed revised pobcy on
Executive Directors’ Remuneration was outhined i our 2012
Annual Report 1ssued in March 2013 That policy now farms

the basis of the policy descnbed in the Remuneration Policy
Report and on which you will have an opportusity to vote at our
forthcoming AGM

Qur palicy 15 guided by the objective of attracting and retaining
high calibre executives Management continuity and retention is
partcularly cribicat in the PageGroup business which has built its
success on organic growth and prormotion from within The policy
aims to create a strong performance-onentated environment
which rewards achievement of meaningful targets over the shaort
and long-term Shori-term incentives are reinforced by long-
term performance measures which support our strategic focus
on profitability, organic growth and the creation of sustainable
shareholder value

Directors’ Remuneration Report

David Lowden {Remuneration Commuttee Chairmany)

Durnng the year | have consulted with many of our significant
nvestors and shareholder representative bodies and the
Cormmuttee has reviewed the guidance on remuneration reporting
produced by the GC100 and Investor Group Therr views were
taken into account in devising our remuneration policy and In
presenting our report A significant proportion of remuneration

1s performance based and delivered through shares Our bonus
deferral policy and shareholding gurdelines also encourage
ongeing commtrment to the business and ahgn the motives of
exgcutives with those of shareholders

Who 1s on our Remuneration Committee?

Percentage
ot
meetngs
Director From A B attended
Dawvid Lowden
(Committee
Charman) 22 Aug 2012 8 B 100%
Simon Boddie 24 Sept 2012 8 8 100%

Danuta Gray 10Dec 2013 1 1 100%

Ruby McGregor-
Smith 23 May 2007 8 7 88%

Tim Muller 15 Aug 2005 8 6 75%

A = Mawmum number of meetings the Director could have attended
B = Numnber of meetings the Duector actually attended

The instances of non-attendance arose where the Director had
a confiict with ancther business meeting
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What 15 the purpose of the Committee?

The Committee 15 responsible for the review, recommendation
and implementation of the Group’s remuneration strategy, its
framework and cost, ensunng that the Executive Directors and
other senior executives are fairly and responsibly rewarded

What are its key responsibihties?

+ o monitor and make recommendations to the Board on
the policy of remuneration for the Chairman of the Board,
the Execulive Directors and other semor executives of
the Group

= within the terms of the agreed policy, {0 datermine the
total remuneration packages for the Executive Directors
and other senor executives inciuding bonuses incentive
payrnents share awards, pension fights and any
compensation o termination of office

* to ensure compltance with current regulations and pnnciples
of good governance

» toreview the design of all share option and share incentive
pians, and any changes thereto, for approval by the Board
and shareholders and to determine each year whether
awards will be made

* to prepare a Direciors’ Remuneration Report for mciusion in
the Annual Report and Accounts

+ through the Chairman of the Remuneration Committes,
to mamntan contact with shareholders with regard to
PageGroup remuneration matters

Who attends meetings of the Committee?

Cniy members of the Commuttes are entitled to atiend
meetings of the Remuneration Commuttee However, the
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Dfficer are normally
Invited to attend meetings except when their own remuneration
1s under consideration Other advisors are also invited to
attend meetings as required for exampie the Group Human
Resources Director and the Group's remunerahion cansultants,
New Bndge Street No Director 15 (involved in deciding hus or
her own remuneration

Funnairoup Anmudl REor Ang Accra 1, 2013

What were the main activities and decisions
of the Committee during the year?

The main activities and decisions of the Commutiee since the
last report were

= consultation with shareholders and shareholder bodies with
regard to remuneration policy

= reviewing and approving rules of new share plans prior to
approval al the 2013 AGM

* reviewing Shareholder voting on remuneration matters
following the 2013 AGM

*  montonng executives’ progress on strategic objectives
* reviewing new reporting regufations regarding remuneration

» the appontment of new remuneration adwvisors following a
re-tendenng process

* an annual review and approval of salanes of the Chief
Executive Officer and other senior executives

« the approval of bonuses and share plan awards for
the executives based on the achisvement of pre-set
performance targets for 2013

| hope that you will feel able 10 suppon the resolutions on
remuneration proposed at the AGM

David Lowden
Chairman of the Remuneraton Committee

4 March 2014

Yy S

Directors’ Remuneration Report
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY REPORT

PageGroup 15 a global business that operatas in a cyclical

act as an effective retention tool dunng market downturns

industry In winch the retention of key executives and management The Commitiee believes that the best way to implement
continuity 1s cntical to the success of the Company As a result, such a policy s to pay competitive market salanes, profit

the Directors’ Remuneration Policy set out in this report has
been designed to encourage long-term decision making, to
remove undue volatiity from remuneration outcomes, and to

based bonuses, winch are not subject 1o excessive annual
fluctuations, and a long-term incentive plan based on a
longer term performance horizon

The Remuneration Policy set out below will take effect subject to shareholder approval, from 5 June 2014 {the date of the AGM}

FUTURE POLICY TABLE FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maximurm opportunity
Salary Attract, retain Salary levsls (and subseguent increases) are set after reviewing Current CEO salary
{Fixed pay) and reward high  vanous factors inctuding individual and Company performance, role  levet1s £565,000 which
calibre Executive  and responsibility, intemal relatmties such as the increases awarded  can hencreased in ling
Directors to other employees and prevaling market levels for Executive with the parameters set
Driractors at companies of comparable status and market value, out unger the column
taking into account the total remuneration package ‘Operation’
Sataries are normally reviewed anneally Aim for market
Salary ts pard manthly and increases are generally effective from compebtive salanes
1 January Salanes will nol Increass
by more than RPI +5%
except Increases n
excess of this may be
awarded i the case of
new Executive Diractors
where 1t Is appropriate
to offer a below market
salary initially on
appointment and a senes
of staged increases,
subject to performance
and expenence in rale,
to bring to a market
compettive salary
Benefits Attract, retain Competitive benefits including car alfowance or company car Competitive benefits m
{Fixed pay} and reward high  {Including running costs) private medical msurance for the Iine with market practice
calibre Exscutive  individual and famidy, permanent heaith insurance and four times
Directors salary iife assurance
Prowision of Provision of relocahon assistance and any associated costs or
opportunities for benefits (ncluding but not krvted 10 housing benefits, personal
connecting with tax advice and school fees) upon appointment if/when applicable
clients, rvestors The Company may also provide tax equalsation arrangemnents
and staff to Membership of clubs as appropnate for the development

Directors’ Remuneration Report
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Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maxmmum opportunity
Annual Incentivise the At least half based on audited financial measures, such as Maximam award of
Bonus delvery of annual  Profit Before Tax No more than one half assessed aganst other 175% of salary
{Vanable financial and strategic targets
pay) strategic targets  any strategic element will be payable only if the Committee s also

satisfied 1n the circumstances with the undertying performance of

the business

Performance below the threshold of the financial performance
target will resuilt in zero payment of the financial element of the
annual bonus Payments nse from 20% to 100% of the maximum
opportunsty for levels of parformance between the threshold and
maximum targets

Clawback provistons will be put in place for misstatement
and rmsconduct

Defarred Focus Executive  The terms of the new Deferred Bonus Plan, as referred to below, Not applicable
Bonus Plan  Directors on were approved by shareholders at the 2013 AGM {see "Annual Bonus”
{varable fong-term Compulsory deferral in shares applies to any annual bonus payment  Section above)

pay) performance and  ghave a hurdie of 125% of salary The Committee can lower the

align the iteresls  pyrdle for compulsory deterral

of Executive

Deforred shares vest in equal amounts after one and two years
Directors with

Deferred shares are not subject to further performance conditions
shareholders

as they are awarded in lieu of previously earned annual bonus

Diidends accrue or are paid on unvested awards over the
vesting penod

Clawback provisions are in place for misstatement
and rmisconduct

Long-ierm  Incentvise share  The terms of the new Long-term incentive Plan, as referred to Maxirmum award of

Incentive ownership and below, were approved by shareholders at the 2013 AGM 200% of salary

Plan long-term Awards are granted 1n the form of restncted shares or

(Vanable performance in mil-cost options

pay) ling with Group
strategy
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Awards have a performance peniod of at least three financial years

At least 62 5% of any award is based on financiat measures, such
as EPS

At least 12 5% of any award will be based on refative growth
compared to a peer group

The remainder of any award 1s subject 10 performance measures
based on long-term strategic objectives, such as people and
leadership development, strategy developrnent, IT strategy and
Corparate Centre development, which are disclosed i the Annual
Report on Remuneration in the year of grant

Performance below the threshold of the performance target for the
financial performance results in no veshing for the financial element
of the LTIP award For performance batween the threshold target
and maxamum target, vesting starts at 25% and nses to 100%

There I1s no opportumity {o re-test performance measures

Vasted shares must be held for a further two years if the
shareholding guidaline (set out below n the section
“Executive shareholding guidelines”) has not been met

DPividends accrus or are pard on unvested awards over the
vesting penad

Clawback prowvisions are n place for musstatement and misconduct

Pension Attract, retan Executive Directors may receive a defined contnbution pension CED 25% of salary
(Fixed pay) and farly reward  benefit or cash supplement Other Executive

hgh calibre Directors 20% of salary
Executive

Directors
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Choice of performance measures and
target setting

Information on performance measures and targets for each annual
award i1s disclosed n detail in the Directors’ Annual Remuneration
Report When choosing performance measures and setting targets
the Committee 1s gurded by the following principles
¢ performance measures should drive and reward the
achievernent of key short and long-term financial and
stzategic goals
* performance measures should provide alignment betweaen
the interests of management and those of shareholders
+ asignificant proportion of any incentive scheme should be
linked to Group financial performance
* PBT and EPS are used currently because they are key
measures of business performance and profitability

Strategic measures 1n the annual bonus arrangements are specific

to the individuaf and reward the delivery of key strategic objectives

for the business

= targets for inancial and strategic measures should be stretching
yet achievable, and set with reference to internat plans and
external expectations

« targets should not incentivise excessive risk taking

Legacy arrangements

In approving this Directors” Remuneration Policy Report authornity
15 given to the Company to honour any commitments entered into
with current or former Directors {such as the payment of a pension

Our approach to recruitment

or awards pursuant to the terms of the legacy share schemes)
granted pnor to the date that this policy takes sffect Details
of any such payments will be set cut in the Directors’ Annual
Remuneration Report as they anse

Consistency with remuneration for the
wider group

The Commuttee reviews and considers remuneration across
PageGroup when setting the Executive Director remuneration
polcy Remuneration levels for ali employees are set in the
context of internal relatrvities and market levels of remuneration for
comparable roles Pohcy for Executive Directors differs from other
senior executives 1n that Executive Director vaniable remuneration
1s capped whereas for other senior executives it 1s uncappad
This 1s1n ine with practice 1n the recruitment industry where
vanable rernuneration is funded from an uncapped profit pool
This arrangement provides & strong incentive for employees

to grow PageGroup profit and 1s a fundamental part of cur
remunerabion policy

Executive shareholding guidelines

Shareholding guidelines are operated to align Executive Drectors’
Interests with those of sharcholders The current gudeline 1s 200%
of salary and will be achieved through the retention of half of any
vesting share awards, net of tax

This wouid normally be expected to be achieved within five years
Executive Director shareholdings are disclosed annually in the
Directors’ Annual Remuneration Repoent

The Commuttee intends to structure the remuneration package of any new Executive Director as set out in the table below

Element of

remunerattion External recruits Internal recruits

Ongomg The remuneration package may include any The remuneration package may nclude any of the

remuneration of the elements set out in the Future Policy Table elements set out n the Future Palicy Table for

package for Executive Directors Executive Directors
Cngaing remuneration will be subject to the Ongoing remuneration will be subject to the maximum
maximurn levels as set out in the approved levels as set out in the approved remuneration policy
remuneration policy n force at the time of n force at the time of appointment As a resuit, the
appomntment As a result, the maximum levei of maximum level of vanable remuneration 1s 375% of salary
vanable remuneration 1s 375% of salary {excluding
any ‘buy out” payrents as referred to below)

Treatment of May offer addibicnal cash and/or share-based Any vanable pay efement awarded in respect of the prior

outstanding awards elements when considered to be in the best interests  role may be allowed to pay out according to its terms.

of vanable of the Company and, therefore, shareholders, m order  on grant

remuneration ta ‘buy out* forferted remuneration

Any ‘buy-out” payments would be basad solely on
remuneration lost when leaving the former
employer and would be on terms that are no more
favourabile than the delivery mechanism {t @ cash,
shares, options) and time honzons Where

forfeited remuneration 1s performance related, any
‘buy-ocut’ payment would be subject to performance
candibons determined by the Committee

The Commutiee may need to avail itseif of the
current Listing Rule 9 4 2 R to make such awards
where doing so s necessary to faciiate, in
exceptional circumstances, the recrurtment of
the relevant indwidual

71 Directors’ Remuneration Report
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In addition, the structure of remuneration for a new Execulive
Director may differ temporanly from that in effect for other
Executive Directors The circumstances in which this may
occur are set out below

* when it s appropriate to offer a below market salary
mntially, a senes of salary increases may be given over
the following few years subject to individual performance
and expernence in role which bring the incumbent to the
determined salary level, reflective of the policy to pay
market competitive salanes

= different performance measures may be set initially for
the annual bonus, taking into account the respaonsibilities
of the indviduat and the point in the financral year that
they joined

s the Committee may agree that the Company will meet
certain costs associated with the recruitment {for example
legat fees)

Pohlicy on payment for loss of office

On termination, any compensation payments due to an
Execulive Drrector are calculated in accordance with normal
legal principtes, including mitigation, as approprate  Should
notice be served by either party, an Executive Director can
continue to receive basic salary, benefits and penston for the
duration of his notce penod dunng which time the Company
may require the individual to continue to fulfil tes current duties
or may place the individual on garden leave The Company
can make a payment in fleu of notice (PILCN) as a lump sum
equivalent to the amount of base salary, benefits and penston
that would have been payable to the executive This payment
can be phased over the remainder of the notice period

and be subject to reduction if there are alternative earnings
The phasing and reduction of PILON will not apply to
Executive Directors in post at 31 December 2013 A payment
may be made In respect of accrued but untaken holiday

In respect of annual bonus, an Executive Director who ceases
employment or s under notice prior to the payment of bonus
may, If the indraidual 1s considerad by the Comumittes in its
discretion to be a good leaver, receive a paymaent in cash

Any payment would be on a pro-rata basis reflecting the
period of tirne served from the start of the financial year to
the date of termination (or to the date of notice and/or garden
leave, f earlier), other than where the Commuttee decides
otherwise i exceptional circumstances Any bonus paid
would normally be subject to the normal bonus targets,
although the Committee may modify these in exceptional
circumstances, taking into account the individual’s role during
the year of termination and provided that any new targets are
no easier than the onginal targets

Under the rules of the new Deferred Bonus Plan and the
new Long-term Incentive Plan, each as approved by
sharehoiders at the 2013 AGM, outstanding awards vest
if an Executive Director dies or leaves for a specified
“good leaver” reason, including

* redundancy retirement injury or disability

* g transfer of employment in connection with the disposal of
a business or undertaking

» the company with which the Executive Director holds office
or employment ceasing to be a member of the Group

In all other circumstances awards will lapse, provided that the
Committee has discretion to determine otherwise, in which
case the provisions applicable to good leavers will apply

FenpaGroup Annual & port Ard Accognt, 2013

Good leavers’ awards nommally vest at the usual time unless
the Committee determines, in exceptional circumstances
that they should vest earlier In addition, awards normatly will
be pro-rated 1o reflect the trme served since the award date
unless the Commuttee determmnes otherwise but are always
based on the achievement of any performance conditions

in the case of death, all awards will vest immediately subject
to any performance cntena but with no time pro-rating

Under the Deferred Bonus Plan and the Long-term incentive
Plan awards will also vest on the occurrence of a corporate
event affecting the Company based on the actievement of any
performance conditions  Awards normally will be pro-rated

to reflect the time to the date of the relevant event unless the
Committee determines atherwise

The extent o which any awards rade under legacy share
plans prior to the effective date of this pohcy would vest upon
cessation of employment would be determined in accordance
with their terms

in considenng the exercise of discretion as set out
above the Committes will take into account ail relevant
circumnstances Factors that the Committee may {but shall
not be obliged to) take into account will include but not be
limited to, ihe following
» the best interests of the Company
+ the contribution of the Executive Director to the success
of the Company dunng their tenure
+ the need to ensure continuity
+ the need o compromise any clairns that the Executive
Director may have
* whether the Executive Director received a PILON payment
» whether a greater proportion of the outstanding award
may have vested had the Executive Director served out
his notice
+ whether the Execufive Director has presided over an
arderly handover
« adjustment of performance outcomes to ensure that payout
is fair and reasonatble in the context of the Cempany’s
overall performance
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lllustration of the application of our
remuneration policy

The chart below gives an inchcation of the total ramuneration
which could be received by the Chief Executive Officer under
the policy Three scenanos are presented the minimum
remuneration recewvable the amount receivable if he performs
In ine with the Company's expeciations, and the masurmuem
rermuneration recenvable

Chief Executive Officer
£'000
3000

T

2 855k

2500

1000

1500

o0

500

100%

Minimum Target Maxinum

B Foxed remuneration Il Annual Bonus

W Long-Term Incentive

Note thal the charts are only indicative as share price movement
and dividend accruals have been excluded Assumptions for each
scenarnc are as follows

« Minmum fixed remuneration only (¢ e salary, benefits
and pension)

« Target frced remuneration plus 80% of maximum annual bonus
opporiuniy plus 50% vesting of awards under long-term
ncentive awards

* Maximurm fixed remuneration plus maxmmum annual
bonus opportunity plus 100% vesting of long-term
incentive awards

The charts are based on an annual satary of £565,000 and
assume a maximum annual bonus opportunity of 175% of salary
and maximum long-term incentive awards of 200% of salary.

tn accordance with the above policy

Statement of constderation of employment
conditions elsewhere 1n the Group

PageGroup does not consult directly with employees when
determining remuneration policy for Executve Directors
However, Increases in pay across the senor management
population and the wider workforce are taken into account
when seiting pay levels for Executive Duectors

Directors' Remuneration Report

Statement of consideration of
shareholder views

The Commuttes considers shareholder fesdback received in
refation to the AGM each year at its first meeting following the
AGM The Remuneration Commuttee Charrman will seek to
inform major sharehoiders of any matenal changes to the
remwineration policy in advance and will generally offer a
meeling to discuss these

Key areas of discretion

Key areas of Committee discretion in our remuneration policy
include (but are not imited to)

+ the choice of financial performance measures in vanable
remuneration and the choice of performance targets for
thosa measuras

¢ the treatment of leavars in the Annual Bonus Ptan (as descnbed
in the ' Policy on payment for loss of office™ section on page 72)

« certain discretions as set out in the plan rules relating te the
vesting of long-term incentive awards and Deferred Bonus Plan
awards, such as

~ the timing of grant of award and/or payrment

- the size of an award and/or a payment {subject {o the
maximums set aut in the Future Policy Table for Executive
Directars)

- determunation of a good leaver {in addion to any specified
categones) for incentive plan purposes based on the rules
of each plan, and the resulting treatment of the award
{as descnbed in the "Policy on payment for loss of office”
section on page 72}

-~ adjustments required in certan circumstances (e g nghts
1s5ues, corperate restructunng and special dividends)

- the abiity to adjust existing performance conditions for
exceptional events so that they can stil fulfil their onginal
purpose {subject to the amended condibion not being
matenally less challenging)

External Non-Executive Director positions

Subject to Board approval, Executve Directors are permiited to
take on non-gxecutive positions with other companies Executive
Directors are permitied to retain therr fees in respect of such
positions Details of outside directorships hetd by the Executive
Directors and any fees that they received are provided on page 84
of the Directors” Annual Remuneration Report
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Future Policy Table for Board Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Board Charrman and Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for their services and do not receive any other benefits from the
Group, nor do they participate in any of the bonus or share schemes The fees recognise the responsibiiity of the role and the tme
commitments required, and are not performance related or pansionable They are pard monthly in cash and there are no other benefits

Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maxirnum apportunity
Fees Attract retain and Reviewed by the Board after recommendation The maximum
fairy reward high by the Chairman and Chief Executive (and by the aggregate fees for all
calibre indviduals Committee in the case of the Chairman) taking Directors allowed by the
nto account indwidual responsibiiities, such as Company's Arirclas of

committee Charmanship, time caomriiment, general  Associabion 15 £600,000
employes pay increases, and prevaiing market levels ¢ urant fee levels ara
at companies of comparable status and market value  ¢oy gt 1n the Directors'

Fee increases are normally reviewed annually and are  Annual Remuneration
generally effective from 1 January Report

The above principles will also be applied for the recrukment of new Non-Executive Directors

Service contracts and letters of appointment

All Executive Directors’ service contracts contain a twelve notice or in accordance with the Articles of Association of

month notice penod The service contracts also contain the Company There are no prowisions on payment for early

restnctive covenants preventing the Exacutive Directors termination in the letters of appaintment After the inihal -

from competing with the Group for six months following the three year term they may be reappointed for a further term g

termination of employment and preventing the Executive of three years subject to annual re-election at Annuat Zo

Directors from soliciting key employees clients and candidates General Meetings :_"é.g

{r:;:teh:ToF;ltooxgxg ?2:;?:::;”;2255};;:£ames for twetve Further detail on service contracts and letters of g%
appointment are set out on page 84 and copies are =2

Non-Executive Directors, including the Charrman of the Board, available for inspection at the Company's registered office S

ara engaged under letters of appointment and do not have dunng normal business hours

service contracts with the Company They are appointed for a
fxed term of three years, duning which period the appomtment
may be terminated by either party upon one maonth’s wntten
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DIRECTORS’ ANNUAL
REMUNERATION REPORT

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with
Part 3 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013
The Annual Remuneration Reperd will be put {o an adwisory
shareholder vote at the 2014 AGM The information on pages
76 to 85 has been audited where required under the regulations

Directors’ Remuneration Report
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Directors’ remuneration as a single figure

The tables below report a single figure for total remuneration for each Director for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2012

2013 Salary Short- Lapse of Long- Dwidends Lapse
and termm  short-term term paid on of
Fees Benetfits Pension ncentives incentives) wncentrves unvested Other jotung Total
{note 1) (note2) (note 3) (note 4} {nate 5 {note 6) shares (note 7} award) (note d)
Executive £°000 £000 £:000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 (note 8) £'000
Steve Ingham 550 30 138 558 - -~ 42 - - 1,318
Andrew Bracey 365 24 73 207 (269) - 13 286 {187} 512
Non Executive
Robin Buchanan 220 - - - - - - - - 220
Simon Boddie 55 - - - - - - - - 55
Danuta Gray 3 - - - - - - - - 3
David Lowden 58 - - - - - - - - 58
Ruby McGregor
Sryuth 55 - - - - - - - - 55
Tim Miller 48 - - - - - - - - 48
Totat 1,354 54 211 765 (769) - 55 286 {187) 2,269
20 12 Salary Short- Lapse of Long- Dmdends Lapse
and term short-term term pad on of
Fees Benefits Pension incentives mcentives] incenbves  unvested Other joiming Total
(note 1)  (note 2}  (note 3) {note 4} {note 5} {note 6} shares (note7) award ({note 4)
Executive £'0600 £1000 £'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000  (note 8) £000
Steve ingham 450 28 113 1,122 - 958 52 - - 2,723
Andrew Bracay 249 17 48 690 - - B 360 - 1,372
Charles-Henr
Dumon 53 19 22 - - - - 2,531 - 2,631
Stephen Puckett 159 15 40 250 - - 23 - -~ 487
Non Executive
Robin Buchanan 220 - - - - - - - - 220
Simon Boddie 13 - - - - - - - - 13
Dawid Lowden 21 - - - - - - - - 21
Ruby McGregor
Smith 58 - - - - - - - - 58
Tim Mifler 47 - - - - - - - - a7
Hubert Rexd 19 - - - - - - - - 19
Reg Sindall 36 - - - -~ - - - - 36
Totat 1,331 79 223 2,062 - 958 83 2,891 - 7,627
Notes
1 Salary and fees represent the salary and fees pard in cash i respect of the financial year
2 Benefits represent the taxable vaiue of the benefits provided i the year and compnses company car or cash aherngtive, fuel, permanent health
nsurance, medical insurance, fe msurance and, i the case of the CED, golf club membership used for corporate entedaining
3 Pension includes the cash value of Company contnibutions to defined contnbution pension plans and cash payments m lieu of
pension contributions
4 The vanance n short-term and tolal remuneration s driven by the new reporting methodology as descnbed in detail in ransition 10 the new
executive remuneration strategy’ on page 77
5 The ISP Deferred Award granted to Andrew Bracey on 11 March 2073, over 54 299 shares lapsed on Andrew Bracey resigning  The value of this
award was nncluded n the 2012 single figure for remuneration {within the “Short-term mcentives™ figure} and therefore the lapse of the award in
2013 5 shown as a negative figure The negative value 1s calculated using the share pnce on the date of notice of resignaton, 11 October 2013
of 494.5p Further detail regarding payments for loss of office s prowided on page 83
6 The value of ibng-term incentrves n 2013 1s nil snce the performance target was not met for the award granted on 11 March 2011 with a
periormance penod ended 31 December 2013 Details are prowvided on page 80 The vajue of £958k in respect of Steve Ingham n 2012 represents
the value of the performance element of the ISP award of 9 March 2009 being £695k {153,785 shares valued at the share price on the vesting date
of 10 March 2013 which was 451 8p, see page 81} and the value of the share options vesting on 10 March 2013 under the Executive Share Option
Scheme which was £263k, valued at that same date and price  Further detail regarding the ESOS award 1s shown on page 82
7 2013 Other The sum of £286k 15 the payment 1 lleu of notice made to Andrew Bracey in respec! of the value of the salary and contractual benefits
including pension payments which would have accrued to him dunng the balance of his notice pened following s resignation from the Company
on 11 October 2013 taking account of fus continued cover under the Company s private medrea insurance scheme unul 31 March 2014
2012 Qther Andrew Bracey was granted a defered share award on appointment of 75,472 shares, beng one times base satary of £360 000
converted into shares at 477p See page 80 for details Charles-Henn Dumon receved compensation for loss of office of £2 531 000 as detaded in
the 2012 Annual Report
8 The second tranche of the Joimng Award granted to Andrew Bracey on 23 Apnl 2013 aver 37 736 shares lapsed on Andrew Bracey resigning

The value of this award was ncluded in the 2012 single figure for remuneration (within the “Other” figure) and therefore the lapse of the award in
2013 18 shown a3 a negative figure The negative value 15 calculated using the share price on the date of notice of resignaton, 11 October 2013
of 4594 5p Further detall regarding the Joning Award s provided on pages 80 and 82
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Andrew Bracey - former CFO

Andrew Bracey served notice of his resignation from tus employment on 11 October 2013 (and formally resigned his directorshep on

14 November 2013) He was placed on garden leave by the Company on 11 October 2013 until fus employment terminated on

24 February 2014 Andrew Bracey was n accordance with the terms of his service contract, pasd in kew of the batance of his notice penod
The sum pa:d n keu of notice was £286,317, compnising the value of his basic salary and the value of contractual benefits (including a cash
alternative eguivalent to the nomai pension contribution) for the balance of his notice period {taking accouni of the fact that Andrew Bracey’s
membership of the Company’s private medica!l insurance scheme shall continue untid 31 March 2074) As a result of s resignation

all unvested share awards held by Andrew Bracey lapsed

On the basis that Andrew Bracey remaned employed for the entirety of the financial year ending 31 December 2013, he was, under the terms
of his service contract, eligible to receive an annuaf bonus at the discretion of the Committee Taking into account all relevant performance
targets and the penod of the year actively worked by him, the Committee determined to award Andrew an annual bonus payment totalling
£208,572 The basis on which this payment was determined is set out in the “Determination of annual bonus for the financial year ending

31 December 2013" section opposite

Share awards

Although Andrew Bracey's joning award was subject to a defesral penod, it is reguired 1o be inciuded i the single total figure of remuneration
table for 2012 the year of award Simtarly, the Deferred Award under the ISP granted to Andrew Bracey in March 2013 was granted by
reference to Company performance in 2012 and so s included in the 2012 single figure

The subsequent lapse of these awards is therefore shown as a negative figure in 2013 representing the lapse of these awards due to Andrew
Bracey's resignation The negative figure 1s calculated using the share price on the date of resignation, 11 October 2013, of 484 5p

Andrew Bracey was also granted a Performance Award under the ISP during the year As this was subject to further performance conditions,
the value of the award 1s nct included In the single figure of remuneration for 2012 or 2013 (any value that vested would have been included
in the single figure for 2015) As the value of this award has not yet been reported In the singie figure table, the fapse of this award s also not
showr as a negative value

Transthion to the new executive remuneration strategy

The figures in this single figure table represent a transitional penad due to the change in the Company’s executive remuneration strategy that
was described to shareholders in the 2012 Annual Report

Until last year, the otd Michael Page Incentive Share Plan {the “Incentive Share Plan” or “ISP™) was the executive share plan operated by the
Company The Incentive Share Plan was funded with a percentage of Group profits in the financial year preceding grant and up to 309% of
that amount was avaltable for awards to the Executive Directors Awards were made over shares in the Company Two-thirds of the shares
were subject to a three-year deferral period but no further performance conditions {the “Deferred Awards™ The remaining one-third was
subject to further perfformance condiizons owver a three year penod {the “Performance Awards™

The Deferred Awards granted in March 2013, based or profits for the financial year ending 31 December 2012, are included in the 2012
“shor-term mcentives” figure As no further Deferred Awards are being granted, there 1s no comesponding amount included in the 2013
“short-term mcentives” figure

The decrease in the “short-ferm incentives™ figure from 2012 1o 2013 therefore shows the phasing out of ISP Deferred Awards There will be a
corresponding ingrease in the “long-term incentives” figures in due course, representing the move from the 1SP structure to the new Michas!
Page |ong-term Incentive Plan (the “Long-term Incentive Plan” or "LTIP"), as approved by shareholders at the 2013 AGM However due to
the way the single figure for total remuneration 1s required {o be reported under the new regulations, this increase in the long-term element of
executive remuneration will not show In the single figure table untl the 2016 Annual Repart (when the vesting value of the first LTiP Awards to
be granted n March 2013 will be shown)

Short-term incentives included in the single figure table

For the financial year ended 31 December 2013 the “short-tenm incentives” figure includes (1) the annual cash bonus and {2} the deferred
element of the bonus, which wili be granted in March 2014 as an award under the new Michae! Page Deferred Bonus Plan {the “new Deferred
Bonus Plan™} as approved by shareholders at the 2013 AGM

For the financial year ending 31 December 2012 the “short-term incentives” figure includes (1) the annual cash bonus, {2} the deferred
element of bonus, which was granted in March 2013 as an award under the old Michael Page Annual Bonus Pian (the “oid Annual Bonus
Plan”), and (3) the Deferred Award granted in March 2013 under the Incentive Share Plan {as explamned above)
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These amounts are shown as follows

2013 Total shown
Deferred bonus n single
Execuhve Annual cash bonus element ISP Deterred Award figure table
Steve ingham 558 - - 558
Andrew Bracey 207 - - 207
Totat 7685 - - 765
2012 Total shown
Deferred bonus n single

Executive Annual cash bonus element ISP Deferred Award figure table
Steve ingham 675 75 an 1,122
Andrew Bracey 450 V] 240 690
Stephen Puckett 250 0 0 250
Tota 1,375 76 613 2,062

Determination of annual bonus for the financial year ended 31 December 2013

The annual bonus payment for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 for Steve Ingham, Chief Executive Officer,

was determined as follows

Bonus for Profit Before Bonus for Strategic
Tax (PBT) performance Performance Total bonus

fole Potential Actual Potential Actual Potential Actual
CEQ £k £687,500 £305,300 £275,000 £253.000 £962,500 £558,300

% of salary

% of maximum

The PBT threshold and maximum targets were £53 9m and £89 8m The actual outcome of PBT before exceptional tems was
£67 1m which resulted in a payment o Steve Ingham of 305 3k as shown abave This represented 44% of the maximum payabie

under this element

Performance against the strategic performance measures was assessed against a number of areas These areas, together with the
Committee’s assessment of performance, are set out in the table below

126% 56% 50% 46% 175% 102%

71% 44% 29% 92% 100% 58%
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Strategic performance
measure Assessment of 2013 performance
Asia and Americas The maximum payment for the delivery of strategic performance objectives in 2013 was equal to 50%

divisionai performance

US and Canacdfa divisional
performance

Diversification
by discipline

Feople

of salary and was assessed against the following performance measures

» Agia and Amencas divisional performance

+ US and Canada divisional performance

* Diversification by discipline

* Paople
The Committee assessed performance aganst these measures at the end of 2013 n line with the
framewark set out at the beginning of the year It was determned that performance targets relating
o dmvisional performance had been exceeded In particular, very strang growth in the US and
Canada dwision represented a level of performancs which significantty exceeded the Commitee’s
expectations at the beginning of 2013 Objectives relating to ‘diversification by discipline’ were
achieved, whilst objectives relating to ‘people’ did not fully satisfy the Remuneration Gommuttee i alt
respects, aithough good progress had been made

Based on this assessment the Commitiee determined that a bonus of 46% of salary was payable to Steve ingham which
represented 92% of the maximum payabte under this element

FanaCroup Anrual Report Ang Accouat, 2013
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The annual bonus payment for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 for Andrew Bracey former Chief Financial Officer was determined
as follows

Bonus for Profit Belore

Total

Tax (PBY) performance Bonus for Strategic Performance otal bonus
Notional Actual Notional Actual Notional Actual
{before (after {before (after (before {after
Role Potential proratng) prorating)  Potential prorating) prorating) Potenba! prorating) prorating)
CFOQ £k £365,000 £160,600 £123,662 £182,500 £107,675 £82,.910 547 500 £268275 £206,572
o6 of salary 100% 44% 34% 50% 30% 23% 150% 74% 57%
% of maximum B87% 44%% 34% 33% 59% 45% 100% 49% 38%

The PBT threshold and maximum targets were £53 8m and £89 8m The actual outcome of PBT before excaptional items was £67 1m which
resulted in a payment to Andrew Bracey of £123,662 as shown above This represented 34% of the maximum payable under this element

The Committee considered it appropnate to tme pro-rate Andrew Bracey's annual bonus payment to 11 October 2013, being the date on
which he went on garden leave and after which he was accordingly no longer required to provide active services The tables set out directly
above and below reflect the annual bonus amounts before and after the apphcation of time pro-ration

Performance against the strategic performance measures was assessed aganst a number of areas These areas, together with the
Committee’s assessment of performance are set out in the table below

Strategic performance

measure Assessment of 2013 performance
Delvery of new The maxwnum paymernt for the delivery of strategic performance objectives tin 2013 was 50% of salary and
IT systermns was assessed aganst the following performance measures

Deidvery of new IT systems

Finance & Adrministration Finance and adrmrustration

Taxation
Centrat Finance Team
Accounting

Central Finance Team The committee assessed performance against these measures at the end of 2013 in line with tha framework
set out at the beginning of the year 1§ was determined that progress in the IT system plict rdentified
enhancements which wera required before the further roll-aut acrass the Group Progress was mada in
reducing the finance and administration headcount and expenditure year on year, further plans to reatise

Accounting future benefits were developed at the end of the year Plans for taxation and accounting were partiaily
defivered and development of the central finance team took place towards the end of the year and into
early 2014

Taxation

Based on this assessment, the Committee determined that a bonus of 23% of salary was payable to Andrew Bracey which represented
45% of the maximum payable under this element

Deferred Annual Bonus

Any bonus for the CEO above 125% of salary 1s deferred 1 shares As shown on page 80, the bonus for the financial year ended
31 December 2013 was 102% of salary and therefore, no bonus was deferred

Determination of ISP Deferred Awards granted in March 2013

In 2013, the CEQ and CFO were ebgible o receve ISP awards Andrew Bracey, in accordance with his employment contract, was awarded one
times salary (£360,000} All other ISP awards were funded from a pool equal to 6% of Group profits in 2012 Based on 2012 results this pool
was equal to £4,664 148 From this pool, £556 500 was allocatad to Steve Ingham Two thirds of the awards to the CEO and GFQ were awarded
as Deferred Awards which subject to continued employment, will in the normal course vest three years after grant, as follows

ISP Deferred Shares

Executive Value Number of shares subject to Award
Steve Ingham £371,000 83,937 shares
Andrew Bracey £240,000 54,299 shares

Nate the cash value of the ISP Deferred Awards was converted into a number of shares using the share price on 11 March 2013
the date of grant The share price was 442p
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The remaining one third of the allocation from the ISP poo! was awarded as Performance Awards As these Performance Awards are
subject to further conditions, they are not included 1n the single figure of remuneration for 2012 Further details of these Performance
Awards arg set out on page 81

Foliowing Andrew Bracey's resignation from the Group on 11 October 2013, both the deferred and the performance elerments of the
2013 ISP award lapsed

L.ong-term incentives included in the single figure table

The “long-term incentives” figure represents the Performance Awards granted under the old ISP

The 2013 value represents an estimate of the value of the percentage of the Performance Award held by the CEQ that was granted
on 11 March 2011 The performance penod of this Performance Award ended on 31 December 2013 and details of the performance
condition 1s set out on page 81 with the descnption of outstanding share awards Over the perfformance penod PageGroup’s average
annua EPS growth was equal to RPI -7 1% This resubted in no shares vesting and therefore there 1s no value for icng-lerm incentives
ncluded In the single figure table 1n 2013

Ther EPS calculation 15 set aut below

2011 IT1P Award - Performance condibion measurement

Base year 2010 adjusted EPS iB &2
Actual 2013 adjusted” EPS 16 32
RP! index for December 2010 21690
RP} index for December 2013 2362
Earmings growth across the period -12 36%
RPI growth across the penod 8 90%
% EPS growth across the peniod -21 30%
Average annual EPS growth -7 10%

“To ensure that EPS measurement 1s consistent across years, adjustments are made to exclude the charge for share options and
incentive share plans, together with related taxation from both the base and the measurement year The EPS 1s not adjusted for the
cost of the Executives’ deferred bonus shares where relevant

One-off joining award included in the single figure table

SH0OLI

Andrew Bracey was granted a one-off joining award on 23 Aprit 2012 over 75 472 shares being cne-times base salary of £360,000
converted into shares at 477p This grant was made in two equal tranches, the first subject to a deferral period of one year and

the second subject to a deferral penod of two years Although this joiming award was subject to the deferral penod, it 1s required
by the governing regutations to be included in the single figure total of remuneration table for the year of award as there were no
performance conditions, and must also be shown separately to the “long-term incentives” figure
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The first equal trancha of the award vested on 23 Apni 2013 Following Andrew Bracey s resignation from the Group on 11 October 2013
the second tranche of the award lapsed

Percentage change in remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer

The following table provides a summary of the 2013 increase in base safary for the Chief Executive Officer compared to the average
increase for the Group head office population in the same penod We have also prowided the proposed 2014 salary increase for
comparson

2014 increase % 2013 increase % 2012 ncrease %

Chief Executive 27% 22 2% 14 8%
Salary

Group head office population 30% (a) 30% (a) 2 9% (a)

0,

Benefits Chief Execuive 5% 0%

Group head office population 096 0%
Short-term Chief Executive -50% 6%
|
nentives Group head office population 18% 219

{a) represents average increase

The Group head office population has been selected as the most relevant population for companson purposes since the CEQ s
based in the UK as are the Group head office staff and the head office population does not include operational staff incentivised
against sales targets

Short-term incentives include cash bonuses, any deferred efement of the bonus and ISP deferred awards under the old ISP plan
which did not have performance conditions As explained on page 77, the decrease ia the “short-term incentives” figure from 2012
to 2013 shows the phasing out of ISP Awards
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Details of long-term incentive pay awarded in 2013

As explamed on page 79, ISP awards in 2013 were granted in March 2013 to the CEO and CFO £556,500 was awarded 1o Steve Ingham
and £360 000 was awarded to Andrew Bracey Two thizds of these allocations were awarded as the Deferred Awards under the ISP which are
descrived on page 79 (and the valus of which have been included in the single total figure of remuneration for 2012}

The remaireng one third of this allocation was awarded as Performance Awards under the ISP These Performance Awards will vest after three
years subject to an EPS performance condition and continued employment Details of these awards which were granted on 15 March 2013
are sef out below

ISP performance shares

% of salary End of

vesting at performance
Executive Type of award Basis Face Value threshold penod Performance condition
Cne third of
aliocation from Based on PageGroup EPS
Steve Ingham 41,968 shares 2012 ISP pool  £185,500 50% 31/12/2015 perfarmance in excess of
RPi aver the financial years
Cne third of 2013, 2014 and 2015
allocation from Further detail 1s provided
Andrew Bracey 27,149 shares 2012 ISP pool  £120,000 50% 31/12/2015 below

Note The ISP perfermance shares set out above for Steve Ingham wilt be nclucied in the 2015 single figure for remuneration {if vested)
Note Face value calculated using the share price on the date of grant 11 March 2013, being 442p

Following Andrew Bracey's resignation from the Group on 11 October 2013 both the deferred and performance elements of the
2013 ISP award lapsed

Outstanding Share Awards

This section sets out the outstanding interests of the Executive Directors under the old Incentive Share Plan the oid Annual Bonus
Plan and the legacy Michael Page International plc Execubive Share Option Scheme and details of the joining award granted to
Andrew Bracey

Incentive Share Pian ~ Performance Award

Details of Performance Awards made under the incentive Share Pian are as follows

Number Number
of shares of shares
at1 Granted Vested Lapsed at 31 End of
January duning dunng dunng December performance
Executive {irant date 2013 year year year 2013 penod Vesting date
Steve fngham 2 March 2009 153,785 - {163 785} - - 31 December 2012 10 March 2013
Steve Ingham 11 March 2011 34,020 - - ~ 34,020 31 December 2013 12 March 2014
Steve Ingham 12 March 2012 41,005 - - - 41,005 31 0December 2014 12 March 2015
Steve Ingharm 11 March 2013 - 41968 - - 41,968 31 December 2015 11 March 2016
Total 228,810 41,968 (153,785 - 116,993
Andrew Bracey 11 March 2013 - 27,149 - {27,149} ~ 31 December2015 11 March 2016
Total - 27,149 {27,149) -

The performance conditions for the Performance Awards made to Steve ingham are set out below Following Andrew Bracey's resignation
from the Group on 11 Cctober 2013 the above award made {0 him lapsed

Average annual growth in Company

Value of Shares subject to performance EPS m excess of the increase i the
condiions vesting on Award Date Retail Pnces Index over three years
Shares with value greater than 75% of Participant’s Salary at Award Date 10%

Shares with value between 50% and 75% of Participant’s Salary at Award Date 7 5%

Shares with value up to 50% of Parhcipant’s Salary at Award Date 5%
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Incentive Share Plan — Deferred Awards
Details of Deferred Awards made under the Incentive Share Plan that remain outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as follows

Number Number
of shares of shares
at1 Granted Vested Lapsed at 31 End of
January during dunng dunng December performance
Executive Grant date 2013 year year year 2013 penod Vesting date
Steve ingham 11 March 2011 68,039 - - - 68,0359 n‘a 12 March 2014
Steve Ingham 12 March 2012 82,011 - - - 82,031 n/a 12 March 2015
Steve ingham 11 March 2013 - B3937 - - 83,937 nfa 11 March 2018
Totat B B ) 150,650 83,937 - - 233,987
Andrew Bracey 11 March 2013 - 54299 -~ (54,299) - nfa 11 March 2016
Total } i R - 54,2089 -~ [54,299) - _
Following Andrew Bracey's resignation from the Group on 11 October 2013 the above award made {o hm lapsed
Annual Bonus Plan
Details of awards made under the old Annual Bonus Plan that reman outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as shown in the
table below
Number Number
of shares of shares
at1 Granted Vested Lapsed at31 End of
January dunng dunng duning December performance
Executive Grant date 2013 year year year 2013 penod Vesting date
Steve Ingham 11 March 2011 70 162 - (70,162} - - nfa 12 March 2013
Steve Ingham 12 March 2012 8116 - (8 116) - - nfa 12 March 2013
Stave tngham 12 March 2012 8116 - - - 8,116 n‘a 12 March 2014
Steve Ingham 11 March 2013 - 8,631 - - 8,631 n/a 11 March 2014
Steve Ingham 11 March 2013 - 8,631 - - 8 631 n/a 11 March 2015
Total 86,394 17,262 (78,278) - 25378
Angdrew Bracey Joining Award
Details of the Jorning Award granted to Andrew Bracey are set out below
Number
Number of of shares
shares at  Granted Vested Lapsed at 31 End of
1 January dunng dunng dunng December performance
Executive Grant date 2013 year year year 2013 penod Vesting date
Andrew 23 Apnt 2012 37,736 - {37,736) - - n/a 23 Apri 2013
Bracey 23 Apnit 2012 37,736 - - (37,7386) - n/a 23 Apri 2014
Total 75,472 - {37,736} (37,736) -

Following Andrew Bracey’s resignation from the Group on 11 October 2013 the second tranche of his joiming award 1apsed

Executive Share Option Scheme

Details of options granted under the Michael Page Internationat plc Executive Share Option Scheme that were outstanding dunng the
year ending 31 December 2013 are as shown in the tabie below

The market pnce of the shares at 31 December 2013 was 488p with a range durning the year of 356 Cp to 502 5p

Number

Number of of shares

shares at at 31
1 January Exercised Lapsed December Exercise Penod of
Grant date 2013 durng year dunng year 2013 pnce{p) exercise
28 February 2005 50,000 - - 50,600° 18075 2008-2015

Steve Ingham

10 March 2010 400,000 - {25,853) 374,147 381 50 2013-2020

Total 450,000 - {25,853) 424,147°

* At 31 December 2013, all share options have vested and are avallable for exercise

The share options granted to Steve Ingham on 10 March 2010 had a performance condition based on 2012 PBT before exceptional
tems The vesting percentage was on a straight ine basis from 0% at £48m to 100% at £66m PBT before exceptional items for

the year ended 31 December 2012 was £64,836,602 and therefara 374,147 (83 54%;} of the 400,000 share oplions vested on

10 March 2013 The value of the shares vesting using the share pnce on 10 March 2013 (451 8p) less the exercise price of the shares
(381 5p) was £263k and this value 15 included in the 2012 single iigure 1able under long-term incentives
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Statement of Directors’ shareholdings

it 1s PageGroup policy that Executive Directors are required to build and hold, as a2 minimum, a direct beneficial interest in the Company’s
ordinary shares equal to two times thasr base salary As at 31 Decernber 2013, the Chief Executive Cfficer complied with this requirement
Andrew Bracey joined the Gompany in Aprl 2012 and was in the process of building the required mimimum holding pnor to hus deparure

The beneficial interests of the Directors who served during the year and their families, 1n the ordinary shares of the Company are shown in
the table below This table shows mnterests that are held outnight, and does not include interasts in shares which are subject to ongeing
vesting and/or performance condiions which are set out on pages 81 and B2

Executive

Shares acquired on vesting Directors

of share awards Value of Value of

holding holding

Andrew asat 3 asatAH

Ordinary At1 Bracey Asat31 December December

Executive shares of  January Jonmg Purchased Disposal December 2013 asa%of

Directors ip 2013 1sP ABP  Award Total n year n year 2013 {£'000) salary
Direct

Steve ingham Holdng t567174 153,785 78278 ~ 232063 - 121521 1,677.716 8,187 1449%
Direct

Andrew Bracey Holding - - - 97738 37736 - 17,879 19,857 ar 28%

1 in addition to the shares n this table, Steve Ingham has the beneficial interest in the shares listed on pages 81 and 82 as cutstanding
awards under the Incentive Share Plan and Annual Bonus Plan

2 Steve Ingham 153,785 shares vested pursuant to a performance award under the ISP dunng the year, and 78 278 shares vested pursuant
to an award under the old Annual Bonus Plan dunng the year

3 Andrew Bracey 37,736 shares vested pursuant to the first part of hus Joming Award dunng the year

4 Value of holding at 31 December 2012 uses the closing share pnce on 31 December 2013 which was 488p

At As at

Non-Executive Ordinary  1January Purchasedin 31 December

Directors shares of 1p 2013 year 2013
Chrect

Robin Buchanan Holding 39,678 53,362 93,040

No other Non-Executive Director had an interest in the shares ¢f the Company durnng the year

Payments for loss of office

Andrew Bracey served notice of his resignation from hus employment on 11 October 2013 (and formally resigned his directorship on

14 Novernber 2014) He was placed on garden leave by the Company on 11 October 2013 until his employment terminated on 24 February
2014 Andrew received a payment in heu of notice (PILON) for satary contractuat benefits {taking account of the fact that his membership of
the Company's pnvate medical insurance scheme shall continue untit 31 Masch 2014) and a cash alternative equivalent to the normat pension
contribufton due for the remaring portion of his notice period and a bonus payment as described on page 79 Andrew did not receive any
payment for loss of office and his outstanding share awards both under the Incentive Share Flan and his Joining Award, lapsed These have
been included in the single figure for total remuneratton table on page 76

Payments to past Executive Directors

Payments made in 2013 to Charles-Henr Dumon (Executive Director resigned 28 February 2012) were in ne with the disclosure in the
Remuneration Report on page 62 of the 2012 Annual Report and Accounts

Relative importance of spend on pay

The graph below shows detalls of PageGroup’s retained profit after tax, distnbutions by way of dwvidends and share buybacks, overall spend
an pay to all employees {se2 note 4 i the financial statements on page 106) overall spend on Directors pay as included in the single figure
table on page 76 and tax paid in the financial year The percentage change compared {0 prior year 1s also shown

400 = -5% B 203
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300
200
100
0
Profit after Dmidends Shares Overall spend Overall spend Tax pad
tax {€my) paid (£m) purchased by on pay (&m}  on Dwrector’s pay (£m) {£m}
the EBT (tm)

Directors’ Remuneration Report Padetioup Armuct Repert At accout 251




Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment

Executive Director Service Contract date Unexpired term at 31 December 2013 Notice penod

Steve Ingham 31/12/2010 No specific term 12 months

Non-Executive Director Letter of Appommtment date  Unexpired term at 31 December 2013

Robin Buchanan 10/08/2011 8 months
Dawvid Lowden 22/08r2012 20 months
Ruby McGregor-Smith 23/05/2013 29 months
Simon Boddie 24/09/2012 21 manths
Dr Tim Miller 13/08/2011 8 months
Danuta Gray 10/12/2013 35 months

The notice penod for alk Non-Executive Directors 1s one month or tn accordance with the Articles of Association which are
summansed on page 124 to 126

Implementation of the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors in 2014
Base salary

The base salaries of the Executive Directors were considered with reference to the general salary increases across the Group heac
office population and other market benchmarks After consideration the Commuttee decided to increase the Cheef Executive Otficer's
salary by 2 7% to £565 000

Annual benus

The aperation of the annual bonus will remain unchanged for 2014 with the same werghting between financal measures and other
strategic measures as in 2013 The Company 1s of the view that the targets under each of these measures are currently commercially
sensitive given the hnk to the Company's strategic prionties over the coming year Performance against these measures ang the

refevant targets will be disclosed in the next Directors’ Annual Remuneration Report §
=
Long-term Incentive % g
m
The first award under the new Long-term Incentive Plan will be made in March 2014 1t «s currently the Committea’s intent that this gg
award will be equal to 200% of salary for the CEQ and that the following performance measures and weaightings will apply 2 &
E
E
Performance measure Weighting % of award vesting at threshold
Cumulative 3-year real EPS 125% 25%
Comparator gross profit growth  25% 25%
Strategic targets 50% 25%
Pensions

In line with the Remuneration Policy the Executive Directors receive a contribution to a defined contrbution pension scheme or a
cash equivalent The Chief Executive Officer receves a contnbution equivalent to 25% of his base satary

implementation of the Remuneration Policy for the Beard Chairman
and Non-Executive Directors in 2014

The fees per annum for the Board Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors have been agreec as {ollows

2013 From March 2014
Chairman £220,000 £230 000
Nen-Exscutive Director basic fee £48,000 £51,000
Additional fees payable
Semor Independent Director £5,000 £5,000
Chairman of Remuneraiwon Commuittee  £10.000 £14,000
Chairrman of Audit Commuttee £10 000 £14,000
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Total Shareholder Return (TSR)

The performance graph below shows the movement in the value of £100 invested in shares in the Company compared to an investment in
the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE Support Services Index over the penod from 31 December 2008 te 31 December 2013 The graph shows
the Totat Shareholder Return generated by the movement in share price and the remvestment of dividends We have selected the FTSE 250
Index and the FTSE Support Services index for comparnson purposes as the Company has been a member of each Index throughout

the penod

31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 200% 31 Dec 2040 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2012 31 Dec 2013
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The table below shows the total remuneration for the Chief Executive over the same
five year penod.

CEO 2009 2010 2011t 2012 2013
Single remuneration total £1,010k £2,184k £1,647k £2,723k £1 318k
Annual bonus

(% of maximum) (note 1) n/a n/a n/a n/a 58%

Long-term incentives
(30 of maximum} (note 1) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Note that prior to 2012 PageGroup operated uncapped ncentives which by definition did not have the concept of maxmum’ As a result
it 1s not possible to provide this infarmation histoncally However, following the changes in 2012 it will be possible to provide this information
for future years

Statement of voting at the general meeting

At the PageGroup Annual General Meeting held on 6 June 2013, shareholders approved the Remuneration Report for the yesr ended

31 December 2012 and also approved the ruies of the Michaet Page international Long-term incentive Plan (ET1P) and the Michael Page
International Deferrad Bonus Plan {DBF} The table below shows the result in respect of the resolutions, which required a simple majority
(1e 50%) of the votes cast to be n favour in order for the resolutions to be passed

Resolution Votes for Yo Votes against % Votes withheld
Approve the Remuneration

Report 185,273,884 822 40,036,111 178 52 636,733
Approve the LTIP 267,730,998 972 7,653,348 28 1,962,384
Apprave the DBP 273811733 87 3,555,058 13 580

Following this shareholder vote the Committee reviewed feedback from shareholders and noted that those sharehoiders who voted agaimst
the Remuneration Repart were mainly influenced by the level of payments made to former Directors, the discretion exercised over departing
directors’ share awards as well as the (ncrease to the CEO s salary, which shareholders would have preferred to be staggered over a number
of years The Commitiee also noted that shareholders generally approved of the spinit of the changes to remuneration, namely, an increased
focus on long-term perdormance and a reduchion in velatility of remuneration In addition, shareholders generally welcomed the introduction
of strategic measures, the increased shareholding guidelines, the introduction of 2 bonus cap and the introduction of clawback
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A fult schedule in respect of shareholder voting on the above and all resoluttons at the 2013 Annual General Meating 1s avallable on
the PageGroup website at http./fwww page com/investors

Considerations by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The members of the Remuneration Commuttee are detalled on page 67 Dunng the year the Committee recerved advice from
independent remuneration consultants Deloitte LLP in relation to certan executive remuneration matiers Following a competitive
retender, the Commuttee decded 1o appont New Bndge Street as us independent remuneration consultants from September 2013
Both Delotte LLP and New Brdge Street are members of the Rernuneration Consultants Group and as such voluntanlty operate
under the code of conduct in relation 1o executive remuneration consulting in the UK in addition to remuneration advisory services,
Deloitte LLP prowided consultancy services totalling €597k dunng 2013 New Bndge Street 1s part of the Acn Group who provided
insurance services to PageGroup dunng 2033 £636k was paid 1o Aon 1in 2013 for global Insurance policies and £107k 1n respect of
broker fees

The Committee also received adwice from the Chairman Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary and Group HR Director who
attend the Remuneration Committee by invitation No Executive Director takes part in discussions relating to their own remuneration

Total cost of advice to the Committee

External Advisor {£'000) Reason for pay
Defoitte LLP 210 Indspandent advice to the Committes
New Bndge Street 365 Independent advice to the Commitiee

External Directorships

Dunng the year Steve Ingham, Chief Executive Officer earned and retained £42 500 (2012 £nif) in respect of fees from his role as a
Non-Executive Director of Debenhams ple No other Executive Director earned any fees from external Directorships

Elements of the Directors’ Annual Remuneration Report subject to audit

a) single total figure for remuneration and the accompanying notes

b) details of the performance aganst metnics for vanable awards included in the single sum
¢) details of long-term varable pay awarded in 2013

d) detals on paymenis to past directors

e} detals on payments for loss of office

f} section on outstanding share awards
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This Directors’ Remuneration Report, including beth the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy Report and the Directers Annual
Remuneration Report has been approved by the Board of Directors

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

David Lowden
Chairman of the Remuneraton Committee

4 March 2014

SaniSlmide
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Other Statutory Information

The Directors present thelr Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013

Gertamn information for disclosure in this Report 1s prowvided in

other sections of the Annuat Report and Accounts These include
a fair review of the business, including its deveiopment and
perfiormance during the year to 31 December 2613 the position

of the Group at the end of the financial year together with a
descrption of the principal nsks and encertainties facing the
Group, corporate governance and remuneration reports, the Group
financial statements and notes to those statements whistleblowing
procedures and disclosures concerning greenhouse gas
emissions and accordingly these are incorporated into this

Report by reference

Composttion of the Board

The following are Directors of the Company as at the date
of the Report

Rebin Buchanan

Steve ingham

Simon Boddie

Danuta Gray {appointed 16 December 2013}
Dawid Lowden

Ruby McGregor-Smith

Dr Tim hhiler

Each of the above Directors, except Danuta Gray, served
throughout the penod under review Andrew Bracey resigned
as Chief Financial Officer on 11 October 2013

Drrectors’ Report

Biograph:es of the currently serving directors are provided on
pages 51 and 52 of this Report

The powers of the Directars and the rules governing their
appointment and replacement are set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association which are surnmansed on pages 124 to 126
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and in accordance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code, Danuta Gray will offer herself
for election and all other Directors will offer themselves for

annual re-election

No Director, at any time dunng the period under review had any
matenal interest in any contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiary undertakings, other than the Executive Directors who
had such an interest through their service agreements with the
Company, details of which are summansed on page 84

The Company maintains directors' and officers’ liability insurance
which gives appropnate cover for any legal action brought agamnst
its Directors
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Directors’ Interests

Details of the nterests of the Directors and ther connected
persons in the ordinary shares of the Company are outlined
n the Directors’ Remuneration Report Steve Ingham 15 alse
deemed to have an interest in the ordinary shares held in the
Empioyee Benefit Trust

Share Capital

The issued share capital of the Company 15 shown in Note 18
to the financial statemnents

At the Annual General Meeting heid on 6 June 2013 the
Gompany renewed Its authonty to make market purchases of
its own ordinary shares up to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital No shares were repurchased during the year

A further resolution in this respect will be put to shareholders
at tha forthcoming Annuat General Meeting

There were 3 1m shares issued to satisfy share options
exercised during the year

Share Capital, Restrictions on Transfer of
Shares and Other Additional Information

To the extent not discussed in this Directors’ Report
information relating to the Company's share capstal structure
restrictions on the holding or transfer of its shares or on the
exercise of voting nghts attached to such secunties required by
the Companies Act 2006 1s set out in the following sections of
the Annual Report

+ Drectors’ Remuneration Report
* Notes to the Accounts {Note 18 Called-up share capital)

* The summary of the provistons of the Company’s Articles
of Assocation

Each of the above sections is incorporated by reference into
and forms part of, this Directors’ Report

Interest in voting nghts

At 31 December 2013, the Company had been notified,

N accordance with Chapter 5 of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the following interests in its ordinary
share capsal

Shareholder Number % of
of erdinary voting
shares nghts.

Causeway Capital Management LLC 18 B32 766 614

Sleep, Zakana and Co (Nomad) 18,347,573 592

The Capital Group of Comparnes Inc 15,492,600 503

Franklin Templeton Institutionat LLC 15 308 070 503

FIL bumited 15 103,870 498

The following notifications were received dunng the penod
1 January 2014 to 4 March 2014

Holder Number % of
of ordinary voling
shares nghts

Sleep, Zakana and Co (Nomad) 15 252,928 492
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Shares Held in the Employee Benefit Trust

The Trustee of the Michael Page international plc Employee
Benefit Trust {“EBT™} has agreed not to vote at any general
meeting N respect of any shares where the EBT has a deemed
beneficial interest

Results and Dividends

The profit after taxation for the year ended 31 December 2013
for the Group amounted to £42 6m (2012 £36 2m)

A final divadend for 2012 of 6 75 pence per ordinary share
was paid on 21 June 2013 Anintenrm dividend for 2013 of

3 25 pence per ordinary share was paid on 4 October 2013
The Directors recormmend the payment of a final dwvidend for
the year ended 31 December 2013 of 7 25 pence per ordinary
share on 23 June 2014 to shareholders on the register of
members on 23 May 2014 which, if approved at the Annuat
General Meeting, will result in a total dividend for the year of
10 5 pence per ordinary share (2012 10 0 pence)

Anti-Bribery and Business Ethics

Anti-brnibery and corruption 1s, unfortunately a feature of
corporate and public Iife in many countres across the world
Governments, businesses and non-governmental organisations
such as Transparency Internaticnal are working together to
tackle the issue but, despite cur collective efforts eradicating
all forms of bribery and corrupbion will iake tme PageGroup,
therefore, has a clear policy on Bnbery and Business Ethics
and we support our employees to make decisions in Ine with
our staied position

Our Group Code of Conduct can be found on our website
{www page com} and 1s based on our commiiment to
acting professionally fairly and with integnty PageGroup
maintains a zero-tolerance appreach aganst corruption
Facilitation payments are also not permitted within
PageGroup’s operations

Health and Safety

We recogrise that Health and Safety 1s an integral part of

our responsibilities The day-to-gay services we prowide do
not pose a great nsk to either our employees or our chents
However, we endeavour to maintain a safe and active
envirenment Each office s responsible for its own fire risk
assessment and emergency procedures and has an aliocated
Facilities and Health and Safety Representative

Employment Policy and Employee
Involvement

The Group continues to give full and far consideration to
applications for employmeant made by disabled persons,
hawving regard to thesr respective aptitudes and abilities

The policy includes, where practicable, the continued
empleyment of those who may become disabled dunng

ther employment and the prowision of traimng and career
development and promotion where appropnate The Group
also remams committed to employee involvement throughout
the business Employees are kept well informed of the
performance and strategy of the Group through personal
brefings, regular rmeetings, emails and cther communications
from the Chief Execurtive Officer and members of the Executive
Commuttee Further detalls of employment policies and
employee invoivement can be found in the Strategic Report
cn page 41

Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Diiution

The Company reviews the awards of shares made under the vanous
employee and executive share plans in terms of therr effect on
dilution limits and complies with the ditution hmits recommended by
the Association of Bntish Insurers

Post Balance Sheet Events

There have been no significant events since 31 December 2013

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions in 2013 are described in
note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Political Donations

No pohtical donations were made during the year PageGroup has
a poiicy of not making political donations to political crganisations
or independent election candidates or incurring pohtical
expendiure anywhere in the world as defined in the Political
Parfies, Election and Referendums Act 2000

Going Concern Statement

In adopting the going concern basts for preparng the financial
statements, the Directors have considered the business activities
of the Group as well as the principle nsks and uncertainties as

set cut on pages 47 to 49 Based on the Group's level of cash

the ievel of borrowing faciliies avallable, the geographical and
discipline dversificaticn, the imited concentration nsk as well as
the alnhiy t0 manage the cost base, the Board is sattsfied that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future, being a pencd of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of these accounts As a resuit, the

going concern basis continues to be appropnate in preparing the
hnancial statements

Significant Agreements ¢containing change of
control provisions

The Company has an inva:ce discounting facility that terminates on
a change of control, with prepaid amounts becoming payable

Directors’ and employees’ employment contracts do not nomally
provide for compensation for loss of office or employment as a
result of a change of control However, the Company operates
several share schemas for the benefit of its Executive Diractors
and employees and the rules of the share schemes and plans
contain provisiens which may cause options and awards granted
to Executive Directors and empioyees {o vest on a change

of control

The Directors consider that the

Annual Report and Accounts is
fair, balanced and understandable

Directors’ Report

Financial Instruments and Financial Risk
Management

The Company’s use of Financial Instruments 1s descnbed in the
Treasury section of the Strategic Report on page 24 Details of the
finanoial instruments entered into, and any associated exposure o
price nisk, grecht nsk, hguidity nisk or cash flow nsk are inciuded in
note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclaimer

The purpose of this Annual Report and Accounts is to provide
mfarmation to the members of the Company It has been prepared
for the members of the Company, as a body, and for no cther
persons The Company, its Directors and employees, agents

and adwvisers do not accept or assume any responsibility tc any
ather person to whom this document 1s shown or into whose
hands it may come and any such responsibiity or iability I1s
expressly disclaimed

The Strategic Report contains certain forward-icoking statements
These statements are made by the Directors 1n good farth based
on the information available to them up to the time of their
approval of this report and such statements should be treated
with caution due to the inherent uncertainties including both
economic and business nsk factors, underlying any such forward-
looking information

Reappointment of Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP are wiling to continue in office and accordingiy
resolutions as regards their reappointment and to authorise

the Directors to set thesr remuneration wili be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Annuzl General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 5 june 2014
and the notice of meeting can be found on page 127 and
will be available on our website at www page com/investors

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directars are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and
Accounts and the Group and parent Company financia statements
n accordance with applicable laws and reguiations

Campany law requires the Directors to prepare such financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors

are required to prepare the Consolidated Financiat Statements

in accordance with International Financiai Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adepted by the Eurcpean Umon {EU) and Article 4 of
the {AS Regulation The Directors have atso chosen to prepare the
parent company financial statements under IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union Under company law the directors must not
approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit
or loss of the Company for that period

In preparing these financial statements the Directors are
required to

* elect suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent
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* state whether IFRS as adopted by the EU has been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the Group and parent Company financial
statements respectively

= prepare the slatements on tha going concern basis,
unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue N business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
tme the financiat positton of the Company and the Group and
to enable them $o ensure that the financiai statements and the
Directors’ Rermuneration Report comply with the Compantes
Act 2006 and as regards the Group's financial statements,
Articie 4 of the EU IAS Regulation They are also responsible
for safeguarding the asseis of the Company and the Group
and hence for 1aking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other iregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnty of the corporate and financial infformation included
on the Gompany's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors as at the date of this Report confirm that, to the
best of therr knowledge

1 The Group's financial staternents, prepared In accordance
with Internatsonal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, labilities
financial posiion and profit of the Group

FeqeCotup Ancsdd Ropurt Avd Actests 201

2 The Dwectors Report and the Strategic Report include a fair
review of the development and performance of the business
and the posion of the Group, together with a descnption of
the pnncipat nsks and uncertainties that it faces

Disclosure of Information to the Auditors

Each of the Directors as at the date of this Report confirmns
that

1 So far as the Director 15 aware, there 1S no relevant audit
nformation of which the Comparny's Auditor is unaware

2 The Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a Director to make himseli/hersalf aware
of any relevant audit iInformation and to establish that the
Company’s Auditor 1s aware of that information

Words and phrases used in thus confirmation should be
interpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Directors’ Confirmation

The Girectors as at the date of this Report consider that
the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, s farr,
balanced and understandable and provides the informaticn
necessary for shareholders io assess the Company's
performance business model and strategy

By order of the Board

Elaine Mamner m m

Company Secretary

Page House, 1 Dashwood Lang Road, The Bourne Business
Park, Addlestone Weybndge, Surrey KT15 2QW

4 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MICHAEL PAGE
INTERNATIONAL PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Michae! Page
International plc {the “Group™) for the year encled 31 December
2013 which compnse the Consolidated Income Statement
the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income, the
Gonsohdated and Parent Company Balance Shests, the
Consolidated and Parent Company Statement of Changes

in Equity and the Consohdated and Parent Company Cash
Flow Statements and the related notes 1 toc 25 The financial
reporting framewark that has been apphed in their preparation
1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the parent company financial statements, as apphed
i accordance with the provisions of the Comparues Act 2005

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been underiaken so
that we mught state to the company’s members those matters
we are required 1o state to them in an auchtor's report and for
no cther purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibiity fo anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body for our audit
work, for thus report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors
and audrtor

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities
Statement sef out on page 89 and 80 the directors are
respeonsible for the preparation of the Group financial
statements and for being satisfied that they aive a true and farr
view Our responsibiity s to audit and express an opnion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
international Standards on Auditing (UX and ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtamning evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material missiatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are approprate to the Group's and the parent
company's circumstances and have been consistently appied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read
all the financial and non-financial information i the Annual
Report and Accounts 2013 to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any
nformation that s apparently matenally ncorrect based on,
or matenally inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us
In the course of performing the audnt If we become aware of
any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we
caonsider the implications for our report

Pagelroup Annuai Report Ang Accounts 203

Opinion on financial statements
Ir our opinkon

» the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group's and of the parent company s affairs as
at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended

* the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

* the parent company financial statements have been
property prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union and as apphed in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Compames Act 2008 and,
as regards the Group financial staterments, Article 4 of the
1AS Regulation

CQur assessment of risk of matenal
misstatement

We dentified the following risks that have had the greatest
effect on the overall audit strategy, the aliocation of resources
inthe audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team

* revenue recognition for permanent and termporary
placements, with particular focus on period end cut-off and
appropriate accounting treatment in accordance with IFRS
and Group accounting palicies

* accounting for the new operating system intangible asset
with particular focus on approprate cost capitalisation and
carsying value

« the Group’s exposura to direct and indirect taxes and the
related accounting judgements

Qur application of matenality

We apply the concept of matenality both in planning

and perforrm:ng our audit, and in evaluating the effect of
rmisstatements on our audit and on the fiinancial statements
For the purposes of determening whether the financial
statements are free from matenal misstaternent we define
matenality as the magnitude of misstatement that makes

it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person relying on the financial statements,
would be changed or influenced We also deterrmune a level of
performance materiaity which we use to determine the extent
of testing needed to reduce to an appropriately fow leve! the
probabiiity ihat the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds matenahty for the financial statements
as a whole

When establishing our overall audit strategy we determined
a magritude of uncorrected misstaterments that we judged
would be materiat for the financial statements as a whole
We determined materiality for the Group to be £3 4 million,
which 1s approximately 5% of adjusted profit before tax for
the year ended 31 December 2013 We used adjusted profit
before tax to exclude those items classified as exceptionat
ttems within the financial statements

Financial Statements
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Cn the basis of our nisk assessments together with our
assessment of the Group's overall control environment, owr
judgement is that overall performance matenality {1 @ our tolerance
tor misstatement in an individuat account or balance) for the Group
should be 50% of materiality, namely £1 7 miiion Qur objective

In adopting this approach Is to ensure that tolal uncorrected and
undetected audit differences do not exceed our matenaity of

£3 4 million for the financial statements as whole This prowvided

a basis for determining the nature, tming and extent of nisk
assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the risk of
materal misstatement and detenmining the nature, iming and
extent of further audit procedures

We agreed with the Audit Commuitee that we would report to the
Committee all audi differences in excess of £¢ 17 million, as well
as differences below that threshaold that, in cur view warranied
reporing on gualitative grounds

An overview of the scope of our audit

Following our assessment of the nsk of matenal misstatement to
the Group Bnancial statements, we performed audit procedures
at the Group's Head office and in 16 countnes in the Group which
reprasent the pnncipal business units within the Group's four
reportable segments and account for 90% of the Group’s total
assets, 93% of the Group's revenue, 83% of the Group's gross
profit and 91% of the Group s profit before tax Of the 16 in-scope
countnes, four, baing the UK, France, Australia and Braz:l were
subyect to a full scope audnt and represent 61% of the Group s
revenue and 51%o of the Group s gross proft A further ten
countres were subject to a specific scope audit, where the extent
of the audit work was based on our assessment of the nsk of
matenal musstatement and the matenality of the Group s business
operations at those locations The remaining two countries were
subsect to anatytical review procedures designed to confirm that
no further risks of nisstatement existed that were matenal to the
Group financial statements

The audit work at the 16 countnes was performed at a
matenatiity tevel calcuiated by reference to a propertion of Group
matenabity appropnate to the individual relative scale of the
business concerned

The Group audit team determined the level of our mvolvernent
needed in the audits of the 18 in-scope countnies based on the
extent of audit procedures bemg perfermed and the risk profile
of the indrvidual countnes For all full scope counines, the Group
audit team led by the Serior Statutory Auditor participated in the
component team’s planning including discussion of the potential
for matenal fraud and error The Group audit team, led by the
Senior Statutory Auditor, also held detatled meetings at the
concluston of the full scope country audits with all the fuli scope
countnes’ jocal audit teams as well as with the chent s regronal
management at which all key areas of jJudgement were discussed
and challenged The Sentor Statutory Auditor attended the audit
ciosing meeting for the Group's largest compenent, the UK, which
represents 30% of the Group's revenue and 24% of the Group's
gross profit

With the exception of the 16 countries in scope, no other country
represents more than 6% of the Group's revenue or gross profit
Based an the Group’s business modet we consider the risks to be
simitar at each country m which they operate

Financial Statements

Qur responses to the nsks of material misstaternent identified
above were as follows

Revenue recognihon for permanent and
temporary placements

* we updated our understanding of the revenue processes
and tested key management controfs around recogrition
and measurement of revenue including non-completion of
centractual placements and bad debt prowsions at
key locations

= we performed detailed testing over the tming of revenue
recognition In particutar around cut off {or adherence to IFRS
and Group accounting policies

Accounting for the new operating system

* we assessed the ongoing status of the roli-out of the new
operating system and challenged management on potential
indicators of Impairment

* we tested the amounts capitalised as part of the
ntangible asset for comphance with IFRS and Group asset
capitahsation policy

¢ we evaluated management’s assessment on the applicability
of the useful life and related amortisation periog and assessed
the pattern of allocation of amortisation spread over its useful
Iife for consistency with the estimated consumption of future
economic benefits by the Group

Direct and indwect taxes and related accounting i1ssues

» we updated our understanding of the tax processes and the
reporting of taxat:on in the year-end financial statements,
and we understood the latest position i all matenal open tax
matters including any conclusions reached dunng the year

* we read all materal correspondence with HMRC and other tax
authonties in the period for entities in scope for tax (full scope
countnes) to form our view on the appropnate tax treatment of
Judgemental items

+ we tested the iIncome tax expense recognised in the Income
Statement and the reconciiation of the effective tax rate, and
we tested the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities
to support the valuahon and presentation at year end

« we concluded on the appropniateness of the tax provision,
including the exposure 1 relatiaon to profit sharng in France
and the related tax and interest elements, recognised by
management as an exceptional item explaned n Note 5
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Opmion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

Irv our opinton

» the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be
avdited has been properly prepared 1n accordance with
the Companies Act 2006

» the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the 1ISAs {UK and lreland), we are required to report to
you if, n our opuion informaton in the annual report 15

s matenally Incongistent with the information 1n the audited
financial statements

« apparently matenially incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with our knowiedge of the Group acqured in
the course of performing our audit

* |s othenwise misleading

In particular we are required to consider whether we have
dentified any iInconsisiencies betwean cur knowledge
acquired dunng the audit and the directors’ statement that they
consider the annual report 15 far balanced and understandable
and whether the annuat report appropniately discloses those
matters that we communicated to the audit committee which
we consider should have been disclosed

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requirad 1o repor to
you if, In our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not visited by us

» the parent company financial statements and the part of
the Dtrectors” Remuneration Report to be audited are notm
agreement with the accounting records and returns

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration speciied by
law are not made

+ we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Under the bisting Rules we are required to review

+ the directors’ statement, set out on page 83 in relation to
gong concern

« the part of the Corporate Governance Statement refating to
the company s compliance with the nine prowvisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

lain Wilkie {Senior Statutory Auditor)

tor and on behalf of Ernst & Young L LP, Statutery Auditor
London

4 March 2014

Foqrlacsp Araudl Acpart Ang Accr.t 2003

Notes

1 The mamntenance and mntegnty of the Michasel Page
International ple web sita 15 the responsibility of the
directors, the work carmed out by the auditors does not
nvolve consideration of these matters and, accordingly the
auditors accept no responsibibity for any changes that may
have oceurred to the financial staterments since they were
initially presented on the web site

2 Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Exceptional Exceptional
Before items After Before tems After
exceptionai {note 5} exceptionai exceptional {note 5) excephonal
items 2013 2013 items 2013 items 2012 2012 items 2012
Note £:000 £'000 £:000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 2 1,005,502 -~ 1,005,502 989 882 - 989,862
Cost of sales (491,621) -  {a918621) {463,013) - (463013
Gross profit 2 513,881 - 513,881 526 869 - 526 869
Administrative expenses (445,703) (2,453} {448,156) {461,748) (7.834) {469,582}
Operating profit 2 68,178 (2,453} 65,725 65,121 (7 834) 57 287
Financtal income 5] 531 - 531 907 - 907
Financial expenses B {1,625) (574) (2,199} (1,191) - {1,191}
Profst before tax 2 67,084 {3.027) 64,057 64,837 (7 834) 57,003
income tax (expense)income 7 (20,733) (720) {21,453} (23,332} 2.526 (20,806}
Profit for the year 3 46,351 {3,747) 42,604 41,505 (5 308) 36,197
Attnhutable to
Owners of the parent 42,604 36,197
Earmings per share
Basic earnings per share (pence) 10 138 19
Diluted earnings per share {pence) 10 137 17
The above results relate to continuing operations
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENS!VE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2013
2013 2012
£:000 £°000
Prohit for the year 42,604 36,197
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Items that may subsequently be reclasstfied to profut and loss
Currency translation differences (4,700) (5171
Total comprehenswe income for the year 37,804 31026
Attributed to
Owners of the parent 37,904 31026
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CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS

As at 31 December 2013

Group Company
2012 as
restated
2013 2012 2013 (note 1)
Note £000 £'000 'oo0 £'000
Non-ciarent assets
Property plant and eguipment 11 25,238 28,913 - -
intangible assets - Goodwill and other intangible 12 1,971 2,091 - -
- Computer software {including
assets held under construction) 12 40,126 42 006 -~ -
Investments 13 - - 496,300 493,544
Deferred tax assets 17 10,377 9,182 - -
Other receivables 14 2,865 3,310 - -

80,577 85,512 496,300 493,544

Current assets

Trade and other recewvables 14 186,488 182 507 603,054 578,202

Current tax recevable 8 7,060 6970 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 20 87,070 70769 - 20
280,618 260 246 603,054 578,312

Total assets 2 361,195 345758 1,099,354 1071856

Current habilihes

Trade and other payables 15 {133,664) (I3B 733} (607,776) {594,253)
Bank overdrafts 16 (t,676) {8,396) - -
Current iax payable 8 {11,780} (12 612 ~ -

)
(187,120}  (160,74%) (607,776) {594 259)

Net current assets/(kabihties) 133,498 9% 505 {4,722} {15 947)

Norn-current habihbes

Other payables 15 {4,697) 2,779) - -

Deferred tax liabilities 17 {891) (850) - -
(5,588) {3.629) - -

Total habilies 2 {152,708} (164 370) (607,776} (594259

Net assets 208,487 181 388 491,578 477,587 -
=
=

Capital and reserves =
=

Called-up share captal 18 3,208 3178 3,208 3,178 ]

Share premiem 19 71,739 60 221 71,739 60,221 E

Capital redemption reserve 19 932 932 932 932 g

Reserve for shares held in the employee benefit trust 19 (50,0:22) {62,071} - -

Currency transiation reserve 19 20,415 25115 - -

Retained earmngs 162,215 154 13 415,609 413,266

Total equity 208,487 181,388 491,578 477 597

The financial statements of Michael Page International pic (Company Number 3310225} set out on pages 95 to 122 were approved
by the Board of Directors and authernised for 1ssue on 4 March 2014
Signed on behalf of the Beard of Directors

Steve Ingham
Chief Executive Otficer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Reserve
for shares
Called- Capital  heid i the Currency
up share Share redemption employee translation Retained Total
capital premium reserve benefit trust reserve earnings equIty
2013 Note £:000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 000
Balance at 1 January 2013 3,178 60,221 932 {62,071) 25,115 154,013 181,388
Currency transiation differences - - - - 4 700} - {4,700
Net expense recognised
directly in equity - - - - 4,700) - {4,700)
Profit for the year - - - - - 42 604 42,604
Total comprehensive
(loss}income for the year - - - - {4,700) 42,604 37,904
Exercise of share pians 30 11,518 - - - 2,881 14,429
Transfer from reserve for shares
held n the employee benefit trust - - - 12,049 - (12,048) -
Credit n respect of share schemes - - - - - 5602 5,602
Credit in respect of tax on
share schemes - - - - - 13 13
Dividends 9 - - - - - {30,849) (30,849;
30 11518 - 12,049 - {34,402 (10,805}
Bafance at 31 December 2013 3,208 71,739 932 (50,022) 20,415 162,215 208,487
Reserve
for shares
Called- Capital held in the Currency
up share Share redemphon empioyee translation Retained Total
caprtal premium reserve benefit trust reserve earnings equity
2012 Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 2012 3,187 57,215 932 {65 652) 30,2868 154 650 180,598
Currency translation differences - - - - (5,171) - (5,171
Net expense recognised directly
in equity - - - - {5,177 - (5.171)
Profit for the year - - - - - 36,197 36,197
Total comprehensive
{foss) income for the year - - - - Biry 36 197 31,026
Purchase of shares held in the
employee benefit trust - - - (17 852) - - (17 952}
Exercise of share plans 11 30086 - - - 4,792 7.816
Transfer from reserve for shares
heifd in the employee benefit trust - - - 21533 - {21 533) -
Credit in respect of share schemes - - - - - 11,843 11,843
Debit in respect of tax on
share schemes - - - - - {1,309) {1,308)
Oividends 9 - - - - - {30 634) (30,634)
11 3,006 - 3,581 - {36,834) (30 236}
Balance at 31 December 2012 3,178 60,221 a3z 62,071) 25,115 154 013 181,388
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY — PARENT COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Reserve

for shatres

Called- Capital  held in the

up share Share recemption  employee Retamned
capital premium reserve benefit trust earnings Total equity
Company Note £'000 2’0co £'000 £:000 £ 000 £'g00
Balance at 1 January 2013 3,178 60,221 932 - 413,266 477,597
Profit for the year - - - - 27,680 27,680
Total comprehensive tncome for
the year - - - - 27,680 27,680
Exercise of share plans 30 1,518 - - - 11 548
Credit in respect of share schernes - - - - 5,602 5602
Dividends. g - - - - {30 849) (30,849)
30 11,518 - - {25,247) {13,699)
Balance at 31 December 2013 3,208 71,739 832 - 415,699 491 578
Balance at 1 January 2012 3,167 57,215 g3z (85,652) 404 850 400,512
Adustment to opening balance 1 - - - 65,652 15 614 81,166
Batlance at 1 January 2012 {restated) 3,167 57 215 932 - 420 364 481,678
Profit for the year - - - - 11,693 11,693
Total comprehensive income for

the year - - - - 11,693 11693
Exercise of share plans 11 3.006 - - - 3017
Credit in respect of share schemes - - - - 11843 i1 843
Dividends 9 - - - - (30 634) {30,634)
11 3.006 - - (18,791} {15,774}
Balance at 31 December 2012 3,178 80,221 932 - 413 266 477 597

=
=
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CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012

Note £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Profit before tax 2 64,057 57,003 27,680 11,686
Exceptional Hems 5 3,027 7.834 - -
Profit before tax and exceptional items 67,084 64,837 27,680 11,686
Depreciation and amortisabon charges 11/12 17,461 15,073 - -
t.oss on sale of property, plant and equipment, and
computer software 10 5 - -
Share scheme charges 5,611 11,884 - -
Net finance costs 1,668 284 - 8
Operating cash flow before changes in working
capital, finance costs and exceptional items 91,834 52,083 27,680 11694
{Increasel/decrease n recesvables (8,508} 7.454 (24,762) {21.125)
{Decrease}/increase in payables (1,795) {5 068) 13,517 39,961
Cash generated from underfying operations 81,533 84,471 16,435 30,530
Exceptional items 5 (3,027} {7 B34) - -
Cash generated from operations 78,506 B6,637 16,435 30,536
Income tax pad (24,367) (24 371) - -
Nei cash from operating actvities 54,139 62,266 16,435 30,530
Cash flows from investing achivities
Purchases of Invesiments - - {2,172) {2 908}
Proceeds in respect of share scheme recharges
to subsichanas - - 5,018 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 11 {8,480) (7,819) - -
Purchases of intangibles 12 {4,815) (8.012) - -
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and
equipment and computer software 565 449 - -
Interest recerved 531 907 ~ 76
Net cash used i wivesting activities {12,199) {18,575) 2,846 (2,832)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid {30,849) (30834} (30,849) (30,634)
Interest pard {1,475} {1218 - (84)
Issue of own shares for the exercise of cptions 14,429 7 816 11,548 3,047
Purchase of shares held in the employee
benefit trust - {17,9532) - -
Net cash used in financing activiies (17,895) {41,988) {19,301} (27 701}
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and
cash equivalents 24,045 4,703 (20} {3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 61,373 58,168 20 23
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents {24) (1,498) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 85,394 61 373 - 20
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. Significant accounting polictes
Statement of comphance

Michaei Page international pic 1s a company incarporated in
the Umted Kingdom under the Companies Act The financial
statements have been prepared under the hustoncal cost
convention and in accordance with current international
Financial Reporting Standards (iFRS) as adopted by the
European Unton and therefore comply with Articie 4 of the
ELJ IAS Regutation

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Michael Page International pic
consolidate the results of the Company and all its subsichiary
undertakings As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2606, the profit and foss account of the Company has
not been included as part of these financial staterments

The Company's profit for the financial year amounted to

£27 Tm (2012 £11 7m) The increase n the Company s

profit this year 1s as a result of increased dividend income
The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis Refer to page 89 for further details

Basis of consolidaton
{i) Subsidianes

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Company

Control exists when the Company has the power directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to cbtan benefits from is activities

in assessing control, potential voting nghts that presently
are exercisable or convertible are taken mto account

The financial statements of subsidianes are included i the
consohdated financial statements from the date that control
commences untl the date that control ceases

(n} Transachions eliminated on consolidation

intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses
orincome and expenses ansing from intragroup transaciions
are eliminated :n prepanng the consolidated financiat
statemenis Unrealised losses are eminated in the same way
as unreahsed gamns, but only to the extent that there 1s no
evidence of impairment

{11} Employee Benefit Trust

Shares in Michael Page Internationat plc held by the trust are
shown as a reduction in shareholders funds

Change in accounting policy and pnor year restatement

The assets and habilities of the Employee Benefit Trust

were previously recorded within the parent company

as well as in the consolidated Group accounts In 2013

the accounting policy has been amended such that

they are no longer recorded within the parent company

The pricr year comparatives for the company only have been
restated accordingly Thus had an effect of increasing the net
assets by £81 2m with no impagct on profit The net assets,
profit and cash flows of the Group are unaffected by this
adjustment Wedh the exception of the change n poiicy referred
to above the remaning policies, set out below, have been
consistently applied to all the penods presented
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Change in accounting policy — new accounting
standards, interpretations and amendments

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those

of the previous financial year, except for the following

amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2013

« [AS 1 Presentation of tems of Other Comprehensive
Income — Amendments to 1AS 1

* [AS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised)

= |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
{as revised 1n 2011)

* IFRS 1 Government Loans — Amendments te FRS 1

* IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offseting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabifities — Amendments o IFRS 7

= |FRS 10 Consolidated Financeal Staternents, 1AS 27
Separate Financial Statements

+ |FRS 12 Disclosure of Intesests in Cther Entities
« |FRS 13 Far Value Measurement

* IFRIC 20 Stnpping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

The adoption of the standards or interpretations did not have
any impact on the accounting pohcies, financial position or
performance of the Group except for the change below which
affected presentation only

IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income - Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments to IAS 1 changed the grouping of items
presented in cther comprehensive income {OCH) Items that
could be reclasstfied (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a
future pont in time (for example net gain on hedge of net
investment, exchange differences on translation: of foreign
operations net movement on cash flow hedges and net loss
or gan on avaitable-for-sale financial assets} now have to be
presented separately from items that will never be reciassihed
{for example actuanat gains and losses on defined benefit
plans and revaluation of {and and buildingsy The amendment
affected presentation only and had no impact on the Group’s
financial posiion or performance

Standards i1ssued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are 1ssued, but not yet
effective, up to the date of i1ssuance of the Group’s financial
statements are disclosed below The Group intends o adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective but
they are not expected to have any iImpact on the accounting
policy financial position on performance of the Group
= A5 32 Cffsetting Financial Assets and Fimancial Dabilibies
— Amendments to 1AS 32

s [|FRS ¢ Financeal Instruments Classification
and Measurement

* [FRS 11 Joini Arrangermanis
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The Group has not early adopted any other standard
nterpretation or amendment that has been 1ssued but 1S
not yet effective

Going concern

The Directors have, at the time of approving the financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company and
the Group have adeguate resources to continue m operationat
existence for the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to
adopt the going concern bas:s of accaunting iy prepanng

the financial statements Further detail 1s contained in the
Directors” Report on page 89
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a) Revenue and income recognition

Revenue, which excludes value added tax (“VAT™), constitutes
the value of services undertaken by the Group from its pnncipal
activities which are recruitment consuitancy and other ancillary
services These consist of

* revenue from temporary placements, which represents amounts
talled for the senvices of temporary staff, including the salary
cost of these staff This 1s recogrused when the service has
been provided,

« revenue from permanent placements 1s typically based on a
percentage of the candidate's remuneration package and Is
derved from both retained assignments (income recogrised
on completion of defined stages of work) and non-retained
assignments {income recognised at the date an offeris
accepted by a candidate and where a start date has been
determined) The latter includes revenue anticipated, but not
invoiced, at the balance sheet date, which 1s correspendingly
accrued on the balance sheet withun prepayments and accrued
income A provision 1s made against accrued inceme for
possible cancellations of placements prior to, or shortly after
the commencement of employment, and

» revenue from amounts billed to chients for expenses incurred on
their behalf {principalty advert:sements) s recogrused when the
EXpEnse 1S Incurred

Interest income 1s accrued on a time bass, by reference to the
pnncipal outstanding and at the effective mterest rate applicable

b) Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists of the salary cost of tempaorary staff and
costs incurred on behalf of cilents, pnncipally advertising costs

¢) Gross profit

Gross profit represents revenue less cost of sales and consists

of the total placement fees of permanent candidates, the margin
earned on the placement of temporary candidates and the margin
on advertising income

d) Foreign currency translation
(1) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included i the financial statements of each of

the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the enhity cperates

(“the functicnai currency™) The consolidated financial statements
are presented n sterling, which 1s the Company’s functional and
presentation currency

(n} Transactions and balances

Fareign currency transactions are translated into the respeciive
functional currency using the exchange rates prevaring at the
dates of the transactrons Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
Irabilitres denominated n foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement

(i) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities

{nane of which has the currency of a hypennflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

+ assets and liabiities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet,

+ income and expenses for each income siatement are transtated
at average exchange rates, and

Financial Statements

+ all resulting exchange differences are recognised n other
comprehensive income

€} Intangible assets
{) Goodwilf

Goodwil represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the farr value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired subsichiary at the date of acquisiton Goodwill on the
acquisitton of subsidianes is included n ntangible assets Goodwill
Is stated at cost less any accumulated impament losses Goodwill
15 allocated to cash-generating units and 1s not amostised, but 1s
tested at least anneally for iImpairment (see accounting policy h)
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

(1) Computer software

Computer software acquired or developed by the Group 1s stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (see befow) The Group
reviews Intangible software assets for any indication of imparrment
annually The Group performed this test on the carrying amount of
computer software at 31 December 2013 and noted no indications
of imparment

{in) Software under construction

Software under construction relates to cost capitalised in relation
te the develcpment of a new operating system and related
applications Costs are capitalised when they fulfil the eatena in
IAS 38 regarding internally developed intangible assets While still
under construction, assets are tested for imparment annuatly
The Group tested the carrying amount of software under
construction at 31 December 2013 and noted no imparment was
necessary Assets are moved from software under construction to
computer software when they become available for use

{iv} Tradlemark

Acquired trademarks are stated at cost and are wntten down over
five years on a straight line basis, which reprasents the estimated
usetul ife of the intangible

{v) Amortisation

Amortisaticn 1s charged to the iIncome statement on a straight-

iine basis over the estimated useful ives of intangible assets
unless such hives are indefinite Goodwill has an indefinite useful
#ife Computer software 1s amortised at 20% per annum unless

it 15 considered to have a shorter iife, In which case the penod of
amartisation 1s reduced The cumulative amount of goodwill written
off directly to retained earnings in respect of acquisitions prior to

31 December 1997 1s £311 7m (2013 £311 7m}

f) Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at onginal cost less
accumulated depreciation Depreciation 1s calculated to wrte off
the cost less estmated residuat value of each asset evenly over its
expected useful iife at the following rates

+ |easshold improvements 10% per annum or penod of
lease o shorter

+ Furniture fodures and equipment 10-20% per annum
= Motor vehicles 25% per annum

g} Investments

Frxed asset investments are stated at cost less provision
for imparment

h) Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe are not subject to
amortisatton and are tested annually for impairment Animpairment
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loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amouni

The recaverable amouni ss the higher of an asset's far value
less costs to sell and value in use For the purposes of
assessing imparment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identfiable cash flows (cash-
generating units)

A financial asset s assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there I1s any objective evidence that
it 1s impatred

A financial asset 1s considered to be impaired if obsective
evidence \ndicates that one or mere events has had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset For
certain categories of financial asset such as trade recevables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impainrment on a collective basis
Ohbieciive evidence of mparrment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past expernience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic canditions that correlate with default on recevables

The carrying amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
excephon of frade recevables where the carrying amount
1 reduced through the use of an allowance account When
a trade recevabie 15 considered uncollectible, it 1s written
off agamst the allowance account Subsequent recovenes
of amounts previousiy wnitten off are credited against the
allowance account Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in the income statement

1) Taxation

income tax expense represents the sum of the corporation tax
and deferred tax charges The tax currently payabie 1s based

on taxable profit far the year Taxable profit ciffers from profit

as reporied In the Income statement because it excludes items
of tncome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible The Group’s liabilsty for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and habilities in the financial statements
and the correspending tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit and s accounted for using the balance sheet
kability method

Deferred tax abhties are generally recogrised for all taxabie
termporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits wil be
avalable against which deductible temporary differences can
be uvlilsed Such assets and habdities are not recognised if the
temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the inthat
recogrstion (other than i a busingss combination) of other
assets and labilities in a transaction that affects nesther the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deterred tax llabiities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences ansing on mvestments In subsidiares, except
where the Group s able to controf the reversal of the temporary
difference and it 1s probable that the femporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable futwre The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits wilt be avalable
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Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to appily in the penod when the lability 1s settled or the
asset realised

Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the income statement,
except when it relates to 1items charged or credited directly

to equity, 1n which case the deferred tax s also dealt within
equity Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
1s a legally enforceabtle night to set off current tax assets aganst
current tax habiities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and labdites on a net basis

j} Pension costs

The Group operates defined contribution pension

schemes The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group In independently adminssterad funds
The pension costs charged {0 the Income statement represent
the contributions payable by the Group to the funds during
each penod

k) Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially alf the nsks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee Ali other leases are classified as
operating leases

The Group does ngt currently have any finance leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-ine bas:s over the term of the lease
Benefits recaived and recervable as an incentive o enter into
an operating lease are aiso spread on a straight-ine basis over
the fease term

1) Segment reporting

1FRS B requires operating segments to be :dentified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer to aliocate
resources to the segments and to assess their performance
infermation provided to the Chief Executive Officer 1s focused
on regions and as a result reperiable segments are on a
regional basis

m} Dividend distnbution

Dividend distnbution to the Company s shareholders s
recogrased as a habiity 1 the Group’s financial statements
Ir the perniod in which the dividends are approved by

(for final dividends) or paid to {for intenm dividends} the
Company's sharehalders

n} Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settted share-based
compensation plans The accounting treatments for the Group
and parent company are simifar and are descrbed below

(i} Share option schemes

o
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The far value of the empioyee services recerved in exchange
for the grant of the options 1s recognised as an expense n

the income statement of the Group with a coresponding
adjustment to equity In the parent company, it 1s capitalised

as an investment with a corresponding adjustment {0 equity
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting penod
determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the mpact of any non-market vesting conditions {for
example earnings per share) Non-market vesting conditions
are ncluded in assumptions about the number of opticns that
are expected to become exarcisable At each balance sheet
date the estimate of the number of options that are expected to
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become exercisable is revised The Group recognises the impact of
the revision of onginal estimates, if any, in the income statement and
the comesponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting
period In the parent company, i S capiiahsed as annvestment,
with a corresponding adjustment 1o equity

) Deferred Annual Bonus and Long-term Incentive Plans

Where defered awards are made to Directors and senior executives
under esther the Incentive Share Pian or the Annual Bonus Scheme
to reflect that the awards are for services over a longer perod, the
value of the expected award 15 charged to the income statement of
the Group on a straight-line Dasis over the vesting penod 1o which
the award refates In the parent company, it 1s capitalised as an
Investment, with a coresponding adjustment to equity

©) Repurchase of share capital

When share capital recognised as equity 1s repurchased,
the amount of the consideration pad, including any directly
attnbutable costs s recognised as a change In equity

p} Provisions

A prowision 18 recognised in the balance sheet when the Group

has a present legal or construciive obligat:on as a result of a past
event, and it s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required tc settle the obligation Provisions are measured at the
Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present
valug where the effect 1s matenal

q} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition construction
or production of an asset that necessanly takes a substantial pericd
of ime to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset All other borrewing costs are expensed
in the perod they occur Borrowing costs consist of interest and
ather costs that an entity incurs i connection with the borrowing of
funds The Group has not capitalised any borrowing costs in either
the current ar preceding years

1} Financial assets and habilities

Financial assets and liabllities are recognised in the Group’s
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the nstrument Non-derivative finangial instrurnents
comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
lcans and borrowings and trade and other payables

Trade receivables and other receivables that have fixed or
determinabie payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as loans and receivables Loans and recelvables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment Interest ncome ts recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term recevables when the
recegnition of interest would be smmaterial

Cash and cash equsvalents includes cash-in-hand deposits

held at call with banks and other short-term highly hquid
investments with original matunities of three months or less Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group s cash management are included as a component

of cash and cash equivatents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows

Trade and other payables are stated at cost Other financial
habihities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs

The Group has denivative contracts at the balance sheet date that
have been valued at fair value through the income statement
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Where deemed significant, farr values are adjusted to refiect the
impact of our credit nisk for the denvatives that are in a kability
position and counterparty credit nsk for the dervatives that are in
an asset position

s) Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financal staternents in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
judgements It aiso reguires management to exercise judgement in
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on histoncal experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances

in particular, information about significant areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting polictes
that have the most signiicant effect on the amount recogrised in the
financsal staiements are descnbed in the following notes

* Note 1 - revenue recognificn

In making 1ts judgement, management considered the detalled
cnitena for the recognition of revenue from permanent placements
where a posthon has been accepted by a candidate, a start date
agreed but employment has not yet commenced A prowvision is
made by management based on past histonical expenence, for the
proportion of those placements where the candidate Is expected to
reverse their acceptance pror fo the start date

= Noie 12 — intangibles

The Group determines whether gocdwili and other intangible
assets are imparred on an annua! basis or otherwise when changes
in events or situations indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable This requires an estrmation of the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the assets are aliocated
Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the future cash flows from the cash-generating urit and
alsa to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows |

* Note 14 - trade and other receivables

There 1s uncertainty regarding customers who may not be able
to pay as ther invoices fali due in reviewing the appropnateness
of the prowvisions in respect of recoverabdity of trade recevabies
consideration has been given to the econormic chimate m the
respective markets, the ageing of the debt and the potential
ltkelihcod of defauit

* Note 17 — deferred tax

Management has estrmated the Likely value of deferred tax assets
in respect of trading losses carned forward

+ Note 18 - share-based payments

The Group's policy for share-based payments Is stated 1n note
1{n) The far value of equity settled share-based payments s
partly denved from estimates of factors such as lapse rates

and achievement of performance criteria Itis also denved from
assumptions such as the future volatility of the Company’s share
price expected dwvidend yields and nisk-free inferest rates

t} Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those tems the Group considers
to be one-off or matenal in nature that shoulid be brought
to the reader’s attention in understanding the Group's
financial performance

PaneGroup Anmual Report And Accounts 2013




2. Segment reporting
All revenues disclosed are derived from external customers

The accounting polictes of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting pohcies descrnbed in note 1 Segment
operating profit represents the profit earned by each segrment including allocation of central administration cost This 1s the measure
reported to the Group s Chief Executive Officer the chief aoperating decision maker for the purpose of resource aliocation and
assessment of segrnent performance

{a) Revenue, gross profit and operating profit by reportable segment

Operating Profit

Gross Excephional
Revenue Profit Before iterms After
excephional {note 5) exceptional
2013 2013 ems 2013 2013 tems 2013
2013 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'900 £'060
EMEA 407,013 207,774 25,925 {2,453) 23,472
Uritect Kingdom 298,579 124,060 18,387 - 18,387
Asia Pacific Australia and New Zealand 110,642 39,730 6,700 - 6,700
Asia 78,754 66,076 12,543 - 12,543
Total — Asta Pacific 189,396 105,806 19,243 - 19,243
Amencas 110,514 76,244 4,623 - 4,623
Qperating profit - - 68,178 {2,453} 65,725
Financial expenses - - 1,094} {574) {1,668)
Revenue/gross profit/profit before tax 1,005,502 513,881 67,084 {3,027} 64,057

Operating Profit

Gross Exceptional
Revenue Proht Before itermns After
exceptional (note 5)  exceptional
2012 2012 sems 2012 2012 pems 2012
2012 £°00C £'000 £:000 £0oco £'000
EMEA 403 223 218,382 22070 (6.030) 15,980
United Kingdom 295 8§76 121,408 15,771 (1,7448) 14 027
Asia Pacific Australia and New Zealand 118,344 51,677 14,184 - 14,164
Asia 72 853 63,177 14,803 - 14,803
Total - Asia Pacific 192,197 114,854 28967 - 28,967
Amerncas 68,586 72,225 {1,687) - {1,687)
=
z
Operating profit - - 85121 {7 834) 57 287 =
Financial expenses - - (284) - (284) UE.?
Revenue/gross profit/profif before tax 989,882 526 869 64,837 {7 834} 57 003 ?ﬂ
=
—
oy

The above analysis by destination 1s not matenally different to the analysis by ongin

The analysis opposite 1s of the carmying amount of reportable segment assets liabiiities and non-current assets Segment assets anc
hiabuities inciude items directly atiributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis

The individual reportable segrments exciude income tax assets and habilities Non-current assets include property plant and
equipment, computer software, goodwill and other intangibles
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(b} Segment assets, kabilites and non-current assets by reportable segment

Total Assets Total Liabilities

2013 2012 2013 2012

2000 £'000 £'000 £:000

EMEA 124,070 125,560 68,912 70 596
United Kingdom 130,280 104,392 42,733 48 414
Azla Pacific Australia and New Zealand 21,492 26,842 8,310 11 809
Asia 40,926 43,159 8,785 9,182

Total - Asia Pacific 62,418 70,001 17,005 20 991

Amencas 37,367 38,835 12,188 11757
Segment assets/habiities 354,135 338,788 140,928 151,758
Income tax 7,060 6970 11,780 12,612

361,195 345758 152,708 164,370

Property, Plant and

Equipment Intangible Assets
2013 2012 2013 2012
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
EMEA 7,668 8,034 441 495
United Kingdom 7,307 7,968 41,078 42712
Asia Pacific Austraba and New Zealand 1,799 1,454 78 100
Asia 2,100 2,599 49 116
Total - Asia Pacific 3,899 4,053 127 216
Americas 6,364 7.858 451 674

25,238 28,913 42,097 44,097

{c} Revenue and gross profit by discipline

Revenue Gross Profit
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 2000 £'000 £0c0
Finance and Accounting 464,763 465,378 211,658 220 561
Legal, Technology HR, Secretaral and other 230,450 219,980 105,275 106 422
Engineering, Property & Construction, Procurement & Supply Chain 181,243 177,883 100,977 102 817
Marketing, Sates and Retail 128,906 126,641 95,971 97,069

1,005,502 989,882 513,881 526 869

(d) Revenue and gross profit generated from permanent and temporary placements

Revenue Gross Profit
2013 2012 23 2012
£000 £'000 £'000 2000
Permanent 403,051 422 005 392,213 409 660
Temporary 602,451 567 877 121,658 117 209

1,005,502 989,882 513,881 526,862
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3 Profit for the year

2013 2012
£000 £ 000
Profit for the year s stated after charging
Employment costs (Note 4) 305,038 321 010
Net exchange losses 100 439
Bepreciation of property, plant and equipment - owned {note 11} 10,661 10,549
Amortisation of intangibles {note 12) 6,800 4538
Impairment of trade recevables 6,960 5,620
Lass on sale of property, plant and eguiprment and computer software 10 5
Operating lease rentals ~ Land and busldings 27,733 28,596
— Plant and machinery S 117 5,563
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audd of the Company’s annual accounts 124 114
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and associates for other services
—The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 352 341
- Audit related assurance services 82 32
Total audit fees 558 487
- Tax compliance services for the Company and its subsitharies 173 37
- Tax advice for the Company its subsidianes and indrvidual employees
re moving employees nternabionaily 140 109
— Tax advisary services 204 189
Total non-audit fees 517 335
Total fees 1,075 822

4. Employee information

The average number of employees {(Inciuding Executive Directors) duning the year and total number of ermployees (inciuding Executive
Birectors) at 31 December 2013 were as follows

2013 2012 At331Dec At31Dec
Average Average 2013 2012
No No No No
Management 285 237 288 261
Client services 3,405 3,519 3,522 3,364
Administration 1,373 1,027 1,320 1,474
5,063 5,283 5,130 5,089
Employment costs (including Directors’ emotuments) comprsed %
2013 2012 rg
£'000 £'000 C;.”
Wages and salaries 253,433 261,152 gﬂ
Social security costs 32,385 34,129 5
Pansion costs — defined coninbution pians 12,079 12,783
Share-based payments and deferred cash plan 7,141 12,966

305,038 321,010

No staff are employed by the parent company (2012 none) hence no rermuneration has been disclosed for the Cormpany
Remuneration for Directors for their services on behalf of the parent company are included in the Director's Remuneration Report
on pages 67 to 86

PanaG.oup Annual Rsport And Accoums 2013 Financiat Statements 106



5 Exceptional tems
French Profit Share

In October 2013 Page Personnel France {PPF) received notice from the Competent Authonties of the UK and France of their decision
regarding a transfer pricing case that had arisen as a result of a French tax audit in March 2008 The decision, which was unexpected,
increased the profit generated by PPF which, as per the mandatory profit share or “participation aux resultats de 'entreprise” that 1s
particular to France, drove a requirement to pay increased employee profit share, both to employees of PPF and also to the temporary
workers ptaced by that company As a result, the Group has taken in 2013, an exceptional operating profit charge of £2 5m, interest expense
on late payment of corporation tax and profit share of £0 6m and an additional tax charge on the exceptional item of £0 7m relating to prior
pencds A further £0 6m relating to 2013 1s included within operating profits from underiying activities, together with a tax credit of £0 1m,
which have not been treated as exceptional items A proportion of these charges were determined by the tax ruiing, with the remainder for
other years based on assumptions

Restructunng charge

In 2012 there was an excepiional restructuring charge of £7 Bm. relating to the removal of a fayer of management in Continental Europe and
the Amencas

6 Financial income/(expenses)

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Financial iIncome
Bank :nterest receivable 531 907
Financial expenses
Bank interest payable (1,625} (1,191}
Except:onal interest payable (Note 5) (574} -
(2,199} (1,191}
7 Taxation on profits on ordinary activibies
The charge for taxation is based on the effective annual tax rate of 33 5% cn profit before tax (2012 36 5%)
2013 2012
Analysis of charge in the year £'000 £ 000
UK income tax at 23 25% (2012 24 5%} for year 9,527 B 045
Adjustments i respect of prior year 458 35
Overseas income tax 13,403 13 607

23,388 21,587
Deferred tax expense

Adjustment in respect of prior year (125} 354
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences {1,666} 509
Benefit of ax josses recognised {144} {1,644}
Deferred tax income (1,935) (781}
Total Income tax expense i the income statement 21,453 20,808
2013 2012
Reconciliation of effective tax rate £'000 % £'060 %
Profit before taxation 64,057 57,003
Profit en ordinary activities befare tax muitiplied by the
standand rate of corporation tax in the UK 14,893 233 13 965 245
Effects of
Disallowable stems and other permanent tming differences {2212) {3.5} 1786 31
Unrelieved overseas losses 340 05 1,244 22
Utilisation of losses not prev:ously recogmsed {591} [{15:)) (207) {04
Recognition of overseas losses - - {209) {0 4)
Higher tax rates on overseas earmings 8,748 137 3.897 68
Movement of rate difference {58) {01) {59 L]
Adjustment {0 tax charge in respect of prior periods 333 05 389 08
Tax expense and effective rate for the year 21,453 335 20,806 365
2013 2012
Tax recogmised directly in equity £'000 2000
Relating to equity settied transactons 13 {1,309}
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8. Current tax assets and habilities

The current tax asset of £7 1m (2012 £7 0m), and cumrent tax babiity of £11 8m (2012 £12 6m) for the Group, and current tax asset
and babiity of £rul (2012 £ni) for the parent company represent the amount of Income taxes recoverable and payable in respect of

current and prior penods

9. Dividends
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the year
Fina) dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 6 75p per ordinary share (2011 6 75p} 20,798 20,779
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 3 25p per ordinary share (2012 3 25p) 10,051 9,855
30,849 30634
Amounts proposed as distnbubons to equity holders in the year
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 7 25p per ordinary share (2012 6 75p) 22,192 20,503

The proposed final dividend had not been approved by sharehclders at 31 December 2013 and therefore has not been included as a
lsabiity The comparative final dividend at 31 December 2012 was aiso not recognised as a hability i the pror year

The proposed final dvidend of 7 25p (2012 6 75p) per ordinary share will be paid on 23 June 2014 to shareholders on the register at

the close of business on 23 May 2014, subject to approval by sharehotders

When the Company pays a dividend 1o shareholders, there may be income tax consequences The impact will depend upon the

indwidual circumstances of the shareholder

10 Earnings per ordinary share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share i1s based on the foilowing data

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Earnings
Earnings for basic and diluted earnings per share {£°000) 42,604 a6 197
Exceptional tems (£°000} {note 5) 3,747 5308
Earrungs for basic and dituted earnings per share before exceptional tems {£'004) 46,351 41505
Number of shares number number
Waeighted average number of shares used for basic earnings per share ('000) 307,858 305,345
Dilution efiect of share plans ('000) 2,561 3,136
Diluted weighted average number of shares used for diluted earnings per share {'000} 310,419 308,481
pence pence
Basic earnings per share (penca) 138 119
Diluted earnings per share {pence) 37 117
Basic earnings per share before exceptional items (pence) 151 136
Dsluted earmings per share before exceptional Hems (pence) 148 135

The above results relate to continuing operations

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atinbutable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ardinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Employee Benefit Trust and held n

the reserve

Diluted

Diluted earmings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ortinary shares outstanding to assume

conversion of alt didutive potential ordinary shares This calculation determines the number of shares that could have been acquired at
fair value (determined as the average market pnice of the Company's shares) based on the monetary value of the subscnption rights
aftached to the outstanding share options The number of shares calculated in the basic earmings per share 15 then adjusted to reflect

the number of shares deemed to be issued for ni consideration as a result of the potential exercise of existing share options

The remaining share options that are currently not dilutive and hence excluded from the dilutive earnings per share calculation remain

potentially diutive until they are exither exarcised or they lapse
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11. Property, plant and equipment

2013
teasehold  Furniture,
improve- fixtures and Maotor

ments  equipment vehicles Totat
Group €000 £'000 £'000 000
Cost
At 1 January 34,984 50,630 3,129 88,743
Additions 4,682 2,885 913 B,480
Disposals {3,484) {1,666) (1,045} {6,195}
Eflect of movements in foreign exchange (864) {1,40%) {148} {2,413)
At 31 December 35,318 50,448 2,849 88,615
Depreciation
At 1 January 22,306 36,346 1,178 59,830
Charge for the year 5,086 4,816 759 10,661
Disposals {3,416) {1,499) {658} {5,573}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {433) {1,030} {78} {1,541)
At 31 December 23,543 38,633 1,201 63,377
Net book value
At 31 December 11,775 11,815 1,648 25,238

2032
Leasehold  Furniture,
improve- fixtures and Motor

ments equipment vehicles Tota!
Group £ 000 £'000 £ 000 7000
Cost
At 1 January 35,158 50415 2,585 88,158
Additions 2421 3,932 1,566 7919
Disposals (1393 (2 081} (889 {4.363)
EHect of movements in foreign exchange {1,202} {1,636} {133} {2971)
At 31 December 34 984 50,630 3,128 88 743
Depreciation -
At 1 January 20,041 33927 980 54,948
Charge for the year 4 280 5,513 756 10549
Disposals (1,419) {2 101) {510} {4,030)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {596} {993} {48} {1637)
At 31 December 22 306 36,346 1178 59 830
Net book value
At 31 December 12,678 14 284 1,951 28,913
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12 Intangible assets

2013
Computer
software,
assets
Computer undler
software construction Subtotal Goodwill Trademark Subtotal
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 2000 Total
Caost
At 1 January 16,625 38,053 54,678 1,539 746 2,285 56,963
Additions 305 4,510 4815 - - - 4,815
Disposals {120} - {120} - - - {120)
Transfers 40,274 (40,274) - - - - -
Effect of movements in
foreign exchange {307} (80) (387) - - - {36n
At 31 December 56,777 2,209 58,986 1,539 746 2,285 61,271
Amortisation
At 1 January 12,672 - 12,672 - 194 194 12,866
Charge for the year 6,680 - 6,680 - 120 120 6,800
Disposals (260 - (260} - - - (260)
Transfers 11 - 11 - - - 11
Effect of movements in {243) _ {243) _ - ~ {243)
foreign exchange
At 31 December 18,860 - 18,860 - 34 34 19,174
Net book value
At 31 December 37,917 2,209 40,126 1,539 432 1,971 42,097
2012
Computer
software
assets
Computer under
software construction Subtotal Goodwill  Trademark Subiotal
Group £°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 Total
Cost
At 1 January 10 845 35,435 46,280 1,539 549 2,088 48,358
Additions 3,038 5777 8,815 - 197 197 9012
Disposals {78) - (79) - - - 79
Transfers 3,153 (3,153) - - - - -
Effect of movements in
332 () 38, - - -~ 338, =
foreign exchange {332 ® (338) {338) ;
At 31 December 16,625 38 053 54,678 1,639 746 2,285 56 963 g
Amortisation %’
At 1 January 8,541 - 8.541 - 83 83 8624 =
-
Charge for the year 4427 - 4427 - 111 111 4,538 @
Disposals {38) - (38) - - - (38}
Effect of movements in 258 _ (258) _ _ _ (258)
foreign exchange
Al 31 December 12,672 - 12,672 - 194 194 12 866
Net book value
At 31 December 3,953 38053 42,006 1,539 552 2,041 44 097
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Impaiment tests for goodwll

Goodwill 1s allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units {CGUs} identified according to the country of operation A summary of the goodwill
allocation s presented below

2013 2012
£:000 £'000
UK T 121a 1274
USA 214 214
Simgapore 51 51
1,539 1,539

In assessing value In use, the estmated future cash flows are calculated by preparing cash flow forecasts derwved from the most recent
financral budget, management projections for five years, followed by an assumed growth rate of 3%, which does not exceed the long-
term average growih rate of the relevant markets and reflects long-term wage inflation fee growth Management applied a discount rate of
10% representing the weighted average cost of capital for the Group, to the estimated future cash flows to calculate the terminal value of
those cash flows If the recoverable amount of an asset 1s estmated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
1s reduced to its recoverable amount Animpairment |oss 1S recognised as an expense Management believes that no reasonably possible
change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of goodwill allocated to any CGU to matenally exceed its
recoverable amount

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired 1t 1s the opinion
of the Drrectors that at 31 December 2013 there was no impairment of goodwill

Impairment tests for assets under construction

The Group tests assets under consiruction annually for impairment, or more frequently If there are indications that assets under construction
might be impaired It 1s the opirion of the Directors that at 31 December 2013 there was no smpairment of assets under construction

Impairment test for computer software
The Group tests computer software for impairment only when there 15 an indication of impairment Duning 2013 there was no such indication
and therefore computer software was not tested for impairment

13 Investments

Subsidiary undertakings
(as restated note 1)

Company £'000
Cost at 1 January 2013 493,544
Agdition 2172
Transactions refating to share plans for subsidianes’ employees 584
Cost at 31 December 2013 496,200

The addition 117 the year represents investment in Michael Page International Inc The Company's prncipal subsidiary undertakings at
31 December 2013 therr pnncipal activities and countaes of incarporation are set out below

Name of undertaking Country of incorporation Principal activity

Michael Page international Argentina SA Argentina Recruitment consuitancy
Michael Page internaticnal {Austraha) Pty Lirmnited Australa Recruitment consultancy
Michael Page international GmbH Austna Recrutment consuktancy
Michael Page International (Belgium) NV/SA Belgium Recruitment consultancy
Page Intenm {Belgium) NV/SA Belgium Recrutment consultancy
Michael Page International (Brasd) SC Ltd Brazil Recruitment consultancy
Page Personnel Recruit Especializ € Servs Corpor Ltda Brazil Recruitment consultancy
Mrichael Page Internahonal Canada Limited Canada Recruitment consultancy
Michael Page International Chile Lica Chile Recrutment consultancy
Michael Page (Beying) Recruitment Co Ltd China Recruitment consultancy
Michael Page {(Shangha) Recrudment Co Ltd China Recruitment consultancy
Michael Page International Colombia SAS Colombia Recruitment consultancy

Financial Statements
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Name of undertaking

Country of incorporation

Pnncipal activity

Michael Page International (France) SAS
Michael Page Financial Services SAS

Page Personnel SAS

Michael Page International {Deutschiand) GmbH
Page Personne! (Deutschiand) GmbH

Michael Page Intarnational (Hong Kong) Limited
Michael Page International Recruitment Pvt Lid
Michael Page International (Ireland) Lirmited
Michaet Page International kaha Srl

Page Personnel Itaha SpA

Michael Page International {(Japan) K K
Employee Benefit Trust

Michael Page International {Malaysia) Scn 8hd

Michael Page International Mexico Reclutamienio
Especializado, S.A deCV

Michael Page International Mex:co Servicios
Corporativos SA de CV

Michaal Page International (Maroc) SARL AU
Michael Page International (Nedertand) BV

Pags Intenim BV

Michael Page International (New Zealand) Lirmited
Michael Page International (Peland) Spzo o

Michasl Page International Empressa de Trabalho Temporang

e Servigos de Consultadona Lda

Michael Page International Qatar (Branch}
Michael Page International Russia LLC
Michael Page International Pte Limited
Michael Page International (SA) (Pty) Limited
Michael Page International {(Espafia) SA
Michael Page Holding (Espana) SL

Page Personnel Seleccion SA

Michaetl Page International (Sweden} AB
Michael Page International (Switzerland) SA

Michael Page International NEM Istihdam Danismanligl
Limited Sirket

Michaet Page International (UAE) Lumited

Michaet Page Holdings Limited

Michael Page International Holdings Limited

Michael Page International Recruitment Limited”
Michael Page International Southern Europe Limited”
Michael Page UK Linted

Michael Page Limited

Michael Page Recrustment Group Limited

Michae! Page International Inc

*The equity of these subsidiary underiakings s held directly by Michael Page International plc All companies have been included n

France
France
France
Germany
Germany
Hong Kong
Incha
Ireland
Italy

Italy
Japan
Jersey
Malaysta

Mexico

Mexico
Moracco
Netherlands
Netherands
New Zealand
Poland

Portugal
Qatar
Russta
Singapore
South Afrnica
Spain

Spain

Spamn
Sweden
Switzerand

Turkey

United Arab Emirates
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United States

the consolidation and operate principally in their country of incorporation

The percentage of the issued share capital held is equivalent to the percentage of voting nghts held The Group holds 100% of all

Recruitment consultancy
Support services
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitrment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consuliancy
Recruiiment consuliancy
Recruiiment consultancy
Racruitment consultancy
Recruitmeni consultancy
Trust for share plans
Recruitment consultancy

Recruitment consultancy

Recruttment consullancy
Recruitmernit consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy

Recrustment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recrutment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Holding company

Recruitment consuliancy
Recruitment consuliancy
Recruitment consultancy

Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Suppaort services
Holding company
Recrutrent consultancy
Holding company
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Holding company
Recruitment consultancy

classes of 1ssued share capital The share capital of ali the subsidiary undertakings comprise orcinary shares
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14 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2012
as restated
2013 2012 2013 [note 1)
£000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Current

Trade receivables 153,339 148,438 - -
Less provision for impairment of receivabies {6,658} (8,732) - -
Net trade receivables 146,681 141 706 - -~
Amaunts due from Group companies - - 603,047 578,227
{ther recevables 4,663 4653 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 35,144 36,148 7 B85
186,488 182,507 603,054 578 292

Non-current
Other recevables 2,865 3,310 - -

All nan-current receivables are due within five years from the balance sheet date

The Group’s exposure to credit and currency nsks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables 18 disclosed In Note 21

15 Trade and other payables

Group Company

2012
as restated
2013 2012 2013 (note 1)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Current
‘frade payabples 10,708 8,605 - -
Amounis owed t¢ Group companies - - 607,776 594,259
Other tax and social secunty 42,098 39,700 - -
Other payables 8,998 16,679 - -
Accruals 70,643 71.920 - -
Deferred income 1,218 820 - -

133,664 138 733 607,776 594,259

Non-current

Deferred income 4,455 2,653 - -
Other tax and soctal secusity 242 128 - -
4,697 2,779 - -

The fair values of trade and other payables are not matenally different to those disclosed above There 1s no matenal effect on pre-tax profit
if the instruments are accounted for at far value or amortised cost

The total iability refating to other tax and social secunty includes a batance of £1 6m (2012 £1 3m) relating to social charges on share
based payments

The Group's exposure to currency and igudity nsk related to trade and other payables s disciosed in Note 21
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16. Bank overdrafts

Group Company
2013 2052 2013 2012
2000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank overdrafts 1,876 9 386 - -

The camying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in sterling
Bank averdrafts are repayable on demand

The Group has a £10m committed overdraft facilty with Devtsche Bank Al other bank overdrafts and faciittes are repayabie
on demand

At 31 December 2013, the Group had avalable £10m {2012 £10m) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities with Deutsche Bank
and £28 2m of undrawn borrowing facilities under the Invaice Discounting amangement with HSBC Al conditions precedent on each
of these faciities had been met

The Group's exposure to Interest rate, foreign currency and liquidhty nsk for financial assets and habsiities 1s disclosed in Note 21

17 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabihties recogrised by the Group, and the movements thereon durning the current
and pnor reporting periods

Share-

based
payments Tax losses Other Total
£'000 000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2013 {1,515) {3,173) (3,654} (8,342)
Recogmsed in equity for the year 741 - - 74
Recogmised in profit or loss for the year {2,304} {144) 513 {1,835)
Exchange differences - - 50 50
At 31 December 2013 (3,0:;8; (3,317) {3,091) {9,486)
At 1 January 2012 {2,771) {1,536) (3,811) {8,118}
Recogrised i equity for the year 330 - - 339
Recogrsed in profit or loss for the year 926 {1,637) {70) (781)
Exchange differences - - 227 227
At 31 December 2012 {1515) {3,173) {3,654) (8 342)

Certain deferred tax assets and hiabilities have been offset n accorcance with the Group's accounting policy The following s the
analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for balance sheet purposes

203 2012

2000 £'000

Deferred iax assets {10,377) 9 192)
Deferred tax labibities an 850

{9.486) {8,342)
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At 31 December 2013, unremitted earnings of overseas Group companies amounted to £83 3m (2012 £82 0m) Unremitied earrungs
may be liable to some overseas tax, but should not be liable to UK tax if they were to be distnbuted as dividends

Certain of the Group's overseas operations have current and priar year tax losses, the future utiisation of which 1s uncertain
Accordingly, the Group has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £7 4m {2012 £8 1m} in respect of tax losses of averseas
compames These tax losses are available to offset future taxable profits in the respective junsdicions

All of the deferred tax asset for losses of £3 3m is dependent on generating future taxable profits Of the recogmised deferred tax
asset, £0 2m s recogrised within temitones that were less making in the current year
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18. Called-up share capital

2013 2012
Number of Number of
£000 shares £'000 shares
Allotted, called-up and tuily paid
At 1 January 3,178 317,750,075 3,167 316,678,415
Shares 1ssued 30 3,076,092 1 1,071,660
At 31 December 3,208 320,826,167 3,178 317,750,075

Share Option Plans

The Group has share option awards currently outstanding under ar Executive share option scheme (ESOS) and a share option scheme
(SOS} These plans are descrbed opposite

At 31 December 2013 the following opt:ons had been granted and rematned outstanding in respect of the Company’s ordinary shares of 1p
under both the Michael Page Executive Share Opiton Scheme and the Share Option Scheme All options granted are settled by the physical
delvery of shares The Group has no fegal or constructive obligation to repuschase or settle the options in cash

No of
ophons
outstanding
Baiance at at 31 Base
1 January Granted  Exercised tapsed Decermber EPS/OP Exercise price
Year of grant 2013 n year In year in year 2013 ranget per share Exercise penod
2004 (Note 1) 105,178 - (57 678} - 47 500 41 171p-180 3p March 2007 - March 2014
2005 (Note 1} 258 889 - (29,415} - 229,474 75 18C 75p-191 5p March 2008 — March 2015
2006 (Note 1) 247 867 - (22,667) - 225,000 155 209 9p March 2008 — March 2016
2009 (Note 2) 3414 326 - {1,397 273 58 715) 1,960 338 OPrange 187 5p-211 84p March 2012 - March 2019
2010 (Note 1) 10,346 225 - {2,966 332} (88 700) 7,280 183 66 381 5p-3683 Op March 2613 - March 2020
2011 (Nete 2) 3,742 320 - - @24 000 3,4183206 COFrange 491 Op-482 8p March 2(14 — March 2021
2012 (Note 2) 4 688 560 - - S06030) 4182530 OPrange 477 Op March 2015 — March 2022
2013 (Note 2) - 4,565 500 - {125000) 4440500 OPrange 442 Dp March 2018 — March 2023
Total 2013 22,803,165 4,565 500 (4,473365) (1,7111445) 21783855
Weighted average
exercise prce
2013 &) 385 442 319 4 54 4G9
Yotal 2012 22,904,832 4,961 000 {3,647 396) {1,415271) 22 B03 165
Weighted average
exercise price
2012 (&) 339 477 214 370 385

“These options have fully vested
*The Operating Profit ranges for each award are fully disclosed in Note 2 of this Note

9,382,199 options wetre exercisable at the end of 2013 at a waighted average exercise price of £3 42 {2012 £2 02) The weighted average
share price at the date of exercise was £4 46

Note 1
Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS)

Using the ESOS awards of share options can be made to key management personnel and senior employees to receive shares in
PageGroup Share options are exercisable at the market pnce of the shares at the date of the grant

No awards were made under the ES0S scheme in 2009, 2011 2012 or 2013

For grants under the ESOS pian, the performance condition 1s tested on the third anniversary and no retesting will occur thereafter These
options were granted subject to a performance condition requinng that an option may only be exercised, In normai circumstances, if there
has been an increase In base earnings per share of at least 3% per annum above the growth in the UK Retaill Price index The respective
base earnings per share for each grant are shown in the table above
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For the 2010 share aption grant for Executive Directors only, the vesting of awards will be subiect to profit before tax perdformance
conditions measured over a three year penod  Vesting wall occur on a phased basis, with 30% of the award vesting for threshoid
performance Increasing on a straight kine basis to 100% of the award for maximum perfermance

Share Option Scheme (SOS)
Note 2

Exscutive Direciors of the Company are not eligible to pariicipate in this scheme  Any exercises of awards made under this plan must
be settled by market purchased shares

This new scheme was created in 2009 to provide an effective plan under which to grant awards in 2009 it was the Board's view
that grants made under the existing ESOS plan which would have required an increase over the 2008 base earmings per share of at
least 3% per annum above the growth in the UK Retail Prnice Index by 2011, would not be achievable due to the impact of the global
downturn on the Group s EPS and thus would not provide the required retention incentive

The 2009 grant made under the SOS plan 1s subject to a performance condition that wilt be tested, nitidlly, three years after the

date of grant and then anaually untd either the entire grant has vested, or ten years from the date of the award have elapsed, in which
case any awards outstanding under the grant will lapse The performance condition s directly inked to the Group's Operating Profit
1f Operating Profit 1s £30m then 30% of the award would vest For every £1m of Operating Profit over £30m, a further 1% wauld

vest 100% of the award would vest if Opearating Profit was £100m

As the Group’s 2011 Operating Profit was £86 Om, 86% of this award vested on 10 March 2012 The remaining 14% was retested in
March 2013, but with 2012 Operating Profit at £65 1m bexing Jower than in 2011, no additienal options vested

Further grants under the SOS plan were made 1in 2011 and 2012 The performance conditions for these grants are also direcily inked
to the Group's Operating Profit

For the 2017 grant, if Operating Profit 18 1n excess of £100m 1% of the award will vest for every addiional £1m of Operating Profit
achieved up to a maximum of 100% at Operating Profit of £200m or more

For the 2012 grant, if Operating Profit 15 1n excess of £50m, a proportion of the award egurvalent to the amount of Operating Profit
achieved will vest up to a maximum of 100% if the Operating Profit 1 £100m or more

For the 201 3 grant, if Operating Profit 15 1n excess of £60m a proportion of the award equevalent to the amount of Operating Profit
achieved will vest up to a maximum of 100% if the Operating Profit 1s £100m or more

Share Option valuation and measurement

In 2013, options were granted on 10 March with the estimated fair value of the options granted on that day of £0 97 In 2012, options
were granted on 11 March The estimated fair values of the options granted on that date was £1 38

Share options are granted under service and non-market performance conditions These conditions are not taken into account in the
far value measurement at grant date There are no market concitions associated with the share option grants

Other share-based payment plans

The Company also operates an Incentive Share Plan for the Executive Directors and semior employees and an Annual Benus Plan for
the Executive Dizeciors Detalls of these schemes are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and are settied by the physical
delivery of shares cumently satisfied by shames held in the Employee Benefit Trust, to the exient that service and performance
conditions are met

Share Option valuation and measurement

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 have an exercise price in the range of 171 0 pence to 492 9 pence and a weighted
average contractual bfe of 7 1 years The fair values of options and other share awards granted during the year were calculated using
the Black-Scholes option pricing mogdel The inputs into the medel were as follows

Share Qption Plans Incentive Share Scheme  Deferred Bonus Shares

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Share price (£} 442 477 442 477 442 477
Average exercise price (£) 442 477 il Nil Nil Nt
Weighted average faur value (£) aar 138 412 4 47 4,22 4 56
Expected volatiity 31% 40% % 40% 3% 40%
Expected life 5 years 5 years 3 years 3 years 2 years 2 years
Risk free rate 0 86% 087% 034% 073% 0 22% 050%
Expecied dridend yeld 2.62% 210% Nit Nt N Nil

Expected volauhty was determined by reference to histoncat volatiity of the Company’s share pnee since flotation The expected
Iife used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s bast esttmate, for the efiects of non-transferability exercise
restnctions and behavioural considerations Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the Black-Scholes opticn
prcing model

The Group recognised total expenses of £6 Bm including social secunty, (2012 £13 2m) related to share-based payment
fransactions dunng the year
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19. Reserves
Share premium

The share premium account has been established to raprasent the excess of proceeds over the nominal value for all share 1ssues, including
the excess of the exercise share price over the nominal value of the shares on the exercise of share options

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve relates to the cancellation of the Company s own shares
Reserve tor shares held in the employee benefit trust

Al 31 Decernber 2013, the reserve for shares held in the employee benefit frust consisted of 12,789,313 ordinary shares (2012 15,715,157
ordinary shares) held for the purpose of satisfying awards made under the incentive Share Plan, the Annual Bonus Plan and the Share Option
Scherme (SOS), representing 4 0% of the called-up share capital with a market value of £62 4m (2012 £62 1m)

There are 10 722 795 of these shares held in the trust on which dividends are waived
Currency translation reserve
Since first-time adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards, the currency translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange

differences ansing from the transiation of the financial statements of foreign operations that are integral to the operations of the Company

20 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 79,777 62,43% - 20
Short-term deposits 7,293 8,338 - -
Cash and cash equalents 87,070 70,769 - 20
Bank overdrafts {1,676} (9,396) - -
Cash and cash equivalents m the statement of cash flaws 85,394 61373 - 20
Net funds 85,394 61,373 - 20

The Group operates a multi-currency notional cash poot Currently the man Eurozone subsicianies and the UK-based Group Treasury
subsidiary participate in thus cash pool atthough it is the Group’s intention to extend the scope of the participation to other Group companies
going forward The structure facititates interest and balance compensation of cash and bank overdrafts

21 Fmancial sk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments
() credit nsk

(&) hgqucity sk

(imymarket nsk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above nisks, the Group’s objectives policies and processes for

measunng and managing nsk and the Group s management of capital Further quantitative disclosures are inciuded throughout these
consphidated financial statements

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's nsk management framework

The Group’s nisk management policies are established to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, to set approprate nsk imits and
controls and to monitor nsks and adherence to irmits  Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group's activiies The Group, through its frarning and managaement standards and procedures, aims to develop a
discipiined and constructive control environment in which atl empioyees understand their roles and obhgations

The Group Audit Committee oversees how management monitors comphance with the Group's nsk management policies and procedures
and reviews the adequacy of the nsk management framework in relation to the nsks faced by the Group The Group Audit Commuttee IS
assisted i s oversight role by Internal Audit Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of nsk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Commutiee
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i) Creditnsk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group If aclient or counterparty to a financial mstrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and anses pnncipally from the Group’s receivables from clients Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure o credit nisk s monitored on an ongoing basis

At the balance sheet date there were ro significant concentrations of crecit ngk The maxsmum exposure to credit nisk 1s represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet

Trade and other receivables
Total trade receivables (net of allowances) held by the Group at 31 December 2013 amounted to £146 7m (2012 £141 7m)

An intial credit penod 1s made available on invoices No mterest 1s charged on trade receivables from the date of the invoice
during this credit peniod Thereafter, interest 1s charged on the outstanding balance The Group has provided fully far alf recevables
over 150 days because histoncal expenence 1s such that receivables past due beyond 150 days are generally not recoverable
Trade receivables below 150 days are provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts from the provision of our services,
determined by reference to past defauit experience

inciuded in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £68 7m {2012 £58 6m) that are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has net prowided as the amounts are stilt considered recoverable The Group does
not hold any coliaterat over these balances The average age of these recevables s 54 days in excess of the intial credi peniod
(2012 58 days)

The ageing of frade receivables at the reporting date was

Gross trade Net trade Gross trade Net trade

receivaples Provision receivables recevables Provision recevables

2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012

£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000

Not past due 78,448 433 78,015 83,800 779 83 111
Past due 0-30 days 47,264 235 47,029 41,157 215 40 942
Past due 31-150 days 22,463 826 21,637 17,930 586 17 344
More than 150 days 5,164 5,164 - 5,461 5,152 3o
153,339 6,658 146,681 148,438 6732 141,766

The Group’s exposure ta credit nsk s influenced mainly by the ndividual charactenstics of each clent The demographics of the
Group’s client base nciuding the country n which clients operate, also has an influence on credit nsk Less than 3% of the Group's
revenue Is attnbutable to sales transactions with a single chent The geographic diversification of the Group's révenus also reduces
the concentration of credit isk

The majority of the Group’s clienis have been transacting with the Group for several years, with iosses rarely occurnng In mondoring
chent credit nsk, chents are grouped according to their credit charactenstics, including geographic location, industry, agemng profile,
maturity and existence of prewious financial difficuities

Movement in the ailowance for doubtful debts

2013 2012

£000 £000
Balance at beginning of the year 6,732 7.083
Imparment fosses recognised on receivables 6,960 5620
Amcunts written off as uncoliectable (483) {1 544)
Arnounts recovered dunng the year {1,997) (2237)
imparrment losses reversed (4,554) 2,100
Balance at end of the year 6,658 5,732

Most of the altowance for doubtful debts represents ndividually impared trade receivables with a balance of £0 5m (2012 £1 6m)
which has been placed n :igation as well as a further prowision for debts more than 150 days past therr due date

The impaiment recogmsed represents the difference between the carmying amount of these trade recevables and the present value
of the expected guidation proceeds The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances
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Exposure to credit nisk

The maximum exposure to credit nsk for net trade recevables at the reporting date by geographic region was

Carrying amount

2013 2012

£'000 £7000

EMEA 77,042 71,741
United Kingdom 35,227 33,262
Asia Pacific 21,012 23613
Amencas 13,400 13 090
146,681 141 706

The maximum exposure to credit nsk for accrued mcome at the repoarting date by geographic region was

Carrying amount

2012 2012

£000 £'000

EMEA 1,37 1363
United Kingdom 10,664 10 184
Asia Pacific 9,720 10,244
Amencas 5,212 4 301
26,967 26,082

The entire accrued Income balance 1s not past due The fair values of trade and other recevables are not matenally different o those
disclosed above and in note 14 There is no matenal effect on pre-tax profit  the mstruments are accounted for at fair value or

amortised cost

(i} Liguidity nsk management

Utimate responsibility for iguidity nsk management rests with the Beard which has built an approprate gudity risk management framewaork
that aims to ensure that the Group has sufficient cash or credit facilities at ali times to meet all current and forecast labiities as they fall due
1t s the Directors’ intention to continue to finance the activities and development of the Group from retained earnings

Cash surpluses are invested n short-term deposits, with any working capital requirements being provided from Group cash
resources, Group faciities, or by local overdraft facilities Cash generated in excess of these requirements will be used to buy back the
Company s shares The Group also operates a multi-currency notional cash pool to facilitate interest and balance compensation of cash and

bank overdrafis

The fotlowing are the contractual matunties of inancial habiltties

Less than More than

1t month  1-3 months 3-12 months 12 monthsg

2013 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Trade payables 7,089 3,439 181 —
Accruals and other payables 61,798 38,850 22,267 4,697
Bank overdraft 1,676 - - -
Less than More than

1 month  1-3 menths 3-12 months 12 months

2012 £'000 £°000 £°006 £'Q00
Trade payables 6,162 2,950 493 -
Accruals and other payables 40,386 39 653 29 440 2,778
Bank overdraft 9,336 - - -
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Capital 1s equity attnbutable to the equity hoiders of the parent The pnmary objective of the Group's capital management 1s

to ensure that st maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capitat ratios to support its business and maximise shareholder value
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions To maintamn or
ad)ust the capital structere, the Group may adjust the diadend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders through share
repurchases with subsequent cancellaticn, or 1Issue new shares No changes were made in the objectives, policias or processes for
managing capital dunng the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012

{in) Market nsk and sensitivity analysis

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial nisks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates,

but these nsks are not deemed to be matenal However, a sensibivity analysis showing hypothetical fluctuations m Pounds Steriing
aganst the Group's main exposure currencies 1S shown on page 123 There has been no matenal change in the Group's exposure ta
market nsks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk

For additional information on market nsk refer to 'Treasury management and currency nsk' in the Strategic Report on page 24
Interest rate nsk management

Borrowings are arranged at fioating rates, thus expasing the Group to cash flow interest rate nisk The Group does not consider thus
nsk as significant The benchmark rates for determining floating rate habilities are based on relevant natonal LIBOR equivalents
The Group's only interest bearing assets and l:abilities at 31 December 2013 relate to cash and bank overdrafis

The average interest rate paid on bank overdrafts was 2 23% {2012 2 02%)
Currency rate nsk

The Group publishes its results in Pounds Sterling and conducts its business in many foreign currencles As a result the Group 1s
subject to foreign currency exchange nsk due to exchange rate movements The Group i1s exposed ta foreign currency exchange
nsk as a result of transactions in currencles other than the funchonal currencies of some of its subsidianes and the translation of the
results and underying net assets of foreign subsidianes

The man functional currencies of the Group ase Stering  Euro, Chinese Renminty Brazilran Real and Australian Dollar The Group
does not have matena! transactional currency exposures, nor s there a matenal exposure to foreign denominated monetary assets
and labihties The Group 1s exposed to foreign currency transiation differences in accounting for its overseas operations although our
palicy 15 not to hedge this exposure

In certain cases where the Company gives or receives short-term loans to and from other Group comparues with different reporting
cumrencies it may use {oreign exchange swap dervative financeal instruments to manage the currency and interest rate exposure that
anises on these loans 1t 1s the Group’s policy not to seek to designate these denvatives as hedges

All denvative financial Instruments not in a hedge relationship are classified as dernvatives at fair value through the income statement
The group does not use derivatives for speculative purposes All transactions in derivative financiat instruments are undertaken to
manage the nsks ansing from underiying business activities

Information on the fair value of denvative inancial instruments hald at the balance sheet date 15 shown in the table below Denvatives
are disclosed within cash on the face of the balance sheet

Fair values are not adjusted for crecht nsk as required by IFRS 13, because credit impact 1s not matenal given the low faur value leveis

Denvative Financial Instruments

Denvatrves at fair value

2013 2012

£m £m

Derwaiive Assets 0.5 Q1
Dervative Liabilities {0.2) 01)
Net Derwative Assets 03 -
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Sensitivity analysis - currency nsk

A 10% strengthering of Sterling aganst the following currencies at 31 December would have increased/(decreased} equity and prefit or loss
by the amounts shown below This analysis 1s appled currency by currency in isolation, 1 e ignoring the impact of currency correlation, and
assumes that afl other vanables n parlicular interest rates remain constant The analysis 1s performed on the same basis for 2012

The amounts generated from the sensitivity analysis are forward-looking estimates of market nsk assummg certain adverse market conditions
occur Actuaf resuits in the future may differ matenally from those projecied due to developments in the global financial markets which may
cause fluctuations in interest and exchange rates to vary from the hypothetical amounis disclosed 1n the table below, which therefore should
not be considered a projection of likely future events and losses

2013 equity 2013 PBT

£'000 £'ooc
Euro (3.2085) (924)
Austratian Doliar {1,392) {354)
Swiss Franc {1,550) {285)
Hong Kong Dollar (689} (139)
Brazihan Real {751) {101)
Urited States Dollar 904 1,134
Chinese Renminb 770) (206)
Japanese Yen (563} (461)
Singapore Dollar (B24) {111)
Qther (300) 494

2012 eguity 2012 PBT

2’003 £'000
Euro {3,361} 457
Australan Dollar {1,988 a7r)
Swiss Franc {1,948} (464)
Hong Kong Dollar {754} 83)
Brazian Real (1,194) 68
United States Dollar 764 1,241
Chinese Renminbi 618} 221
Japanese Yen 671) {165)
QOther (1,556) {167}

A 10 percent weakening of sterling against the abave currencies at 31 December would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that ail other vaniables remain constant

22 Commitments

Operating lease commutments
At 31 December 2013 the Group was committed 10 make the following payments in respect of non-canceliable operating leases

Land and builldings Other
2013 2012 2013 2012
Leases which expire £ 000 £'000 £'oco £'000
Within cne year 2,711 4,423 798 617
Within two ta five years 41,442 51547 4,774 6,509
After five years 51,568 28 301 - -
Total 95,721 84 271 5,572 7 126

The Group leases vanous offices under non-cancellable operating fease agreements The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights

The Group also leases vanous plant and machinery under operating lease agreements The Group 1s required to give varying nobice for the
termenation of these agreements
Capital commitments

The Group had contractuzal capital commmatments of £0 6m as at 31 December 2013 relating to property, plant and equipment (2012 £0 5m)
The Group had no contraciual capital commitments as at 31 December 2013 relating to computer software {2012 £2 3m)
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23 Contingent habilities
Guarantees

The Company has provided guarantees to other Group undertakings amounting to £80k {2012 £78k) n the ordinary course of
business It 1s not anticipated that any matenal habilities will anse from the contingent liabilities

VAT group registration

As a result of group registration for VAT purposes, the Company 1s contingently liable for VAT liabilittes ansing in other companies
with.i the VAT group which at 31 December 2013 amounted to £4 4m (2012 £4 Tm)

24. Events after the balance sheet date

Between 31 December 2013 and 4 March 2014, 39,200 options were exercised, leading to an increase in share capital of £392 and
an increase in share premium of £86 700

25. Related party transactions
Identity of related parties

The Company has a related party relationship with its Directors and members of the Executive Committee, and subsidiaries
{Note 13)

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to ba the Directors and members of the Executive Committee as detaled n the biographies
on page 53 The remuneration of Directors and members of the Executive Committee i1s determined by the Remuneration Commitiee
hawving regand to the performance of indviduals and market trends For transachons with Directors see the Remuneration Report on
pages 67 10 86 Over and above these transactions equity settled transactions for the year were £1 4m {2012 £1 7m) Transactions
with the remaining members of the Executive Committee are disclosed below

Related party transactions

2013 2012
£°000 £'000
Short-term employee benefits 3,846 4,817
Pension costs —- defined contnbution plans 85 125

Company

Transactions between the Company and its subsichanes, which are refated parties of the Company, have been sliminated on
consolidation Details of transactions between the parent company and subsidiary undertakings are shown below

Amounts owed Amounts owed
Dividends recerved by related parties to related part:ies

2012 2012

As restated As restated

2013 2012 2013 (note 1} 2013 (note 1)

£'000 £'060 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000

Transactions 27,538 11685 603,047 578 227 607,776 594,259
FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

2002 2010 2011 2012 2013

£'a00 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £°000

Revenue 716 722 832,296 1019087 989,882 1,005,502

Gross profit 351,694 442 207 553 781 526,869 513,881

Operating profit before exceptional iterns 20,203 71,527 86,035 65,121 68,178

Operating profit after exceptional items 20,203 88,6527 86,035 57 287 65,725

Proft before tax 21,068  100,856" 88,147 57,003 64,057

Profit atinbutable to equity holders 12,430 67.,484" 56,857 36,197 42,604*

Conversion® 57% 16 2% 15 5% 12 4% 13 3%

Basic earmings per share (pence} 39 216 87 19 138"

* Includes exceptional items

TOperating profit before exceptional items as a percentage of gross profit
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION AND ADVISERS

Annual General Meetng

T be held on § June 2014 at 12 00 noon at Page House The Bourne Business Park, 1 Dashwood Lang Road, Addlesione, Weybndge,

Surrey, KT15 2QW Every shareholder 1s entitled to attend and vote at the mesting

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013
To be pad (if approved) on 23 June 2014 1o sharehoiders on the register on 23 May 2014

Company Secretary

Elaine Mamner

Company number
33i0225

Registered office, domicile and legal form

The Gompany 1s a imited hability company incorporated and domiciled wathin the United Kingdom

The address of its registered office IS

Page House,
The Bourne Business Park,

1 Dashwood Lang Road,
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The following summarises certan provisions of the Company's
Articles of Association {as adopted on 21 May 2010} and
applicable English Law The summary is qualified in its entirety
by reference to the Companes Act 2006 of Great Britain

{the “Act”} as amended, and the Company's Articles of
Association Under the Act, the Memorandum of Association
of the Company has now become a document of record, and
no longer contains any operatve provisions

Incorporation

The Company 1s incorporated under the name Michaet Page
Internationat plc and 1s regrstered 10 England and Wales with
registered number 3310225

Share capital

The Act abolished the concept of, and requirement for a
company to have, an authonsed share capial As such, the
Company no longer has an authonsed share capital

Alteration of capital
The Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution

(a) consohidate and divide all or any of its share capstal into
shares of larger amount than its existing shares,

(b) sub-drnde s shares, or any of them into shares of a
smaller amount than its existing shares and

{c) determune that as between the shares resulting from such
a sub-division, any of thems may have any preference or
advantage as compared with the others

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may
by special resolution reduce s share capital any capital
redemplion reserve and any share premium account, in
any way

Purchase of own shares

Subject to the provisions of the Act the Company may
purchase its own shares including redeemable shares The
Company proposes tc renew its authenty to purchase s
own shares for another year in item 16 of the Annual General
Meeting notice

General meetings and voting nghts

The Directors may calt general meetings whenever and at
whatever time and location they so determine Subject to

the provisions of the Act an annuai general meeting and afl
general meetings (which shall be called extracrdinary general
meetings) shall be called by at least 21 clear days’ notice
Subject to the prowisions of the Act the Company may resolve
to reduce the notice penod for general meetings (other than
annual general meetings) to 14 days on an annual basts The
Company proposes to renew is authonty to hold general
meetings on 14 days’ notice for another year in item 17 of the
Annua General Meeting notice Two persons entitled to vote
upon the business to be transacted shall be a guorum

The Articles of Association provide that subject 1o any nghts or
restnctions attached to any shares on a show of hands every
member and every duly apponted proxy present shall have
one vote Every corporate representative present who has been
duly authontsed by a corperation has the same voing nghis as
the corporation would be enbitied to On a poll every member
present in person or by a duly appointed proxy or corporate
representative shall have one vote for every share of which he
1s a holder orin respect of which his appontment as proxy or
corporate representative has been made Mo member shall be
entitled to vote n respect of any share held by himn if any call or
other sum payable by him to the Company remains unpaid
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If a member or any person appeanng to be interested in
shares held by a member has been duly served with a notice
under the Act and 1s in default for the prescnbed penod in
supplying to the Company nformation thereby reguired,
unless the Directors otherwise determine, the member shall
not be entitled n respect of the default shares {o be present or
to vote (either m person or by representative or proxy) at any
general or class meeting of the Company or on any poli or to
exercise any other nght conferred by membership in relation
to such meeting or poll in certain crcumstances, any dividend
due in respect of the default shares shall be withheid and
certain certificated transtfers may be refused

A member entitied to more than one vote need not, if he votes,
use all tus votes or cast all the votes he uses 1n the same way
A member Is entitied to appoint another person as his proxy to
exercise all or any of his nghts 1o attend and speak and vote
at a meating of the Company A proxy need not be a member
A member may appoint more than ong proxy to attend on

the same occasion This does not preciuda the member from
attending and voting at the meeting or at any adjournment of #

Limitattons and non-resident or foreign shareholders

English law treats those persons who hold the shares and
are neither UK residents nor nationals in the same way as
UK residents or nanonals They are free to own, vote on and
transfer any shares they hold

Vanaton of nghts

If at any time the capital of the Company 1s divided into
different classes of shares, the nights attached o any class
may be vaned either

{a) in such marner {if any) as may be provided by those nghts
or

{b) n the absence of any such provision, with the consent in
wnting of the holders of three-quarters in nominal value
of the 1ssued shares of the class {excluding any shares of
that class held as treasury shares) or with the sanction of a
special resolution passed at a separate generat meeting of
the holders of the shares of the class,

but not otherwise, and may be so vaned either whilst the
Company s a going concern or dunng or 1n conternplation
of, awinding-up At every such separate general meeting
the necessary quorum shall be at least two persons together
holding or representing Dy proxy at least one-third in nominal
value of the issued shares of the class (excluding any shares
of that class held as treasury shares), save that at any
adjourned meeting any hoider of shares of the class (other
than treasury shares) present or by proxy shatl be a quorum
Unless otherwise expressly provided by the rnghts attached
to any class of shares those nghts shall be deemed not to
be vaned by the purchase by the Company of any of its own
shares or the holding of such shares as treasury shares

Dwvidend nghts

Holders of the Company’s ordinary shares may by orcinary
resolutron declare dividends but ne such dividend shall exceed
the amount recommended by the Directors If, In the opinion
of the Directors, the profits of the Company available for
distnbution justify such payments, the Directors may, from time
to ime pay intenm dividends on the shares of such amounts
and on such dates and in respect of such periods as they
think fit The profits of the Company availabie for distnbution
and resolved 1o be distnbuted shail be apportoned and pad
proportionately 1o the amounts paid up on the shares dunng
any portion of the penod in respect of which the dividend is
pad The members may, at a general meeting daclanng a
drvidend upon the recormmendation of the Directors, direct
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that 1t shall be satisfied wholly or partly by the distnbution of
specific assets

No diwvidend shall be pad otherwise than out of profits available for
distnbution as specified under the provisions of the Act

Any dividend unclamed after a penod of twelve years from the
date of declaration of such dividend shali f the Drrectors so
resolve, be forfertadt and shall revent to the Company

Calls on shares

Subject 1o the terms of allotment, the Directors may make calls
upon members in respect of any amounts unpad on their shares
{whether 1n respect of nominal value or premium} and each
member shall pay to the Company as required by the notice the
amount called on his shares

Transfer of shares

Any member may transfer alt or any of tus shares in certficated form
by instrument of transfer in the usual commen form or in any other
form which the Directors may approve The transfer instrument shall
be signed by or an behalf of the transferor and, except in the case
of fully-paid shares, by or on behalf of the transferee

Where any class of shares 1s for the time being a participating
secunty, title to shares of that class which are recorded as being
held in uncertificated form, may be transferred (to not more than
four transterees) by the relevant system cancerned

The Directors may n their absolute discretion refuse to register
any transfer of shares (being shares which are not fulty paig or on
which the Company has a fien), prowided that if the share 15 listed
on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority such refusal does
not prevent deabngs in the shares from taking place on an open
and proper basis

The Directors may also refuse to register a transfer of shares

{whether fully paid or not) unless the transfer instrument

(a) 1s lodged at the regestered office or such other place as the
Birectars may appoint, accompanied by the relevant share
certificate(s}

{b) 1s in respect of only one class of share
{c) 15 i favour of not more than four transferees

The Directors of the Company may refuse to reqister the transfer
of a share In uncertificated form to a persen who is to hold it
thereafter in certificated form in any case where the Company 1s
entitted to refuse {or 1s excepted from the requirernents) under the
Uncertificated Secunties Regutations 2007 to register the transfer

Directors

The Company’s Articies of Associauon provide for a Board of
Directors consisting of {unless otherwise determined by the
Company by ordinary resolution) not fewer than two Directors,
who shall manage the business of the Company The Directors
may exercise all the powers of the Company, subject to the
prowvisions of the Articles of Association and any directions given
by spectal resolution If the quorum is not fixed by the Directors,
the quorum shall be two

Subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Directors may delegate any of therr powers

{a) to such person or comnuttes

{b) by such means (including power of attorney)

(¢} to such an extent

(d) in retation to such matters or terntones

{e) on such terms and condrons
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as in each case they think fit, and such delegation may inchude
authority to sub-delegate all or any of the powers delegated, may
be subject to conditions and may be revoked or vaned

The Directors may also, by power of attorney or otherwise, appoint
any person whether nominated directly or indirectly by the
Directors, to be the agent of the Company for such purposes and
subject to such conditions as they think fit, and may delegate any
of their powers to such an agen:

The Articles of Association place a general prohibition on a
Director voting on any resolution concerning a matter in which he
has, directly or indirectly, a matenal interest (other than an inlerest
In shares, debentures or other secunties of or otherwise in or
through the Company), unless tus interest anses only because the
case falls withun one or more of the following

{a) the giving to htm of a guarantee, sacunty, or Indemnity N
respect of money lent to or an obhigation incurred by him
for the benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings

(b) the giving to a third party of a guarantee security or indemnity .
in respect of an obhigation of the Company or any of its
subsidrary undertakings for winch the Director has assumed
responsibility in whole or in part and whether alone or jointly
with others under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving
of secunty

{c) the giving to tum of any other Indemmity which 1s on
substantally the same terms as indemnities given or to be
given {o alt of the other diectors and/or the funding by the
Company of this expenditure on defending proceedings or
the doing by the Company of anything to enable him to avaid
Incurring suich expenditure where all other directors have been
given or are to be given substantially the same arrangements

{d) the purchase or maintenance for any director or directors of
nsurance against iability

(e) hus interest anses by wirtue of his being or intending to become
a participant in the underwnting or sub-underwnting of an
offer of any shares in or debentures or other secunties of the
Company for subsenption, purchase or exchange

(A any arrangement for the benefil of the employees and directors
and/or former employees and former directors of the Company
or any of its subsidianes and/or the members cf therr families
or any person whao s or was dependent on such persons,
including but without being lImited to a retirement benefits
scheme and an employees’ share scheme which does
not accord to him any pnvilega or advantage not generally
accorded to employees and/or former employees ic whom the
arrangement relates

{g) any transaction or arrangement with any other company in
wiich he 1s interested, directly or indirectly (whether as a
director or shareholder or otherwise) provided that he 1s not the
holder of or beneficially interested in at least 1% of any class
of shares of that company {or of any other company through
which hus interest 1s denved), and s not entitted to exercise
at feast 1% of the voting nghts avaitable to members of the
relevant company

If a question anses at a Directors’ meeting as to the nght of a
Director to vote, the question may be referred to the Chairman of
the meeting {or o the Director concerned 1s the Chairrman, to the
other Directors at the meeting) and his ruling in relation 10 any
Director {or, as the case may be the ruling of the majponty

of the other Directors in relation to the Chairman) shall be final
and conclusive

The Act requires a Director of a company who Is in any way
interested In a propesed transacton or arrangement with the
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campany to declare the nature of his interest at a mesting

of the Directors of the company (save that a director need
not declare an interest If it cannot reasonably be regarded as
giving nise to a conflict of interest) The definition of “interest”
includes the interests of spouses, owvil partners, chiidren,
companies and trusts

Borrowing powers of the Directors

The Directors shall restnet the borrowings of the Company
and exercise all powers of control exercisable by the
Company In relation to its subsidiary undertakngs so as

to secure (as regards subsiciary undertakings so far as by
such exercise they can secure) that the aggregate pnncipal
amount ncluding any premium payabte on final repayment)
outstanding of all monay borrowed by the Group {excluding
amounts borrowed by any member of the Group from any
other member of the Groupy), shall not at any time save
with the previous sanction of an ordinary resolution of the
Company, exceed an amount equal 1o three times the
aggregate of

(a) the amount pa:d up on the share capital of the Company

(b} the total of the capitat and revenue reserves of the Group
inciuding any share prermium accouni capital redemption
reserve capital contnbution reserve and credit balance
on the profit and loss account, but excluding sums set
aside for taxation and amounts aitnbutable to outside
shareholders in subsidiary undertakings of the Company
and deducting any debit balance on the profit and loss
account, all as shown in the latest audited conselidated
balance shest and profit and loss account of the Group, but
adjusted as may be necessary 1n respect of any vanation in
the paid up share capital or share premium account of the
Company since the date of that balance sheet and further
adjusted as may be necessary to reflect any change since
that date in the companies comprising the Group

Director’s appointment, retirement and removal

At each annual general meeting, there shall retire from office
by ratation

{a} all Directors of the Company who held office at the time of
the two preceding annual general meetings and who did
not retire by rotation at either of them

{b} such additional number of Direciors as shall when
aggregated with the number of Directors retirng under
paragraph (a) above, equal esither one third of the number of
Directors, In circumstances where the number of Directors
1s three or a multiple of three, or in all other circumstances,
the whole number which 15 nearest to but does not
exceed one-third of the number of Directors (the “Relevant
Proportion”) provided that

i) the prowisions of this paragraph (b) shall only apply if the
number of Directors retinng under paragraph (a} above
15 less than the Relevant Proportion

() subject to the provisions of the Act and to the relevant
provisions of the Articles of Association, the Directors to
retire under this paragraph (b} shall be thase who have
been longest in office since their ast appointment or
reappointment, but as between persons who became
or were last reapponted Directors on the same day
those to retira shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themnselves) be determined by lot

if the Company, at the meeting at which a director retires by
rotation does not fill the vacancy the retinng Director shall,
if willing to act, be deemed to have been reappointed unless
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a resolution not to fifl the vacancy or not to reappoint that
Director s passed

In addiion to any power of removal under the Act, the
Company may, by speciat resolution remove a director before
the expiration of lus penod of office (without prejudice to

any claim for damages for breach of any contract of service
between the director and the Company) and subject to the
Articles of Association, may by ordinary resolution, appoint
another person who is witling to act as a director, and is
permitted by taw to do so, to be a director instead of im

The newly appointed person shall be treated, for the purposes
of determireng the tne at which he or any other director 1$ to
retre as if he had become a director on the day on which the
director in whose place he 15 appointed was last appointed or
reappointad as a Duecior

A Director shall be chisqualified from holding office as soon as

{a) that person ceases to be a director under the provisions of
the Act or I1s prohibited by law from being a Director

{b) a bankruptcy order 1s made against that person

{c) a composition 15 made with that person’s creddors
generally in satisfaction of that person’s debts

(d) by reason of that person's mental health a court makes
an order which wholly or partly pravents that person from
personally exercising any powers o nghts which that
person would otherwise have

{&) notification 1s receved by the Company from that person
that he 1s resigring or retinng from hus office as directar,
and such resignahion or retirerment has taken effect in
accordance with 1ts terrns

{f) 1n the case of an Executive Director his appomtment as
such s terminated or expires and the Drectors resolve
that he should cease to be a Director

{g) that person 1s absent from Directors’ meetings for more
than six consecutive menths (without permission of the
other Directors) and the Directors resolve that he should
cease {0 be a Director

{h} a notice 1N wnhing 1s served on him signed by all the
Directors stating that that person shall cease tobe a
Director with immediate effect

There 13 no requirement of share ownership for a
Director’s qualification

Amendments to the articles of assoctation

Subject to the Act, the Articles of Association of the Company
can be aliered by special resolution of the memberss

Winding-up

if the Company 1s wound up the quidator may, with the
sanction of a special resolution of the Company and any other
sanction required by law

(a) dmvide among the members in kind the whele or any part
of the assets of the Company and for that purpose, set
such values as he deems fair upon any property to be
dmmded and determing how the division shall be carned
out between the members

{b) vest {he whole or any pan of the assets in trustees upon
such trusts for the benefit of members as the hquidator
shall think fit, but no member shall be compelled 1o accept
any assets upon whuch there 1s a labiity

Addrtional Information
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Michael Page International plc (the “Company”)
(Registered in England and Wales No 03310225)

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION If you are in any doubt as to the
action you shoutd take, you are recommended to seek your
owrn independent financial advice from a stockbroker, bank
manager, solicitor, accountant, or other financial adviser
authonsed under the Financral Services and Markets Act 2000

If you have sold ot otherwise transferred all of your shares in
the Company, please send thts document together with the
accompanying documents {but not the personalised Form of
Proxy), as scon as possible to the purchaser or transferee, or to
the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or
transfer was effected, for delivery to the purchaser or transferee

Annual Generai Meeting

Notice of Meeting

NOTICE s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at Page House, 1 Dashwood Lang Road,
The Bourne Business Park, Addlestona, Weybnidge Surrey
KT15 2QwW on Thursday 5 June 2014 at 12 00 noan for the
following purposes

Ordmary Business

As ordinary business to consider and if thought fit pass
Resolutions 1 to 13 inclusive, which will bé proposed as
Ordinary Resolutions

1 Toreceve and consicer the Directors’ and Auditor s
Reports and the Staterment of Accounts for the year ended
31 December 2013

2 Toapprove the Directors’ Rernuneration Report, ather than
the Directors Remunearation Policy, in the form set out in the
Cornpany's Annual Report and Accounts, for the year ended
3t December 2013 (Note 8)

3  To approve the Directors” Remuneration Policy in the form set
out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report in the Company's
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31
December 2013 (Note 8)

4 To declare a final dividend on the ordnary share capital of
the Company for the year encted 31 December 2013 of 7 25p
per share

5 To re-elect Robin Buchanan as a Director of the Company
{Note 9}

6 o re-elect Simon Boddie as a Director of the Company
(Note 9)

7 Tore-elect Steve Ingham as a Chrector of the Company
(Note 9)

8 Tore-elect David Lowden as a Director of the Company
(Note 9)

9 To re-elect Ruby McGregor-Smith as a Director of the
Company (Note 9)

10 To re-elect Tim Miller as a Director of the Company
{Note 9}

11 To elect Danuta Gray as a Director of the Company (Note 9)

12 To reappoini Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor of the Company
to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company

13 To awthorise the Directors 1o determine the remuneration of
the Auditor

Notice of AGM

Special Business

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resoluticns of
which 14 and 15 wilf be proposed as Ordinary Resolutions and 16,
17 and 18 will be proposed as Special Resolutions

14 Ordinary Resolution — Authenty to Aflot Shares (Note 10)

THAT the Directors be and they are hereby generally and
uncondiionally authonsec i accordance with section 551 of

the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act’) to exercise all the powers

of the Company to allot sharas in the Company and to grant
nghts to subscnbe for or to convert any secunty into, shares

in the Company {'Rights’} up to an aggregate norminal amount

of £1,071,452, provided that this authorty, shall expire at the
conclusion of the next Annuat General Meeting of the Company
or, if earlier, on 5 September 2015, save that the Company shall
be entitled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of
such authornty which would or might require shares to be aflotted
or Rights to be granted after such expiry and the Directors shall
be entitied to aliot shares and grant Rights pursuant to any such
offer or agreement as If this authonty had not expired and all
unexercised authonties prevtously granted to the Directors to allot
shares and grant Rights be and are hereby revoked

15 Qrdinary Resolution — Donations to Political Organisatons and
Politrcal Expenditure {(Note 11)

THAT in accordance with sections 366 and 367 of the Act the
Company and all companies that are subsidianes of the Company
at the date on which this Resolution 1518 passed or dunng the
perod when this Resclution 15 has effect, be generally and
unconditronally authonsed 1o

(a) make poliical donations 1o political parties {or Independent
election canchcates) as defined in the Act not exceeding
£25,000 in totai,

{b) make pohitical donations to political organisations other than
pohitical parties, as defined in the Act not exceeding £25 000
n total, and

¢} incur political expenditure, as defined in the Act not
exceedmg £25,000 in total

during the pertod commenceng on the date of passing this
Resolution 15 and ending on 5 September 2015 or at the
close of business of the next Annual General Meeting of

the Company (whichever 1s the earlier) provided that the
authorised sum referred to in paragraphs (a}, (b) and (c)
above, may be comprised of one or more amounts in different
currencies which, for the purposes of calculating the said
sum, shall be converted info pounds sterling at the exchange
rate pubbished i the London edition of the Financial Times
on the date on which the relevant donation 1s made or
expenditure incurred (or the first business day thereafter) or,
if earlier, on the day on which the Company enters mto any
contract or undertaking in relation to the same provided that,
n any event, the aggregate amount of political donations
and political expenditure made or incurred by the Company
and its subsidianes pursuant to this Resolution 15 shall not
exceed £75,000

16 Special Resolution - Disapplication of Pre-emption Rights
{Note 12)

THAT the Directors be and they are hereby empowered pursuant
0 sections 570 and 573 of the Act to allot equity securnities (within
the meamng of section 560 of the Act) for cash either pursuant to
the authonty conferred by Resolution 14 above or by way of a sale
of treasury shares as if section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to
any such allotment provided that thus power shall be imited to
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{@) the allotment of equity secunties tn connection with an
offer of secunities in favour of the holders of ordinary
shares on the register of members at such record date as
the Directors may determmine where the equity securities
respectively attnbutable to the interests of the ordinary
sharehalders are proportionate (as nearty as may be
practicable} to the respective numbers of ordinary shares
held or deemed to be held by them on any such record
date, subyect to such exclusions or other arrangements as
the Diractors may deem necessary or expedient 1o deal
with treasury shares, fractional entittements or legal or
practical problems arising under the laws of any overseas
terntory or the requirements of any regulatory body or
stock exchange or by wirtue of shares being represented
by depositary receipts or any other matter and

{b) the allotment {otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph
(a) of this Resolution 16) to any person or persons of
equity secunties up {o an aggregate normral amount of
£160 717 and shall expire upon the expiry of the general
authonty conferred by Resolution 14 above save that the
Company shall be entitted to make ofters or agreements
before the expiry of such power which would ar might
require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry
and the Directors shall be enbiled to allot equity secunties
pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the power
conferred hereby had not expired

17 Special Resolutton — Power to Buy Back Shares in the
Market {(Note 13)

THAT the Gompany be generally and unconditionalfy
authonsed to make market purchases (within the meaning of
section 693(4) of the Act} of ordinary shares of 1p each of the
Company on such terms and in such manner as the Directors
may from ttme to time determine, provided that

{@ the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby
authonsed to be acquired 15 32 143 569 representing 10%
of the 1ssued ordinary share capstal of the Company as at
B Aprit 2014

{b) the minimum pnce which may be paid for each ordinary
share I1s 1p,

{c} the maximum pnce which may be pad for any such
ordinary share 1s an amount equal to 165% of the average
of the middle market quotations for an ordinary share
i1t the Company as denved from The London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the day on which such share is
contracted to be purchased

{d) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the next Annuat General Meeting or 5
September 2015 whichever 15 eariier unless praviously
renewed, vaned or revoked by the Company in general
meeting and

{e) the Company may make a contract to purchase its
ordinary shares under the authonty hereby conferred
pnor to the expiry of such auihority, which contract will
or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of
such authonty and may purchase its ordinary shares in
pursuznce of any such contract

18 Specialt Resolution — Notice of General Meetings
[Note 14)

THAT & general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice

FaneGioup Annuadl Arport Ang Accounts 20H3

The Board consider that all the proposals to be considered at
the Annual General Meating are likely to promote the SucCcess
of the Company and are in the best interests of the Company
and is shareholders as a2 whole The Directors unanimously
recommend that you vote in favour of the Resolutions as
they Intend to do in respect of their own beneficial hoidings
which amount to 2 300 238 shares representing 0 72% of the
existing 1ssued share capital of the Company

By order of the Board
Elaing Marriner

Company Secretary — Michaet Page Internaticnal pic

Page House,

1 Dashwood Lang Road
The Bourne Business Park,
Addlestone,

Waybndge,

Surrey KT15 20W

Registered in England No 03310225
8 Apni 2014

Notes

1 Amember entitied to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting (the 'Meating’} may appoint another
persen(s) {who need not be a membper of the Company) to
exercise all or any of huis nghts to attend, speak and vote
at the Meeting A member can appomnt more than one
proxy in relation to the Meeting, provided that each proxy
15 appointed 10 exercise the nghts attaching to different
shares heid by him Your proxy will vote as you nstruct
and must attend the Meeting for your vete to be counted
Details of how to appoint the Chatrman or another person
as your proxy using the Form of Proxy are sef out int the
notes to the Form of Proxy

2 Appointing a proxy does net preciude you from
attending the Meeting and voting in person If you attend
the Meeting In parson, your proxy appointment will
automatically be terrminated

3 A Form of Proxy which may be used to make this
appaintment and give proxy instructions accompanies
this Notice If you do nat have a Form of Proxy and
believe that you should have one, please contact Capita
Asset Services on 0871 664 0300 {calls cost 10p per
minute plus network extras) lines are open Monday to
Fnday, 8 30am to 5 30pm I you require addional copres
you may photocopy the Form of Proxy

4  In order to be vald an appomntment of proxy must be
returned {together wath any authonty under which it 1s
executed or a copy of the authonty cestified {or in some
other way approved by the Directors)) by one of the
following metheds

(a8} n hard copy form by post by couner or by hand to
the Company’s Registrar, at PXS1, 34 Beckenham
Road Beckenham BR3 4ZF,

(B} inthe case of CREST members, by utihsing the
CREST electronic proxy appointment service in
accordance with the procedures set out in
Note 6 below,

and in each case must be received by the Company
not less than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting
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A copy of this Notice has been sent for information only ta
persons who have been nominated by a member to enjoy
information nghts under section 148 of the Act (a 'Nomunated
Person’) The nghts to appoint a proxy cannot be exercised
by a Nonmwnated Person they can only be exercised by the
member However, a Nominated Person may have a nght
under an agreement between lum and the member by whom
he was nominated 1o be appointed as a proxy for the Meeting
or to have someone else 50 appointed If a Nominated Person
does not have such a nght or does not wish to exercise

it, he may have a nght under such an agreement to give
instructions to the member as to the exercise of voting nghis

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies

by utthsing the CREST electronic proxy appontment service
may do so by utilising the procedures descrnibed in the
CREST Manual on the Euroclear website (www euraclear
com/CREST) CREST Personal Members or other CREST
sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a voting service provider{s}, should refer ta their
CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who wiil be able
to take the appropnate action on their behalt in order for a
proxy appomntment made by maans of CREST to be vald, the
appropriate CREST message (a 'CREST Proxy Insiruction’)
must be properly authenbicated in accordance with Euroclear
UK & Ireland Limited s {'EUI'} specifications and must contain
the formation required for such instructions as descnbed
In the CREST Manual The message (regardless of whether it
constitutes the appontment of a proxy or an amendment to
the nstruction given to a previously appeinted proxy} must,
In order to be valid be transmitted so as to be received by
the sssuer's agent {ID number — RA10) by the latest timels}

for recespt of proxy appointments specified in the notice of
meeting For this purpese, the time of receipt will be taken

o be the iime {as determined by the timestamp apphed

to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from

which the 1ssuer’s agent 1s able o retnieve the message by
enguiry to CREST in the manner presanibed by CREST The
Company may treat as invalid 2 CREST Proxy Instruction

in the circumstances set out 1n regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001

CREST members and, where applicable their CREST
SPONSOrs or voting service providers should note that EUL
does not make available special procedures in CREST for any
particular messages Normal system timings and kmitations
wilj therefore apply in relation 1o the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions it1s the responsibility of the CREST member
concemed to take (or, if the CREST member 1s a CREST
personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a
vating service provider(s), to procure that s CREST sponsor
or voting service provider(s) take(s)} such action as shail

be necessary to ensure that a message 15 transmitted by
means of the CREST system by any particular trme In this
connectiton CREST members and where applicable, thesr
CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred in
particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning
practical mitations of the CREST system and tirings

Resolutions 2 and 3 - Approval of the Directors’
Rermuneration Report

There are new requirements this year n relation to the content
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the approval of the
Report following changes made io the Act in accerdance
with the new provisions, the Directors” Remuneration Report
in the Annual Repert and Accounts contains -

{a) a statement by David Lowden, Remuneration
Commuittee Chairman,
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{0} the Annual Report on Remuneration, which sets out
payments made in or relating to the financial year ending
2013 and

{c) the Directors’ Remunerahion Policy (the ‘Remuneration
Policy’) 1n relation to future payments to the Directors
and former direciors

The statement by the Remuneration Committee Charman
and the Annuat Report on Remuneration will, as in the past,
be put to an annual adwvisory shareholder vote by Ordinary
Resolution The Remuneration Palicy part of the Report,
which sets out the Company’s forward looking policy on
directors’ remuneration {including the approach to exit
payments to directors), s subject to a binding sharehofder
vote by Ordinary Resoluiton at feast every three years

The Directors’ Remuneration Report 1s set out sn &l in the
Annual Report and Accounts on pages 67 to 86 Resolution
2 15 the Ordinary Resolution to approve the Directors'
Remuneration Report, cther than the part containing the
Remuneration Policy on pages 69 io 74 Resclution 2

Is an advisory resolution and does not affect the future
remuneration pad to any director

Resolution 3 s the Ordinary Resolution to approve the
Remuneration Policy which 1s set out :n the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 69 to 74 of the Annual
Report and Accounts The Remurneration Poiicy will
commence on & Jure 2014 and payments wili continue to
be made to the Directors and former directors In line with
existing contraciuat arrangements untl this date Cnce the
Remuneration Policy has been approved, all payments by the
Company to the Directors and any former directors must be
made in accordance with the Remuneration Policy (unless
a payment has been separately approved by a shareholder
resolution) If the Remunerat:on Policy 1s approved and
remains unchanged, it will be valid for up to three financat
years without a new shareholder approval if the Gompany
wishes to change the Remunaration Policy, 1t will need to
put the revised policy to a vote before it can implement the
new policy If the Remuneration Policy I1s not approved for
any reason, the Company will f and to the extent permitted
by the Act continue to make payments 1o the Directors 0
accordance with existing contractual arrangements and will
seek shareholder approvai of a revised policy as soon as
praciicable

Resolutions 5 to 11 ~ Elechon/Re-~election of Directors

In keeping with the Board s aim of following best corporate
practice, each member of the Board s standing for re-
slection, and in the case of Danuta Gray who has been
appointed a Director since the last Annual General Meeting,
electon by the shareholders at this year's Meeting Tirm Mifter
has contnbuteg significantty to the Board duning his tenura
and continues to do s¢ He was subject to the thorough
Board evaluation review which was undertaken during 2013
The Board stilt considers Tim Maller as mdependent and an
effective member of the Board The Nomination Committee
keeps succession planning under review and, as Tiim Miller
will complete nine years on the Board later this year, wil
consider, i due course, whether he shouid remain a Director
of the Company until the next Annuat General Meeting
Biographical information on each of the Birectors is contasned
on pages 51 and 52 of the Annual Report and Accounis

The Charman confirms that, following formal performance
evaluation, ali Directors standing for electionfre-election
continue to perform effectively and demonstrate commtment
1o the role
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10 Resolution 14 — Directors’ Authonty to Allot Shares

If passed, Resolution 14 will give the Directors authonty to
allot ordinary shares in the capitat of the Company up to

a maximum neminal amount of £1,071,452 representing
approximately one-third of the Company's issued ordinary
share capital as at 8 Apnl 2014 (the latest practicable

date before publication of this Notice) Thes authonty will
lapse 15 months from the passing of the Rescfution or

at the next Annual General Meeting whichever shall first
occur Other than the aliotment of shares ansing from the
vesting of shares or the exercise of options in respect

of the Company’s share and share option schemes, the
Durectors have no present intention of exercising this
authonty As at the date of this Notice the Company

does not held any ordinary shares in the capitai of the
Company in treasury

11 Resolution 15 - Donations to Political Organisations and
Political Expenddure

For the purpose of this Resolution, ‘polibcal donations’,
pohtical organisations’ and 'political expenditure’ have
the meanings given to them in sections 363 to 365 of the
Act En accordance with its business principles, it 1s the
Company’s policy not to make contnbutions to potitical
parties There 13 no intention to change it However what
consiitutes a 'political party’, a ‘poliical organisation’,
political donationg’ or ‘political expenditure’ under the
Act is not easy to decide as the legislation 1s capable of
wide interpretation Sponsorship, subscnptions, payment
of expenses paid leave for employees fulfiling public
duties and support for bodies representing the business
community m policy review or reform, among other things,
may fall within these terms Therefore, notwithstanding
that the Company has not made a political donation in
the past and has no intention of either now or in the
future, making any political donation or incurring any
poliical expenditure in respect of any politcal party
palitical organisation or independent election candidate
the Board has decided to put forward Sesolution 15 to
renew the authorty granted by shareholders at the last
Annual General Meeting of the Company This will atiow
the Company to continue o support the community and
put forward s views to wider business and Gaverniment
interests without running the nsk of being in breach
ofthe law As permitted under the Act, Resolution 15
alsc covers any of these activities by the Company’s
subsidiaries

12 Resolution 16 ~ Disapphcation of Pre-emption Rghts

Resolution 16 will give the Directors authonty to allot
shares i the cagital of the Company pursuant {o the
authonty granted under Resciution 14 for cash without
complying with the pre-emption nghts in the Act in certain
cwcumstances This authonty will perrmit the Directors
toallst

{a) shares up to a nominal amount of £1,071,452,
{representing approximately one-third of the
Company’s :ssued share capital) on an offer to
existing shareholders on a pre-emphive basis (in
each case subject to adjustments for fractional
entitlements and overseas shareholders as the
Duectors see fit) and
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(b} shares up to a maximum nomenal value of £160,717
representing approximately 5% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company as at 8 Apnt
2014 (the tatest practicable date pnor to publication
of thus Notice) otherwise than in connection with an
cffer to existing shareholders

The Drirectors have no present intention of exercising this
authonty The Directors confirm their intention 1o follow
the provisions of the Pre-emption Group's Statement

of Principles regarding cumulative usage of authonties
within a roling three-year penod The Principles provide
that companes should not 1ssue for cash shares
representing In excess of 7 5% of the Company s issued
share capital in any rolling three-year pernod other than
to existing shareholders, without prior consultation with
shareholders

Resolution 17 ~ Power to Buy Back Shares in the Market

Resolution 17 gives the Company authonty to buy back
Its own ordinary shares n the market as permitted by the
Act The authonty imits the number of shares that could
be purchased to a maximum of 32,143 568 (representing
10% of the Company's issued ordinary share cap#al as at
8 April 2014 the latest practicable date prior to publication
of this Notice) and sets minimuet and maximum prces
Thus authenty will expire 15 months from the passing of
the Resolution or at the next Annual General Meeting,
whichever shalt first ocowr

The Drrectors have no present intent:on of exercising the
authanty to purchase the Company's ordinary shares but
wiil keep the matter under review, taking into account

the financial resources of the Gompany, the Company's
share price and future funding epportunities The authornty
will be exercised only if the Directors believe that to do

so would result in an sncrease in earnings per share and
would be in the interests of shareholders generally Any
purchases of ordinary shares would be by means of
market purchases through the London Stock Exchange

tisted companies purchasing their own shares are
allowed to hold them i treasury as an alternative to
cancelling them No dividends are paid on shares while
they are held in treasury and no voting rghts attach to
reasury shares

If Resolution 17 i1s passed at the Meeting, it 1s the
Company’s current mtention to cancel all of the shares

1t may purchase pursuant to the authonty granted to it
However, in order to respond properly to the Company’s
capital requirements and prevaling market conditions,
the Diectors wili need to reassess at the time of any

and each actual purchase whether to hold the shares in
treasury or cancel them, provided it 1s permitted to de so

As at 8 Apnil 2014 {the latest practicable date pnor to the
pubfication of this Notice), there were 973 924 options

to subscnbe for shares in the capital of the Company
representing 0 30% of the Company s issued share
capital If this authonty to purchase the Company’s
ordinary shares and the existing authority to purchase
taken at last year's Annual General Meeting {(which expires
at the end of this year's Meeting) were to be exercised

In full, these options would represent 0 38% of the
Company's issued share capsal
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Resolution 18 - Notice of General Meetings

This Resolution seeks to renew the authority granted at the
2013 Annual General Meeting io aliow the Company to call
general meetings, other than an annual general meeting on
14 clear days’ notice The mimimum notice penod for general
meetings of iisted companies 1s 21 days but compan:es may
reduce this penod to 14 days (other than for annual general
meetings} provided that two conditions are met The first
conditon is that a company offers a facility for shareholders to
vote by electronic means This condstion 1 met if a company
offers a facility accessible to all shareholders, to appoint a
proxy by means of a website The second condition is that
there Is an annual resolution of shareholders approving the
reduction of the minmum notice penod from 21 days to 14
days If approved the Resolutton will atlow the Company

to retain maximum flexibility to seek shareholder approval

for any future change or transacton that may require such
approval This authority will be effective until the next Annual
General Meeting, when it 1s intended that a similar resolution
will be proposed The Board will consider on a case by

case basis whether the use of the flexibiity offered by the
shorter notice penod 1s merited, taking into account the
circumstances, including whether the business of the meeting
15 ime sensitive

A member of the Company which 1s a corporation may
authorise a person or persons to act as s representative(s)
at the Mesting In accordance with the prowvisions of the

Act each such representative may exarcise (on behalf of
the corporation) the same powers as the corporation could
exercise if it were an indandual member of the Company,
provided that they do not do so in relation to the same
shares It 1s no lonQer necessary to nominate a designated
corporate reprasentative

As at 8 April 2014 (heing the tatest practicable date prior to
the publication of this Notice) the Company's 1ssued share
capttal consisted of 321 435 690 ordinary shares No shares
are heid in treasury Therefore the total voting nghts in the
Company are 321,435,690

The contents of this Notice details of the total number of
shares in respect of which members are entitled to exercise
voting rights at the Meeting, details of the totals of the voting
nghts that members are entitled 1o exercise at the Meeting
and, if applicable, any members’ statements, members’
resolutions or members matters of business received by the
Company after the date of this Notice wili be available on the
Company s website www page com/investors
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Members satisfying the thresholds in section 527 of the

Act can require the Company to publish a statement onits
website setting out any matter relating te (a) the audit of the
Company’s accounts (including the Auditor's Report and the
conduct of the audit) that 1s to be laid before the Meating,

or {b} any circumstances connected with an auditor of the
Company teasing to hold office since the last Annual General
Meeting, that the members propese to raise at the Meeting
The Company cannot require the members requesting the
publication to pay its expenses Any statement placed on the
website must also be sent to the Company's Auditor no later
than the time 1t makes the statement that the Company has
been required to publish on 1ts website

The Comipany must cause to be answered at the Meeting
any question relating to the bustness being dealt with at the
Meeting that 15 put by a member attending the Meeting
except in certain circumstances tncluding f it 1s undesirable
in the interests of the Company or the good crder of the
Meeting that the questron be answered or if to do so would
nvolve the disclosure of confidential informat:on

Copies of the contract of service for Mr S Ingham and

the letters of appomntment for the Chairman and the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company are available for
inspection on the day of the Meeting, at the ptace of the
Meating, from at least 30 minutes priar to the Mesting untd its
conclusion The same documents are otherwise available for
nspechon at the Registered Office Address of the Company
dunng normai business hours Monday to Friday (Bank
Hohdays excepted)

You may not use any electronic address in this Netice to
communicate with the Company for any purpose other than
those expressly stated
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